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It is my pleasure to present to you River Valley Bancorp’s sixteenth Annual Report to Shareholders for the year
ending December 31,2011.

It is no revelation that the country has gone through a painful period of adjustments, retrenchment, and
disappointments over the past four years.The economic recession has victimized a tremendous amount of
people that we know as family, friends, and neighbors. No one could have fully anticipated or prepared for the
cascades of circumstances that have befallen individuals. Way too many people had life-long attainments and
underpinnings swept from them.The torrent of continuing bad news continues for many of them yet today.

Just as obvious, the banking industry as a whole, and your Corporation specifically, was not immune to these
challenges. A substantial number of banks did not survive; substantially more sought federal government
assistance, and yet more endured unprofitability, shrank balance sheets and slashed dividends. While our own
profitability and balance sheet has been impacted by the circumstances of this recession, it has tended to
strengthen rather than break. It has molded and developed rather than crushed or defeated.

For fiscal 2011, the net income of the Corporation was approximately $1.8 million in spite of allocating nearly
$2.8 million in the provision for loan losses. The Corporation achieved new record levels in assets, now at over
$407 million. Our deposit base is at yet another record level, reflecting over $305 million, achieved the “old
fashioned” way — we became the bank of choice for new relationships. Our loan portfolio reflected the
economics of the recession, less loan demand, but a renewed emphasis on quality over quantity. Qualitative
ratios, we believe, reflect the end of a cycle rather than a continuation or downturn in performance numbers.

| hope you note the design and color of this year’s report. It is purposeful. It reflects the strength, power, and
dynamics of our name.While water and its force can portray all the destructive characteristics we have
witnessed over the past few years, most importantly however, it is recognized as the sustainer of life. It also
provides clarity, movement, and facets of light and color.River Valley Bancorp is an imitator of such, and the
vibrancy of our organization glimmers, rolls,and grows after the storms of the past.We are refreshed, renewed,
and more powerful than ever.

Please take the time to carefully read the enclosed information. Reflect on the Corporation’s performance in a
difficult environment, understand we worked through the circumstances, and realize the promise that awaits
the diligent.Thank you for a good 2011 and an even better tomorrow. For your participation and continued
support ...we are extremely grateful.

Respectfully submitted,

Matthew P. Forrester
President, CEO
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of the Year Ended December 31,2011
(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

Assets
Cash and due from banks S 1,881
Interest-bearing demand deposits 14,928
Federal funds sold 1,905
Investment securities available for sale.........cccceeveerren. 104,689
Loans held for sale 87
Loans, net of allowance for loan 10sses..........coeevererverreennne 253,096
Premises and equipment 8,091
Real estate, held for sale 2,487
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 4,226
Interest receivable 1,996
Cash value of life insurance 9,855
Other assets 3,402

Assets $406,643

Liabilities
Total deposits $ 305,226
Borrowings 65,217
Other liabilities 3,243

Liabilities 373,686
Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock - 5,000 shares - no par value.......... ccceevvennne
Common Stock - 1,514,472 shares - no par value
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income ...

Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity $406,643
Other Data
Interest rate spread 3.02%
Net yield on interest-earning assets 3.19%
Average yield on all interest-earning assets ... 4.76%
Return on assets 0.45%
(net income divided by average total assets)
Return on equity 5.41%
(net income divided by average total equity)
Equity to assets ratio 8.10%
(total equity divided by total assets)
Dividend payout ratio 90.32%

(dividends per common share divided by net
income per common share)

Number of full service banking offices 9

The source of momentum
& strength.




For The Year Ended December 31,2011
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Interest Income
Loans receivable

$14,818

Investment securities

2,749

145

Interest-earning deposits and other
Total Interest Income

Interest Expense
Deposits

17,712

3,458

Borrowings

2,365

Total Interest Expense

5823

Net Interest Income

Provision for loan losses

11,889
2,771

Net Interest Income After Provision
for Loan Losses

9,118

Other Income
Service fees and other charges

1,935

Net realized gains on sales of available
for sale securities

312

730

Net gains on loan sales
Interchange fee income

409

Increase in cash value of life insurance

323

Loss on premises, equipment and real estate
held for sale

(750)

Other income

49

Total Other Income

Other Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits

3,008

5,309

Net occupancy and equipment eXpenses .........c....

Data processing fees

Advertising
Mortgage servicing rights

Office supplies

Professional fees

FDIC premium assessment
Other expenses

1,434

Total Other Expenses

Income Before Income Tax

10,251

1,875

Income tax expense

103

Net Income

$ 1,772

$0.93

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

$0.93

Weighted average shares

outstanding - Basic

Weighted average shares
outstanding - Diluted

1,514,472

1,516,446

Ongoing, never ending
& e

1.growing.
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430 Clifty Drive
Madison, IN 47250

M e b U kb Oﬂice

233 East Main Street
Madison, IN 47250

Madison Drive-Thru

401 East Main Street
Madison, IN 47250

Walmar{ Supercen{er
567 Ivy Tech Drive
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Hanover O][][‘ce

10 Medical Plaza Drive
Hanover, IN 47243
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1025 State Road 62
Charlestown,IN 47111
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8005 Highway 311
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3660 Paoli Pike
Floyds Knobs, IN 47119

New All)ang OHice

2675 Charlestown Road
New Albany, IN 47150

Carrolllon, KY Oﬁice

1501 Highland Avenue
Carrollton, KY 41008

A *hn‘g source forging
new paths of opportunity.



SHARE HOLDERS

Shareholder and General Inquiries:

River Valley Bancorp

Attn: Matthew P.Forrester

430 Clifty Drive, P.O.Box 1590
Madison, Indiana 47250

Tel: (812)273-4949 Fax:(812)273-4944

Transfer Agent and Registrar:

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford,NJ 07016-3572

Tel: 1-800-368-5948

www.rtco.com

Corporate Counsel:

Lonnie D. Collins, Attorney

307 Jefferson Street

Madison, Indiana 47250

Tel: (812)265-3616 Fax:(812)273-3143

Special Counsel:

Barnes & Thornburg LLP

11 S.Meridian Street

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Tel: (317)236-1313 Fax:(317)231-7433

Annual and Other Reports:

Additional copies of this Annual Report to Shareholders
and copies of the most recent Form 10 K may be obtained
without charge by contacting the Corporation.

Internet and E-mail Address:
rvfbank.com

Annual Meeting:

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of River Valley Bancorp
will be held on Wednesday, April 18,2012, at 3:00 PM, at 430
Clifty Drive, Madison, IN 47250.

A moving source of
purpose & power.



Frederick W.Koehler Michael J.Hensley

Chairman Director

Robert W.Anger Charles J.McKay
Director Director

L.Sue Livers Lonnie D. Collins
Director Board Secretary

Matthew P.Forrester
Director & President
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Advisory Board Members for Clark

and Floyd County
Barry Cahill Mike Naville

Phil McCauley Danny Rodden

An underlying strength

of power & motion.



Anthony D.Brandon William H.Hensler

Executive Vice President Vice President of
Mark A.Goley Wealth Management
Vice President of Lending Loy M. Skirvin

Vice President of

Robert E.Kleehamer Human Resources

Senior Vice President of

Business Development John Muessel
Gregory T, Siegrist Vice President of
Vice President of M ztuces
Business Development John Newbanks

Vice President of

Jenny Darnold Business Development

Vice President of

Retail Banking Michael Todd Lancaster
C Vice President of

Vickie Grimes Business Development

Vice President of Finance

Managers of River Valley
Financial Bank

Loan Officers
Sherri Furnish

Bart Hicks

Rick T.Nelson - AVP
Andrew Ward
Jamie Singer

Customer Service Managers
Marcida Baker

Chad Dimmitt

Veronica Kidwell

Jessica Koontz

Ryan Nix

Rita Power

Kat Roberts

Kathy Rundall

Megan Ulery

Other Managers

Crystal Barnes—Compliance Manager

Laura Denning—Loan Processing Manager
Roger Ellis—Credit Analyst

Debbie Finnegan—Internal Auditor

Jeff Gleeson— Chief Risk Officer

Mary Ellen McClelland—Administrative Assistant
Luann Nay—Loan Administrator

Roger Smith — Accounting Manager

Linda Stark—Trust Administration

Mary Ellen Wehner — Commercial Loan Operations Manager
Stephen Wilkinson — Wealth Management

&evéNeding source of

strength & eommitment.



As a locally owned bank, our expectations are not just
about providing a better way to do your banking, but
also helping the communities we all live and work in be
a better place too.

In every community we serve, you'll see management
and staff actively engaged in activities and leadership,
not only investing our money but our time as well.

Transporting a
stream of fresh ideas.



THE UNITED STATES
SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
[ Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2011
Or

a Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the Transition Period from to

000-21765
Commission File Number

RIVER VALLEY BANCORP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

INDIANA 35-1984567
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (IRS Employer Identification No.)
430 Clifty Drive, P.O. Box 1590, M adison, I ndiana 47250-0590
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(812) 273-4949
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is awell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. YesO No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. YesO Nolx
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) hasfiled all reports required to befiled by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of Yes & NoO

1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data Yes NoO
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, m}
to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statementsincorporated by referencein Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is alarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, anon-accelerated filer, or asmaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer O Accelerated Filer O

Non-Accelerated Filer O Smaller Reporting Company

(Do not check if asmaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). YesO No

Asof June 30, 2011, the last day of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s Common Stock held
by non-affiliates of the registrant was $11,814,000 based on the closing sale price as reported on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

Asof February 24, 2012, there were issued and outstanding 1,514,472 shares of the issuer's Common Stock.
Documents I ncor por ated by Reference

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholdersto be held on April 18, 2012 areincorporated in Part 111.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K”) contains statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements appear in anumber of placesin this Form 10-K and include statements regarding the intent, belief, outlook, estimates
or expectations of River Valley Bancorp, itsdirectors, or its officers primarily with respect to future events and the future financial performance of the Company.
Readers of this Form 10-K are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future events or performance and involve risks and
uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements as aresult of various factors. The accompanying information
contained in this Form 10-K identifies important factors that could cause such differences. These factorsinclude, but are not limited to, changesin interest rates; loss
of deposits and loan demand to other financial institutions; substantial changesin financial markets; changesin real estate values and the real estate market;
regulatory changes; or turmoil and governmental intervention in the financial servicesindustry.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
BUSINESS
GENERAL

River Valley Bancorp (the “Holding Company” or “River Valley” and together with the “Bank,” the “Company”), an Indiana corporation, was formed in 1996 for the
primary purpose of purchasing all of the issued and outstanding common stock of River Valley Financial Bank (formerly Madison First Federal Savings and Loan
Association; hereinafter “ River Valley Financial” or the “Bank”) in its conversion from mutual to stock form. The conversion offering was completed on December 20,
1996. On December 23, 1996, the Company utilized approximately $3.0 million of the net conversion proceeds to purchase 95.6% of the outstanding common shares of
Citizens National Bank of Madison (“ Citizens'), and River Valley Financial and Citizens merged on November 20, 1997.

The activities of the Holding Company have been limited primarily to holding the stock of River Valley Financial, which was organized in 1875 under the laws of the
United States of America. River Valley Financial, which provides banking servicesin a single significant business segment, conducts operations from its nine full-
service office locations in Jefferson, Floyd and Clark Counties, Indiana, and Carroll County, Kentucky, and offers avariety of deposit and lending servicesto
consumer and commercial customers.

The Bank historically has concentrated its lending activities on the origination of loans secured by first mortgage liens for the purchase, construction, or refinancing
of one- to four-family residential real property. One- to four-family residential mortgage |oans continue to be the major focus of the Bank’s|oan origination activities,
representing 42.5% of the Bank'stotal loan portfolio at December 31, 2011. The Bank identified loans totaling $87,000 as held for sale at December 31, 2011. The Bank
also offers multi-family mortgage loans, nonresidential real estate loans, land loans, construction loans, non-mortgage commercial loans and consumer loans. The
Bank’s primary market areas are Jefferson, Floyd and Clark Counties in southeastern Indiana and adjacent Carroll and Trimble Countiesin Kentucky.

In December 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to merge the Bank with Dupont State Bank (“Dupont”), an Indiana commercial bank
and wholly owned subsidiary of Citizens Union Bancorp of Shelbyville, Inc. (“Citizens"). The Company will pay Citizens $6.275 million for its shares of Dupont at the
effective time of the merger, anticipated to occur by the end of the second quarter of 2012, assuming all conditions are satisfied and all regulatory and sharehol der
approvals are received. The surviving entity in the merger will be named “River Valley Financial Bank” and will operate as an Indianacommercial bank thereafter. This
acquisition will expand the Bank’s branch network to North Vernon, Seymour and Dupont, Indiana, resulting in atotal of 12 branches across southeast Indiana and
northern Kentucky to be operated by the Company.

Until July 2011, the Holding Company and River Valley Financial were subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision (the
“OTS"), but the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act eliminated the regulatory authority of the OTS and reallocated its functions. Now, the
Holding Company is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve (the “ Federal Reserve”). River Valley
Financial is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC") and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the“FDIC"). Depositsin River Valley Financial areinsured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC.




For ease of reference throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, references to the OCC are intended to include areference to the OTS, asiits predecessor in thrift
regulation and supervision, as the context and the time period requires.

The Company’s internet address is www.rvfbank.com, and the Company makes available all filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission viaitsinternet

website.

LOAN PORTFOLIO DATA

The following table sets forth the composition of the Bank’sloan portfolio as of December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 by loan type as of the dates indicated,

including areconciliation of gross loans receivable after consideration of the allowance for |oan losses, deferred loan origination costs and loansin process.

Historical datain thistable and others reporting loan portfolio data has been restated in some cases to conform to certain loan recategorizations employed as of

December 31, 2011.

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Per cent Per cent Per cent Per cent Per cent
Amount  of Total Amount  of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollarsin thousands)

TYPE OF LOAN
Residential real estate:
One-to-four-family $ 111,198 4250% $ 117,616 4338% $ 127,397 4541% $ 140,433 4850% $ 128,177 48.47%
Multi-family 18,582 7.10 14,997 5.53 12,910 4.60 9,924 343 10,274 3.88
Construction 8,308 3.18 6,975 257 7,867 2.80 10,999 3.80 14,319 541
Nonresidential real estate 83,284 3183 89,607 33.05 87,483 3118 83,400 28.80 71,877 27.18
Land loans 19,081 7.29 21,016 7.75 23,065 8.22 22,429 7.75 16,729 6.33
Commercia loans 17,349 6.63 16,413 6.05 17,129 6.10 17,306 5.98 17,043 6.44
Consumer loans 3,840 147 4,533 1.67 4,711 1.68 5,058 1.75 6,036 2.28
Gross loans receivable 261,642 100.00% 271,157 100.00% 280,562 100.00% 289,549 100.00% 264,455 100.00%
Add/(Deduct):
Deferred loan origination

costs 481 0.18 485 2 464 2 503 2 494 2
Undisbursed portions of

loansin process (5,024) (1.92) (2,388) (.9 (1,824) (@) (2,384) (.8) (4,113) (1.6)
Allowance for loan losses (4,003) (1.53) (3,806) (1.4) (2,611) (.9) (2,364) (.8) (2,208) (.8)
Net loans receivable $ 253,096 96.73% $ 265,448 97.9% $ 276,591 98.6% $ 285,304 98.6% $ 258,628 97.8%

Thefollowing table sets forth certain information at December 31, 2011, regarding the dollar amount of 1oans maturing in the Bank’sloan portfolio based on the
contractual termsto maturity. Demand loans, |oans having no stated schedul e of repayments and no stated maturity and overdrafts are reported as duein one year or
less. This schedule does not reflect the effects of possible prepayments or enforcement of due-on-sale clauses. Management expects prepayments will cause actual

maturities to be shorter.

Balance

Due During Years Ending December 31

Outstanding at 2026 and
December 31, 2011 2012 2013 2014 to 2015 2016 to 2020 2021 to 2025 following
(In thousands)
Residential real estate
loans:
One-to-four-family $ 111,198 $ 4162 $ 596 $ 408 $ 5358 $ 12692 $ 87,982
Multi-family 18,582 — — 153 500 3,921 14,008
Construction 8,308 8,308 — — — — —
Nonresidential real estate
loans 83,284 4,598 965 2,113 4,285 13,055 58,268
Land loans 19,081 12,741 849 27 339 1,031 4,094
Commercial loans 17,349 9,964 1,117 1,991 3,702 339 236
Consumer loans 3,840 1,283 481 1,428 611 37 —
Total $ 261642 $ 41,056 $ 4008 $ 6120 $ 14795 $ 31075 $ 164,588




The following table setsforth, as of December 31, 2011, the dollar amount of all oans due after one year that have fixed interest rates and floating or adjustable
interest rates.

Due After December 31, 2012
Fixed Rates Variable Rates Total
(In thousands)

Residential real estate loans:
Construction — _ _
One-to-four-family $ 10,249 $ 96,787 $ 107,036

Multi-family 4,259 14,323 18,582
Nonresidential real estateloans 4,885 73,801 78,686
Land loans 158 6,182 6,340
Commercia loans 6,239 1,146 7,385
Consumer loans 2,538 19 2,557

Total $ 28,328 $ 192,258 $ 220,586

Residential Loans. Residential loans consist primarily of one- to four-family residential loans. Approximately $111.2 million, or 42.5% of the Bank’s portfolio of loans,
at December 31, 2011, consisted of one- to four-family residential loans, of which approximately 87.5% had adjustable rates.

The Bank currently offers adjustable rate one- to four-family residential mortgage loans (“ARMS") which adjust annually and are indexed to the one-year U.S.
Treasury securities yields adjusted to a constant maturity. Some of the Bank’sresidential ARMs are originated at a discount or “teaser” rate which is generally 150 to
175 basis points below the “fully indexed” rate. These ARMs then adjust annually to maintain amargin above the applicable index, subject to maximum rate
adjustments discussed below. The Bank’s ARMs have a current margin above such index of 3-3.5% for owner-occupied properties and 3.5-5% for non-owner-
occupied properties. A substantial portion of the ARMsin the Bank’s portfolio at December 31, 2011 provide for maximum rate adjustments per year and over the life
of the loan of 2% and 6%, respectively, although the Bank has originated residential ARMs which provide for maximum rate adjustments per year and over thelife of
theloan of 1% and 4%, respectively. The Bank’s ARMs generally provide for interest rate minimums equal to, or up to 1% below the origination rate. The Bank’s
residential ARMs are amortized for terms up to 30 years.

Adjustable rate |oans decrease the risk associated with changes in interest rates but involve other risks, primarily because as interest rates rise, the payments by the
borrowers may rise to the extent permitted by the terms of the loan, thereby increasing the potential for default. Also, adjustable rate |loans have features which
restrict changesin interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the loan. At the same time, the market value of the underlying property may be adversely
affected by higher interest rates.

The Bank currently offersfixed rate one- to four-family residential mortgage loans which provide for the payment of principal and interest over periods of 10 to 30
years. At December 31, 2011, approximately 12.5% of the Bank’s one- to four-family residential mortgage loans had fixed rates. The Bank currently underwritesa
portion of itsfixed rate residential mortgage loansfor potential sale to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (the “FHLMC”). The Bank retains all servicing
rights on the residential mortgage loans sold to the FHLMC. At December 31, 2011, the Bank had approximately $96.3 million of fixed rate residential mortgage loans
which were sold to the FHLMC and for which the Bank provides servicing.

The Bank generally does not originate one- to four-family residential mortgage loansif the ratio of the loan amount to the lesser of the current cost or appraised value
of the property (the “Loan-to-Value Ratio”) exceeds 95% and generally does not originate one- to four-family residential ARMsif the Loan-to-Value Ratio exceeds
90%. The Bank generally requires private mortgage insurance on al fixed rate conventional one- to four-family residential real estate mortgage loans with Loan-to-
Value Ratiosin excess of 80%. The cost of such insuranceis factored into the annual percentage yield on such loans, and is not automatically eliminated when the
principal balanceis reduced over the term of the loan. During 2011 the Bank originated and retained $1.7 million of fixed rate one- to four-family residential mortgage
loans. Typically, these loans would be sold into the secondary market, however, the majority of these loans were originated to existing customers and were retained,
rather than sold, due to tightened lending standards in the secondary market.

Substantially all of the one- to four-family residential mortgage loans that the Bank originates include “due-on-sale” clauses, which give the Bank theright to declare
aloan immediately due and payable in the event that, among other things, the borrower sells or otherwise disposes of the real property subject to the mortgage and
theloan is not repaid.




At December 31, 2011, the Bank had outstanding approximately $14.5 million of home equity loans, with unused lines of credit totaling approximately $18.7 million. As
of December 31, 2011 all home equity loans were performing loans. The Bank’s home equity lines of credit are adjustable rate lines of credit tied to the prime rate and
are amortized based on a 10- to 20-year maturity. The Bank generally allows a maximum 85% L oan-to-Value Ratio for its home equity |oans (taking into account any
other mortgages on the property). Payments on such home equity loans are equal to 1.5% of the outstanding principal balance per month, or on newer home equity
loans, to the interest accrued at the end of the period.

The Bank also offers standard second mortgage loans, which are adjustable rate loanstied to the U.S. Treasury securitiesyields adjusted to a constant maturity with
acurrent margin above such index of 3.5-4%. The Bank’s second mortgage |oans have maximum rate adjustments per year and over the terms of the loans equal to 2%
and 6%, respectively. The Bank’s second mortgage | oans have terms of up to 30 years.

At December 31, 2011, $4.3 million of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, or 1.7% of total loans, were included in the Bank’s non-performing assets.

Multi-family Loans. At December 31, 2011, approximately $18.6 million, or 7.1% of the Bank’s total loan portfolio, consisted of mortgage loans secured by multi-
family dwellings (those consisting of more than four units). The Bank writes multi-family loans on terms and conditions similar to its nonresidential real estate loans.
The largest multi-family loan in the Bank’s portfolio as of December 31, 2011 was $3.1 million and was secured by an apartment building in Jeffersonville, Indiana. No
multi-family loans were included in non-performing assets as of December 31, 2011.

Multi-family loans, like nonresidential real estate loans, involve agreater risk than residential loans. See “Nonresidential Real Estate Loans” below. Also, the loan-
to-one borrower limitations restrict the ability of the Bank to make loans to devel opers of apartment complexes and other multi-family units.

Construction Loans. The Bank offers construction loans with respect to residential and nonresidential real estate and, in certain cases, to builders or developers
constructing such properties on a specul ative basis (i.e., before the builder/devel oper obtains a commitment from a buyer).

Generally, construction loans are written as twelve-month loans, either fixed or adjustable, with interest calculated on the amount disbursed under the loan and
payable on a semi-annual or monthly basis. The Bank generally requires an 80% L oan-to-Value Ratio for its construction loans, although the Bank may permit an 85%
Loan-to-Vaue Ratio for one- to four-family residential construction loans. Inspections are generally made prior to any disbursement under a construction loan, and
the Bank does not typically charge commitment fees for its construction loans.

At December 31, 2011, $8.3 million, or 3.2% of the Bank’s total loan portfolio, consisted of construction loans. The largest construction loan at December 31, 2011
totaled $762,000. There were no non-performing construction loans at December 31, 2011.

While providing the Bank with acomparable, and in some cases higher, yield than a conventional mortgage loan, construction loansinvolve ahigher level of risk. For
example, if aproject is not completed and the borrower defaults, the Bank may have to hire another contractor to complete the project at a higher cost. Also, aproject
may be completed, but may not be saleable, resulting in the borrower defaulting and the Bank taking title to the project.

Nonresidential Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2011, $83.3 million, or 31.8% of the Bank’ stotal loan portfolio, consisted of nonresidential real estate loans.
Nonresidential real estate loans are primarily secured by real estate such as churches, farms and small business properties. The Bank generally originates
nonresidential real estate as adjustable rate |oans of varying rates with lock-in terms of up to 10 yearsindexed to the one-year U.S. Treasury securities yields adjusted
to a constant maturity, written for maximum terms of 30 years. The Bank's adjustable rate nonresidential real estate loans have maximum adjustments per year and
over thelife of the loan of 2% and 6%, respectively, and interest rate minimums of 1% below the origination rate. The Bank generally requires a L oan-to-Value Ratio of
up to 80%, depending on the nature of the real estate collateral.

The Bank underwritesits nonresidential real estate |oans on a case-by-case basis and, in addition to its normal underwriting criteria, evaluates the borrower’s ability
to service the debt from the net operating income of the property. As of December 31, 2011, the Bank’s largest nonresidential real estate loan was $3.9 million.
Nonresidential real estate loansin the amount of $2.2 million, or 0.9% of total loans, were included in non-performing assets at December 31, 2011. This number
represented five loans, three of which are in foreclosure or other legal proceedings and the remaining two of which are restructured debt.

L oans secured by nonresidential real estate generally are larger than one- to four-family residential loans and involve a greater degree of risk. Nonresidential real
estate |oans often involve large |oan bal ances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. Payments on these |oans depend to a large degree on results of
operations and




management of the properties and may be affected to agreater extent by adverse conditionsin the real estate market or the economy in general. Accordingly, the
nature of the loans makes them more difficult for management to monitor and evaluate.

Land Loans. At December 31, 2011, approximately $19.1 million, or 7.3% of the Bank’s total loan portfolio, consisted of mortgage |oans secured by undeveloped real
estate. The Bank’sland loans are generally written on terms and conditions similar to its nonresidential real estate loans. Some of the Bank’sland loans are land
development loans, i.e., the proceeds of the loans are used for improvements to the real estate such as streets and sewers. At December 31, 2011, the Bank's largest
land loan, a devel opment loan secured by residential building lotsin Clark and Floyd Counties Indiana, totaled $2.1 million. Non-performing land loans in the amount
of $3.1 million wereincluded in total non-performing assets as of December 31, 2011, representing 1.2% of total loans. All of these loans, four in total, were residential
development loans, in Clark County, Indiana. All were connected to asingle borrower.

Land loans are more risky than conventional loans since land devel opment borrowers who are over budget may divert the loan funds to cover cost over-runs rather
than direct them toward the purpose for which such loans were made. In addition, those loans are more difficult to monitor than conventional mortgage loans. As
such, adefaulting borrower could cause the Bank to taketitle to partially improved land that is unmarketable without further capital investment.

Commercial Loans. At December 31, 2011, $17.3 million, or 6.6% of the Bank’s total |oan portfolio, consisted of non-mortgage commercia loans. The Bank's
commercial loans are written on either afixed rate or an adjustable rate basis with termsthat vary depending on the type of security, if any. At December 31, 2011,
approximately $15.6 million, or 90.1%, of the Bank’s commercial loans were secured by collateral, generally in the form of equipment, inventory, cropsor, in some
cases, real estate. The Bank’s adjustable rate commercial loans are generally indexed to the prime rate with varying margins and terms depending on the type of
collateral securing the loans and the credit quality of the borrowers. At December 31, 2011, the largest commercial loan was $1.7 million, representing alarge
agricultural operation. As of the same date, commercial loans totaling $297,000, or 0.1% of total loans, wereincluded in non-performing assets.

Commercial loans tend to bear somewhat greater risk than residential mortgage loans, depending on the ability of the underlying enterprise to repay the loan. Further,
they are frequently larger in amount than the Bank’s average residential mortgage loans.

Consumer Loans. The Bank’s consumer |oans, consisting primarily of auto loans, home improvement loans, unsecured installment | oans, |oans secured by deposits
and mobile home loans, aggregated approximately $3.8 million at December 31, 2011, or 1.5% of the Bank’stotal loan portfolio. The Bank originates consumer loans to
meet the needs of its customers and to assist in meeting its asset/liability management goal's, although demand for these types of loans has steadily decreased over
the past few years. All of the Bank’s consumer loans, except oans secured by deposits, are fixed rate |oans with terms that vary from six months (for unsecured
installment loans) to 66 months (for home improvement loans and loans secured by new automobiles). At December 31, 2011, $2.9 million of the Bank’s $3.8 million
consumer loans were secured by collateral.

The Bank’s loans secured by deposits are made in amounts up to 90% of the current account balance and accrue at arate of 2% over the underlying passhook or
certificate of deposit rate.

The Bank offers only direct automobile loans that provide the loan directly to a consumer.

Consumer loans may entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of consumer loans which are unsecured or are secured by rapidly
depreciable assets, such as automobiles. Further, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the
outstanding loan balance. In addition, consumer loan collections depend upon the borrower’s continuing financial stability, and thus are morelikely to be affected by
adverse personal circumstances. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws, including bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount
which can be recovered on such loans. At December 31, 2011, consumer loans amounting to $21,000 were included in non-performing assets.

Origination, Purchase and Sale of Loans.

The Bank underwrites fixed rate residential mortgage loans for potential sale to the FHLMC on a servicing-retained basis. Loans originated for saleto the FHLMC in
the secondary market are originated in accordance with the guidelines established by the FHLMC and are sold promptly after they are originated. The Bank receives a
servicing fee of one-fourth of 1% of the principal balance of all loans serviced. At December 31, 2011, the Bank serviced $96.3 million in loans sold to the FHLMC.

The Bank focuses its|oan origination activities primarily on Jefferson, Clark and Floyd Countiesin Indiana and Trimble, Carroll, and Jefferson Countiesin Kentucky,
with some activity in the areas adjacent to these counties. At December 31, 2011, the Bank held loans totaling approximately $60.3 million that were secured by
property located




outside of Indiana. The Bank’sloan originations are generated from referrals from existing customers, real estate brokers and newspaper and periodical advertising.
Loan applications are taken at any of the Bank’s nine full-service offices.

The Bank’sloan approval processes are intended to assess the borrower’s ability to repay the loan, the viability of theloan and the adequacy of the value of the
property that will secure the loan. To assess the borrower’s ability to repay, the Bank evaluates the employment and credit history and information on the historical
and projected income and expenses of its borrowers.

Under the Bank’slending policy, aloan officer may approve mortgage loans up to $150,000, a Senior Loan Officer may approve mortgage |oans up to $417,000 and the
President may approve mortgage |oans up to $500,000. All other mortgage |oans must be approved by at least four members of the Bank’s Board of Directors. The
lending policy further provides that loans secured by readily marketable collateral, such as stock, bonds and certificates of deposit may be approved by aL oan
Officer for up to $150,000, by a Senior Loan Officer for up to $300,000 and by the President up to $400,000. L oans secured by other non-real estate collateral may be
approved by a L oan Officer for up to $50,000, by a Senior Loan Officer up to $100,000 and by the President up to $200,000. Finally, the lending policy provides that
unsecured loans may be approved by a L oan Officer up to $15,000 or up to $25,000 by a Senior Loan Officer or up to $50,000 by the President. All other unsecured
loans or loans secured by non-real estate collateral must be approved by at |east four members of the Bank’s Board of Directors.

The Bank generally requires appraisals on all real property securing itsloans and requires an attorney’s opinion or title insurance and avalid lien on the mortgaged
real estate. Appraisalsfor al real property securing mortgage loans are performed by independent appraisers who are state-licensed. The Bank requiresfire and
extended coverage insurance in amounts at least equal to the principal amount of the loan and also requires flood insurance to protect the property securing the loan
if the property isin aflood plain. The Bank also generally requires private mortgage insurance only on fixed rate residential mortgage |oans with Loan-to-Value Ratios
of greater than 80%. The Bank does not typically require escrow accounts for insurance premiums or taxes, however, in 2010, due to changesin Regulation Z relative
to “high priced mortgages,” the Bank began requiring that certain borrowers escrow for both property taxes and hazard insurance. Under Regulation Z, a*“ high priced
mortgage” isany first mortgage that is 1.5% over the index rate or any second mortgage that is 3.5% over the index rate.

The Bank’ s underwriting standards for consumer and commercial loans are intended to protect against some of the risksinherent in making such loans. Borrower
character, paying habits and financial strengths areimportant considerations.

The Bank occasionally purchases and sells participationsin commercial |oans, nonresidential real estate and multi-family loansto or from other financial institutions.
At December 31, 2011, the Bank held no participation loansin itsloan portfolio.

The following table shows loan disbursement and repayment activity for the Bank during the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

L oans Disbursed:
Construction loans 8,034 5,474 3,943
Residential real estate loans $ 44,982 $ 50,772 $ 73,315
Multi-family loans 6,391 5,891 2,149
Nonresidential real estateloans 15,009 10,165 7,071
Land loans 11,959 14,123 11,996
Commercial loans 15,230 14,274 27,733
Consumer and other loans 3,205 3,443 3,178
Total loans disbursed 104,810 104,142 129,385
Reductions:
Sales 23,971 25,185 45,498
Principal loan repayments and other (1) 93,191 90,100 92,600
Total reductions 117,162 115,285 138,098
Net increase (decrease) $ (12,352) $ (11,143) % (8,713)

(1)  Other items consist of amortization of deferred |oan origination costs, the provision for losses on loans, net charges to the allowance for oan losses,
and restructured debt.




Origination and Other Fees. The Bank realizesincome from loan origination fees, |oan servicing fees, late charges, checking account service charges and fees for
other miscellaneous services. Late charges are generally assessed if payment is not received within a specified number of days after it is due. The grace period
depends on the individual |oan documents.

NON-PERFORMING AND PROBLEM ASSETS

Mortgage loans are reviewed by the Bank on aregular basis and are placed on anonaccrual status when management determines that the collectibility of the interest
islessthan probable or collection of any amount of principal isin doubt. Generally, when |oans are placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid accrued interest iswritten
off, and further income is recognized only to the extent received. The Bank delivers delinquency notices with respect to all mortgage loans contractually past due 10
days. When loans are 16 daysin default, personal contact is made with the borrower to establish an acceptable repayment schedule. Management is authorized to
commence foreclosure proceedings for any loan upon making a determination that it is prudent to do so.

Commercial and consumer loans are treated similarly. Interest income on consumer, commercial and other non-mortgage loans is accrued over the term of the loan
except when serious doubt exists asto the collectibility of aloan, in which case accrual of interest is discontinued and the loan iswritten-off, or written down to the
fair value of the collateral securing theloan. It isthe Bank’s policy to recognize |osses on these |oans as soon as they become apparent.

Non-performing Assets. At December 31, 2011, $9.9 million, or 2.4% of consolidated total assets, were non-performing loans compared to $10.4 million, or 2.7% of
consolidated total assets, at December 31, 2010. The balance of non-performing assets was real estate owned (REO), comprised of real estate taken during forclosure
proceedings, held at December 31, 2011, in the amount of $2.5 million, as compared to $400,000 at December 31, 2010. Troubled debt restructured that is non-
performing at the time of restructuring is required to be inclued as a non-performing asset until certain requirements for payment and borrower viability are met. Non-
performing assets are al so discussed in Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

The following table sets forth the amounts and categories of the Bank’s non-performing assets (non-performing loans, non-performing troubled debt restructured,
and foreclosed real estate) and troubled debt restructurings for the last three years. It is the policy of the Bank that all earned but uncollected interest on all past due
loansis reviewed monthly to determine what portion of it should be classified as uncollectible for loans past due in excess of 90 days. Uncollectible interest iswritten
off monthly.

At December 31
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Non-performing assets:

Non-performing loans $ 9,863 $ 10,381 $ 7,199
Troubled debt restructured 6,939 6,747 1,651
Total non-performing loans and troubled debt restructured 16,802 17,128 8,850
Foreclosed real estate 2,487 400 253
Total non-performing assets $ 19,289 $ 17,528 $ 9,103
Total non-performing loansto net loans 3.90% 3.91% 2.60%
Total non-performing loans, including troubled debt restructured, to net loans 6.64% 6.45% 3.20%
Total non-performing assets to total assets 4.74% 4.53% 2.30%

At December 31, 2011, the Bank held loans delinquent from 30 to 89 daystotaling $2.7 million. As of that date, management was not aware of any other assets that
would need to be disclosed as hon-performing assets.




Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth certain information at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 relating to delinquenciesin the Bank’s portfolio.
Delinquent loans that are 90 days or more past due are considered non-performing assets.

At December 31, 2011 At December 31, 2010 At December 31, 2009
30-89 Days 90 Daysor More 30-89 Days 90 Daysor More 30-89 Days 90 Daysor More
Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal
of Balance of Balance of Balance of Balance of Balance of Balance

Loans ofLoans Loans oflLoans Loans oflLoans Loans ofLoans Loans oflLoans Loans of Loans
(Dallarsin thousands)

Construction loans 1% 335 — $ — — % — 1% 165 2 $ 288 193 224
Residential real estate loans 20 1,198 36 2,946 14 971 27 2,304 14 724 17 1,892
Multi-family loans — — — — — — 2 910 — — 1 225
Nonresidential real estate loans 4 1,054 6 1,831 — — 10 4,673 4 1,767 7 2,163
Land loans 1 8 4 3,080 2 372 3 1,749 1 33 5 2,236
Commercial loans 2 41 3 297 3 542 2 265 7 161 5 450
Consumer loans 7 44 1 3 6 37 5 315 17 70 6 9
Total 3B $ 2680 50 $ 8157 25 $ 1922 50 $ 10,381 45 3 3043 2% 719
Delinquent loans to net loans 4.28% 4.63% 3.70%

Classified Assets. Federal regulations and the Bank’s Asset Classification Policy provide for the classification of loans and other assets such as debt and equity
securities of lesser quality as“special mention,” “substandard,” “doubtful,” or “loss” assets. An asset istreated as a“ special mention” when the assets are currently
protected but have credit weaknesses that warrant a higher degree of attention from management. An asset is considered “ substandard” if it isinadequately
protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. “ Substandard” assets include those characterized by the
“distinct possibility” that the Bank will sustain “someloss” if the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as “doubtful” have all of the weaknesses inherent
in those classified “ substandard,” with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make “ collection or liquidation in full,” on the basis of currently existing
facts, conditions, and values, “highly questionable and improbable.” Assetsclassified as“loss” are those considered “uncollectible” and of such little value that
their continuance as assets without the establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted.

Aninsured institution is required to establish general allowances for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by management for loans classified substandard or
doubtful, aswell asfor other problem loans. General allowances represent | oss all owances which have been established to recognize the inherent risk associated with
lending activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been allocated to particular problem assets. When an insured institution classifies problem assets
as“loss,” it isrequired either to establish a specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of the amount of the asset so classified or to charge off such amount. An
institution’s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to review by the OCC, which can order the
establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances.

The Bank regularly reviews its loan portfolio to determine whether any loans reguire classification in accordance with applicable regulation. Not all of the Bank’s
classified assets constitute non-performing assets, although the balances of non-performing loans as a percent of total classified is higher than in prior years.
Historically, management has been conservative in itslisting of assets as classified, especially in comparison to peer classification of similar assets and to actual
delinquency status. Whereas classified loans for the Bank historically have been a conservative list of loans warranting scrutiny, in 2010 and 2011 the classified list
has become weighted heavily by loans and rel ationshipsin the lengthy process of foreclosure. The mating of the conservative approach in monitoring problem loans
and loans lingering due to foreclosure has created alarger than historical balance of classified assets. As aresult, the Bank remains somewhat higher than peer on
balances of loans classified.

The classification of assetslisting is evaluated monthly by acommittee comprised of lending personnel, the Bank Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,

Loan Review personnel, the Collection Officer, and the Bank’s Internal Auditor. The list encompasses entire relationships, rather than single problem loans, and
removal of loans from thelist isonly approved by the committee upon demonstrated performance by the borrower.
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At December 31, 2011, the Bank’s classified assets, were as follows:

At December 31, 2011
(In thousands)

Substandard assets $ 22,325
Doubtful assets 51
L oss assets 0

Total classified assets $ 22,376

Regulatory definition requires that total classified assets include classified loans, which at December 31, 2011 included $18.7 million as substandard and $51,000 as
doubtful, other real estate owned as aresult of foreclosure or other legal proceedings of $2.5 million, also considered substandard, and two below-investment grade
corporate securities, considered substandard, totaling $1.1 million. Detail of classified loans by loan segment is provided in Footnote 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements presented later in this Report on Form 10-K.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is maintained through the provision for loan losses, which is charged to earnings. The provision for loan lossesis determined in
conjunction with management's review and evaluation of current economic conditions (including those of the Bank’s lending area), changes in the character and size
of the loan portfolio, loan delinquencies (current status as well as past and anticipated trends) and adequacy of collateral securing loan delinquencies, historical and
estimated net charge-offs and other pertinent information derived from areview of theloan portfolio. In management’s opinion, the Bank’s allowance for |oan losses
is adequate to absorb probable incurred losses from loans at December 31, 2011. However, there can be no assurance that regulators, when reviewing the Bank’s loan
portfolio in the future, will not require increasesin its allowances for loan losses or that changes in economic conditions will not adversely affect the Bank’s loan
portfolio. At December 31, 2011 the allowance for loan losses included $1.4 million in specific reserves for loan losses, as compared to $1.2 million in specific reserves
at December 31, 2010.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, in compliance with regulatory guidance and in reaction to the economic factors at work, management reviewed and revised the
methodol ogy for eval uating the adequacy of its allowance for loan and |ease | osses. Management made the following changes to the methodol ogy:

Increased segmentation of loan types. Previously the Bank used general loan groups to evaluate historical charge-off activity. Thiswas acceptable dueto
the historically minimal amount of charge-off activity and the low delinquency rates experienced by the Bank. Historical analysis of four general |oan groups
was expanded to 12 regulatory groupings, each relative to a specific risk-related loan type. Each of the 12 groups was evaluated for charge-off activity and
relevance to the existing loan portfolio, in arriving at historical loss factors by group. These loss factors are used in arriving at estimates as to the adequacy
of the allowance.

Decrease in historical look-back period. Previously the Bank used a five-year historical period in evaluating loss experience. This was reduced to three
years to more timely and accurately reflect the effect of the recent economic downturn.

Increased evaluation of “ concentration” areas. Commercial relationships were reviewed during the fourth quarter of 2009 and areas of risk concentration
were identified. This allowed management to target these areas in the allowance analysis and establish the capability to compare these concentrations and
any associated losses going forward. This data is as of yet only potentially useful as the realized charge-offs of the Bank for the concentration areas have
been low, and in most instances nonexistent. As charge-offs of these concentration areas occur, experience data can be formed.

Inclusion of specific reserve allocations in historical averages/partial charge-off of previously allocated specific reserves. Management has been
proactive and prudent in identifying the potential for loss on specific loans and loan relationships, and in prior periods has established “ specific reserves”
within the allowance for loan loss for those potential 1osses. Specific reserves are estimates, based on collected data such as updated appraisals, analysis of
the financial condition of the borrower, and estimates of the outcome in the event of failure of the loan. Specific reserves are not realized charge-offs since
the outcome of the loan relationship is undetermined. Regulatory pressure has been to include these specific reserve estimates as realized charge-offsin the
computation of historical charge-off data and management’s analysis complies. Since these are estimates of 10ss, the ultimate charge-off amount could vary.
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Summary of Loan Loss Experience. The following table analyzes changesin the allowance during the five years ended December 31, 2011. Additional detail about
loan loss experience is presented in Footnote 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented in this Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dallarsin thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 3806 $ 2611 % 2364 $ 2208 % 2,176
Charge-offs:
Real estate |oans (2,520) (1,690) (2/453) (782) (270)
Consumer (102) (130) (169) (183) (183)
Commercial loans - (405) (141) (83) (213)
Total charge-offs (2,622) (2,225) (2,763) (1,048) (666)
Recoveries 48 775 127 124 136
Net charge-offs (2,574) (1,450) (2,636) (924) (530)
Provision for |osses on loans 2,771 2,645 2,883 1,080 562
Balance end of period $ 4003 $ 3806 $ 2611  $ 2364 $ 2,208
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total
loans outstanding 1.56% 1.41% .94% .82% .83%
Ratio of net charge-offsto average loans
outstanding before net items .98% 53% .94% .32% .20%

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses. The following table presents an analysis of the allocation of the Bank’s allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated.
Decreases seen in the “unallocated” category reflect more precise allocation of 1oan types and concentrations within the revised methodology.

At December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Per cent Per cent Per cent Per cent Per cent
of loans of loans of loans of loans of loans
in each in each in each in each in each
category category category category category
tototal tototal tototal tototal tototal
Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans
(Dallarsin thousands)
Balance at end of period
applicableto:
Residential real estate $ 2,074 52.8% $ 919 51.5% $ 898 52.8% $ 602 55.7% $ 743 57.8%
Nonresidential real estate
and land 1,815 39.1 2,608 40.8 1,570 394 967 36.6 748 335
Commercia loans 70 6.6 157 6.1 46 6.1 158 6.0 144 6.4
Consumer loans 44 15 122 1.6 31 17 7 17 57 2.3
Unallocated - - - - 66 - 560 - 515 -
Total $ 4,003 100.0% $ 3,806 100.0% $ 2,611 100.0% $ 2,364 100.0% $ 2,208 100.0%

INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

Investments. The Bank’s investment portfolio (excluding mortgage-backed securities) consists of U.S. government and agency obligations, corporate bonds,
municipal securities and Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock. At December 31, 2011, total investmentsin the portfolio, as defined above and including
mortgage-backed securities, had acombined carrying value of approximately $104.7 million, or 25.7%, of the consolidated total assets.

Investments reported in the financial statements of the Company are held both at the Bank level and at the Bank’s Nevada subsidiaries. All Company investments are
available for sale, but theintent of the Company isto hold investments to maturity. Liquidity is met through acombination of deposit growth, borrowing from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis, and if needed, sale of investments held at the Bank level. Securities held through the Nevada subsidiaries are held primarily
for investment purposes. Securities held at the Bank level are held primarily for liquidity purposes. In 2010, liquidity needs were met primarily through deposit growth
and the same held true for 2011. Sales of investments over the last 18 months have been made primarily to take advantage of gain positions on short-term
investments, especially those expected to be called in the near future, while funds from maturing investments were reinvested primarily into high quality mortage-

backed securities and long term municipals.
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The portfolio increased by $29.5 million from December 31, 2010 to the same date in 2011, as $15.4 million in U.S. government and agency securities, most at yields of
less than 2%, were purchased at the Bank level, and high quality mortgage-backed securities and municipal securities, of $5.8 million each, were purchased at the
Nevada subsidiary level, to serve asincome-producing investments going forward. The remaining increase was due to the purchase of four high quality corporate
investments at the Nevada subsidiary level, totaling $2.5 million. The carrying value of the two trust preferred investments held by the Company, considered to be of
higher risk than most investments, improved from $936,000 as of December 31, 2010 to $1.1 million as of December 31, 2011. The net unrealized gain on the portfolio
was $2.8 million at December 31, 2011 and $695,000 at December 31, 2010.

Thefollowing table sets forth the amortized cost and the market value of the Bank’ s investment portfolio, excluding mortgage-backed investments, at the dates

indicated.

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Amortized Cost Market Value Amortized Cost Market Value Amortized Cost Market Value
(In thousands)
Availablefor sale:
U.S. Government and
agency obligations $ 37,107 $ 37917 % 2139 $ 22528 % 30164 $ 30,397
Municipal securities 27,076 28,715 22,516 22,855 20,243 20,665
Corporate 4,115 3,360 1,768 936 1,777 848
Total available for sale 68,298 69,992 46,423 46,319 52,184 51,910
FHLB stock 4,226 4,226 4,496 4,496 4,850 4,850
Total investments $ 72524 $ 74218 $ 50919 $ 50,815 $ 57034 $ 56,760

The following table sets forth the amount of investment securities (excluding FHLB stock and mortgage-backed investments) which mature during each of the
periods indicated and the weighted average yields for each range of maturities at December 31, 2011.

Amount at December 31, 2011 which maturesin

LessThan OneYear

OneYear toFiveYears

FivetoTen Years

After Ten Years

Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
(Doallarsin thousands)
U.S. Government and
agency obligations $ 2,004 207% $ 23,120 195% $ 11,983 169% $ S —%
Municipal securities 687 5.36 1,343 5.81 9,705 5.68 15,340 6.37
Corporate — — 1,895 2.32 459 241 1,762 1.38

Mortgage-Backed Securities. The Bank maintains a portfolio of mortgage-backed pass-through securitiesin the form of FHLMC, FNMA and Government National
Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) participation certificates. Mortgage-backed pass-through securities generally entitle the Bank to receive a portion of the cash

flows from anidentified pool of mortgages and gives the Bank an interest in that pool of mortgages. FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA securities are each guaranteed by
its respective agencies as to principal and interest.

Although mortgage-backed securities generally yield less than individual loans originated by the Bank, they present less credit risk. Because mortgage-backed
securities have alower yield relative to current market rates, retention of such investments could adversely affect the Bank’s earnings, particularly in arising interest
rate environment. The mortgage-backed securities portfolio is generally considered to have very low credit risk because the securities are guaranteed asto principal

repayment by the issuing agency.

In addition, the Bank has purchased adjustabl e rate mortgage-backed securities as part of its effort to reduce itsinterest raterisk. In aperiod of declining interest
rates, the Bank is subject to prepayment risk on such adjustable rate mortgage-backed securities. The Bank attempts to mitigate this prepayment risk by purchasing
mortgage-backed securities at or near par. If interest ratesrise in general, the interest rates on the loans backing the mortgage-backed securities will also adjust
upward, subject to the interest rate caps in the underlying mortgage loans. However, the Bank is still subject to interest rate risk on such securitiesif interest rates
risefaster than 1% to 2% maximum annual interest rate adjustments on the underlying loans.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank had mortgage-backed securities with a carrying value of approximately $34.7 million, all of which were classified as available for sale.
These mortgage-backed securities may be used as collateral for borrowings and, through repayments, as a source of liquidity.
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and market value of the Bank’s mortgage-backed securities at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Amortized Cost Market Value Amortized Cost Market Value Amortized Cost Market Value
(In thousands)

Availablefor sale:
Government agency

securities $ 17,952  $ 18529 $ 13266 $ 13674 $ 14869 $ 15,436
Collateralized mortgage

obligations 15,613 16,168 14,847 15,238 11,813 12,215
Total mortgage-backed

securities $ 33565 $ 34697 $ 28113 $ 28912 $ 26682 $ 27,651

The following table sets forth the amount of mortgage-backed securities which mature during each of the periods indicated and the weighted average yields for each
range of maturities at December 31, 2011.

Amount at December 31, 2011 which maturesin

LessThan One Y ear OneYear toFiveYears FivetoTen Years After Ten Years
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
(Dallarsin thousands)
M ortgage-backed
securities available
for sale $ — —% $ 12,863 372% $ 5,089 245% $ — —%
Collateralized mortgage
obligations 2,741 5.25 12,872 34 — — — —

The following table sets forth the changes in the Bank’ s mortgage-backed securities portfolio at amortized cost for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009.

For the Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Beginning balance $ 28,113 $ 26,682 $ 18,376
Purchases 17,550 9,220 12,696
Sales proceeds (5,947) (1,702) —
Repayments (6,138) (6,072) (4,404)
Gain on sales 148 92 —
Premium and discount amortization, net (161) (107) 14
Ending balance $ 33,565 $ 28,113 $ 26,682

SOURCES OF FUNDS

General. Deposits have traditionally been the Bank’s primary source of funds for use in lending and investment activities. In addition to deposits, the Bank derives
funds from scheduled loan payments, investment maturities, loan prepayments, retained earnings, income on earning assets, and borrowings. While scheduled loan
payments and income on earning assets are relatively stable sources of funds, deposit inflows and outflows can vary widely and are influenced by prevailing interest
rates, market conditions, and levels of competition. Borrowings from the FHLB of Indianapolis and other sources of wholesale funding may be used in the short term
to compensate for reductions in deposits or deposit inflows at less than projected levels.

Deposits. Deposits are attracted through the offering of abroad selection of deposit instruments including fixed rate certificates of deposit, NOW, MMDAs and other
transaction accounts, individual retirement accounts and savings accounts. The Bank actively solicits and advertises for deposits outside of Jefferson County. Since
the opening of our branchesin Sellersburg, Indiana (Clark County), Charlestown, Indiana (Clark County), Floyds Knobs and New Albany, |ndiana (Floyd County)
and the branch in Carrollton, Kentucky (Carroll County), the Bank’s market area has expanded. The Bank began operating the New Albany branch in the second
quarter of 2010, which has enhanced the existing services provided by the Bank for that area. Deposits will come from all of our market area. Deposit account terms
vary, with the principal differences being the minimum balance required, the amount of time the funds remain on deposit and the interest rate. The Bank does not pay
afeefor any depositsit receives.
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Interest rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established by the Bank on a periodic basis. Determination of rates and terms are
predicated on funds acquisition and liquidity requirements, rates paid by competitors, growth goals and applicable regulations. The Bank relies, in part, on customer
service and long-standing relationships with customers to attract and retain its deposits, but also closely pricesits depositsin relation to rates offered by its
competitors.

Theflow of depositsisinfluenced significantly by general economic conditions, changesin money market and prevailing interest rates and competition. The variety
of deposit accounts offered by the Bank has allowed it to be competitive in obtaining funds and to respond with flexibility to changes in consumer demand. The Bank
has become more susceptible to short-term fluctuations in deposit flows as customers have become more interest rate conscious. The Bank manages the pricing of its
depositsin keeping with its asset/liability management and profitability objectives. Historically, NOW and MMDAs have been relatively stable sources of deposits.
During 2011, transactional deposits, and primarily NOW and MM DA deposits, increased significantly from $170.2 million at December 31, 2010 to $185.1 million at
December 31, 2011, an increase of $14.9 million, or 8.74%. The ability of the Bank to attract and maintain certificates of deposit, and the rates paid on these deposits,
have been and will continue to be significantly affected by market conditions. As customers continued to pursue more stable deposit products during 2011,
certificate of deposit balances increased $4.0 million, or 3.45%, from the balance of $116.1 million as of December 31, 2010 to $120.1 million at December 31, 2011. As
certificates of deposit repriced and new certificates were added, the |ower interest rates for these items caused a significant decline in the cost of deposits. Asa
result, cost of deposits at December 31, 2011 was 1.28% as compared to 1.58% at December 31, 2010, adrop of 30 basis points, period to period. This change resulted
in aweighted average rate for deposits of 1.05% at December 31, 2011, adecline of 24 basis points from the 1.29% at December 31, 2010.

An analysis of the Company’s deposit accounts by type, maturity and rate at December 31, 2011 isasfollows:

Balance at
Minimum December 31, Weighted
Type of Account Opening Balance 2011 % of Deposits Aver age Rate
(Dallarsin thousands)
Withdrawable:
Noninterest bearing accounts $ 100 $ 24,468 8.02% 0.00%
Savings accounts 50 45,003 14.74 0.44
MMDA 2,500 31,044 10.17 0.54
NOW accounts 1,000 84,614 27.72 0.64
Total withdrawable 185,129 60.65 0.49
Certificates (original terms):
I.LRA. 2,500 10,175 333 2.15
3 months 2,500 22 0.01 0.30
6 months 2,500 511 0.17 0.55
9 months 2,500 89 0.03 0.68
12 months 2,500 7,189 2.36 1.16
15 months 2,500 24,609 8.06 1.16
18 months 2,500 1,679 0.55 1.18
24 months 2,500 5,172 1.69 1.55
30 months 2,500 529 0.17 181
36 months 2,500 4,981 1.63 215
41 months 2,500 1,475 0.48 4.24
48 months 2,500 6,008 197 322
60 months 2,500 8,842 2.90 3.04
Jumbo certificates 2,500 48,816 15.99 1.95
Total certificates 120,097 39.35 1.90
Total deposits $ 305,226 100.00% 1.05%

Thefollowing table sets forth, by various interest rate categories, the composition of time deposits of the Bank at the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
0.00 to 1.00% $ 17,348 $ 5,263 $ 3414
1.01 to 2.00% 59,773 65,565 32,401
2.01t0 3.00% 30,160 24,049 38,316
3.01t0 4.00% 3,752 6,361 13,010
4.01t0 5.00% 8,161 13,389 19,349
5.01 to 6.00% 903 1,461 2,443
Total $ 120,097 $ 116,088 $ 108,933
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The following table represents, by various interest rate categories, the amounts of time deposits maturing during each of the three years following December 31, 2011.
Matured certificates, which have not been renewed as of December 31, 2011, have been allocated based upon certain rollover assumptions.

Amountsat December 31, 2011 Maturing In

Greater Than
OneYear or Less Two Years ThreeYears ThreeYears
(In thousands)

0.00to 1.00% $ 12836 $ 4374 $ 2 3 106
1.01to0 2.00% 45,872 8,986 2,420 2,495
2.01t0 3.00% 2,418 4,807 7,123 15,812
3.01t0 4.00% 506 700 2,108 438
4.01 to 5.00% 7,074 1,087 — —
5.01t0 6.00% 903 — — —
Total $ 69,609 $ 19954 $ 11683 $ 18,851

The following table indicates the amount of the Bank’s jumbo and other certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more by time remaining until maturity as of December 31,
2011

At December 31,
2011
Maturity Period (In thousands)
Three months or less $ 14,343
Greater than 3 months through 6 months 3,490
Greater than 6 months through 12 months 10,408
Over 12 months 20,575
Total $ 48,816

Thefollowing table sets forth the dollar amount of savings depositsin the various types of deposits offered by the Bank at the dates indicated, and the amount of
increase or decrease in such deposits as compared to the previous period.

DEPOSIT ACTIVITY

Balance at Increase Balance at Increase Balance at
December 31, % of (Decrease)  December 31, % of (Decrease)  December 31, % of
2011 Deposits from 2010 2010 Deposits from 2009 2009 Deposits
(Dallarsin thousands)
Withdrawable:
Noninterest-bearing
accounts $ 24,468 8.02% $ 98 $ 23,480 8.20% $ 2055 $ 23,448 8.48%
Savings accounts 45,003 14.74 (7,202) 52,205 18.23 6,676 66,747 24.13
MMDA 31,044 10.17 (9,631) 40,675 14.21 4,761 19,620 7.09
NOW accounts 84,614 21.72 30,725 53,889 18.82 3,051 57,838 20.91
Total withdrawable 185,129 60.65 14,882 170,249 59.46 16,543 167,653 60.62
Certificates (original
terms):
I.RA. 10,175 3.33 1,297 8,878 310 1,034 8,149 2.95
3 months 22 0.01 (20) 42 0.01 124 154 .06
6 months 511 0.17 (208) 719 0.25 (3,159) 1,619 .59
9 months 89 0.03 - 89 0.03 (1,840) 778 .28
12 months 7,189 2.36 50 7,139 249 (3,736) 8,544 3.09
15 months 24,609 8.06 2,280 22,329 7.80 9,849 22,623 8.18
18 months 1,679 0.55 141 1,538 0.54 29 1,530 .55
24 months 5,172 1.69 263 4,909 171 1,287 6,036 2.18
30 months 529 0.17 (37 566 0.20 (164) 503 18
36 months 4,981 1.63 (1,507) 6,488 221 1,343 4,613 1.67
41 months 1,475 0.48 (1,249) 2,624 0.92 (86) 3,087 112
48 months 6,008 197 225 5,783 2.02 305 2,792 1.01
60 months 8,842 2.90 3,981 4,861 1.70 (70) 3,662 1.32
Jumbo certificates 48,816 15.99 (1,307) 50,123 17.50 7,350 44,843 16.21
Total certificates 120,097 39.35 4,009 116,088 40.54 12,266 108,933 39.38
Total deposits $ 305,226 100.00% $ 18889 $ 286,337 100.00% $ 28809 $ 276,586 100.00%
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Borrowings. The Bank focuses on generating high quality loans and then seeks the best source of funding from deposits, investments, or borrowings. The Bank had
$58.0 million in FHLB advances at December 31, 2011, identical in amount to the balances held at the same point in 2010. The average rates paid on those borrowings,
however, decreased 29 basis points across the period, from 3.84% as of December 31, 2010 to 3.55% as of December 31, 2011, as the Company restructured $10.0
million in advances, taking advantage of lower borrowing costs to lock in advances over arange of terms, and repaid and replaced an additional $5.0 million. The
Bank does not anticipate any difficulty in obtaining advances appropriate to meet its requirements in the future.

The following table presents certain information relating to the Company’ s borrowings at or for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

At or for the Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(Dallarsin thousands)

FHL B Advances and Other Borrowed Money:

Outstanding at end of period $ 65,217 $ 65,217 $ 86,217
Average balance outstanding for period 64,884 71,717 90,467
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the period 65,217 81,217 96,217
Weighted average interest rate during the period 3.64% 4.40% 4.65%
Weighted average interest rate at end of period 357% 3.80% 4.47%

SERVICE CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES

Regulations have permitted federal savings associationsto invest in the capital stock, obligations or other specified types of securities of subsidiaries (referred to as
“service corporations”) and to make loans to such subsidiaries and joint ventures in which such subsidiaries are participants in an aggregate amount not exceeding
2% of the association’s assets, plus an additional 1% of assetsif the amount over 2% is used for specified community or inner-city development purposes. In
addition, federal regulations permit associations to make specified types of loans to such subsidiaries (other than special purpose finance subsidiaries) in which the
association owns more than 10% of the stock, in an aggregate amount not exceeding 50% of the association’s regulatory capital if the association’s regul atory capital
isin compliance with applicable regulations.

A savings association that acquires a non-savings association subsidiary, or that electsto conduct a new activity within a subsidiary, must give the FDIC and the
OCC at least 30 days advance written notice. The FDIC may, after consultation with the OCC, prohibit specified activitiesif it determines such activities pose a
serious threat to the Deposit Insurance Fund. Moreover, a savings association must deduct from capital, for purposes of meeting the core capital, tangible capital and
risk-based capital requirements, its entireinvestment in and loans to a subsidiary engaged in activities not permissible for anational bank (other than exclusively
agency activities for its customers or mortgage banking subsidiaries).

The Bank’swholly owned subsidiary, Madison 1st Service Corporation, which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Indianaon July 3, 1973, currently
holds land but does not otherwise engage in significant business activities. During 2005, the Bank established in Nevada three new subsidiaries, including RVFB
Investments, Inc., RVFB Holdings, Inc. and RVFB Portfolio, LLC, to hold and manage a significant portion of the Bank’sinvestment portfolio. Income from the
Nevadainvestment subsidiaries increased from $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $1.9 million for the same period in 2011, an increase of 11.8%.
FINANCING SUBSIDIARY

In 2003, the Company formed the “ RIVR Statutory Trust |,” astatutory trust formed under Connecticut law, and filed a Certificate of Trust with the Secretary of the
State of Connecticut. The sole purpose of the Trust isto issue and sell certain securities representing undivided beneficial interestsin the assets of the Trust and to
invest the proceeds thereof in certain debentures of the Company.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2011, the Bank employed 84 persons on afull-time basis and 12 persons on a part-time basis. None of the employeesis represented by a
collective bargaining group. Management considers its employee relations to be good.
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COMPETITION

The Bank originates most of itsloans to and accepts most of its deposits from residents of Jefferson, Floyd and Clark Counties, Indiana, and Trimble and Carroll
Counties, Kentucky. The Bank is subject to competition from various financial institutions, including state and national banks, state and federal savings associations,
credit unions and certain non-banking consumer lenders that provide similar servicesin Jefferson, Floyd and Clark Countiesin Indiana, and Trimble, Carroll and
Jefferson Counties in Kentucky and which have significantly larger resources available to them than does the Bank. In total, there are approximately 21 financial
institutions located in the 6-county market area, including the Bank. The Bank also competes with money market funds with respect to deposit accounts and with
insurance companies with respect to individual retirement accounts.

The primary factors influencing competition for deposits are interest rates, service and convenience of officelocations. The Bank competes for |oan originations
primarily through the efficiency and quality of servicesit provides borrowers and through interest rates and loan fees charged. Competition is affected by, among
other things, the general availability of lendable funds, general and local economic conditions, current interest rate levels and other factors that are not readily
predictable.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
GENERAL

Asafederally-chartered, FDIC-insured savings association, the Bank is subject to extensive regulation by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC") and
the FDIC. Prior to July 21, 2011, the OCC'srole with respect to federal savings associations was performed by the Office of Thrift Supervision (the “OTS”). For
example, the Bank must obtain OCC approval before it may engage in certain activities and must file reports with the OCC regarding its activities and financial
condition. The OCC will periodically examine the Bank’s books and records and, in conjunction with the FDIC in certain situations, it has examination and
enforcement powers. This supervision and regulation are intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the federal deposit insurance fund. A savings
association must pay a semi-annual assessment to the OCC based upon amarginal assessment rate that decreases as the asset size of the savings association
increases. The assessment rate that applies to a savings association depends upon the institution’s size and condition. During the twelve months ended December
31, 2011, the Bank expensed $105,000 for actual OTS assessments and estimated OCC assessments.

The Bank is also subject to federal and state regulation asto such matters as loans to officers, directors, or principal shareholders, required reserves, limitations as to
the nature and amount of itsloans and investments, regulatory approval of any merger or consolidation, issuances or retirements of its securities, and limitations
upon other aspects of banking operations. In addition, the Bank’s activities and operations are subject to a number of additional detailed, complex and sometimes
overlapping federal and state laws and regulations. These include state usury and consumer credit laws, state laws relating to fiduciaries, the Federal Truth-In-
Lending Act and Regulation Z, the Federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Regulation B, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, anti-
redlining legislation, antitrust |aws and regulations protecting the confidentiality of consumer financial information.

When the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “ Dodd-Frank Act”) transferred to the OCC all functions and all rulemaking authority of
the OTSrelating to federal savings associations, it also transferred to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “ Federal Reserve”) all functions of
the OT S relating to savings and |oan holding companies and their non-depository institution subsidiaries. Thus, the Holding Company and all of its subsidiaries
other than the Bank are now supervised by the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve will also regulate loans to insiders, transactions with affiliates, and tying
arrangements. The OCC and the Federal Reserve have already published some regulations that will apply to the entities that they are to regulate for the first time, but
otherwise, OTS guidance, orders, interpretations, and policies to which federal savings associations like the Bank and savings and loan holding companies like the
Holding Company are subject are to remain in effect until they are suspended.

SAVINGS AND LOAN HOLDING COMPANY REGULATION

Asthe holding company for the Bank, the Holding Company is regulated as a“non-diversified savings and loan holding company” within the meaning of the Home
Owners' Loan Act, asamended (“HOLA"), and is currently subject to regulatory oversight by the Federal Reserve following elimination of the supervisory authority
of the OTSin July 2011. As such, the Holding Company is registered with the Federal Reserve and is thereby subject to Federal Reserve regulations, examinations,
supervision and reporting requirements. As a subsidiary of asavings and loan holding company, the Bank is subject to certain restrictionsin its dealings with the
Holding Company and with other companies affiliated with the Holding Company.

18




In general, the HOL A prohibits a savings and loan holding company, without obtaining the prior approval of the Federal Reserve, from acquiring control of another
savings association or savings and loan holding company or retaining more than 5% of the voting shares of a savings association or of another holding company
whichisnot asubsidiary. The HOLA also restricts the ability of adirector or officer of the Holding Company, or any person who owns more than 25% of the Holding
Company’s stock, from acquiring control of another savings association or savings and loan holding company without obtaining the prior approval of the Federal
Reserve.

The Holding Company currently operates as a unitary savings and loan holding company. Prior to the enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the“GLB Act”) in
1999, there were no restrictions on the permissible business activities of a unitary savings and loan holding company. The GLB Act included a provision that
prohibits any new unitary savings and loan holding company, defined as a company that acquires a thrift after May 4, 1999, from engaging in commercial activities.
This provision also includes a grandfather clause, however, that permits acompany that was a savings and |oan holding company as of May 4, 1999, or had an
application to become a savings and loan holding company on file with the OTS as of that date, to acquire and continue to control athrift and to continue to engage
in commercial activities. Because the Holding Company qualifies under this grandfather provision, the GLB Act did not affect the Holding Company’s authority to
engage in diversified business activities. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal Reserve may require these grandfathered unitary savings and loan holding
companies to segregate any nonfinancial activitiesinto an intermediate holding company which could facilitate supervision of such entity by the Federal Reserve.

If the Holding Company were to acquire control of another savings association other than through amerger or other business combination with the Bank, the
Holding Company would thereupon become a multiple savings and |oan holding company. Except where such acquisition is pursuant to the authority to approve
emergency thrift acquisitions and where each subsidiary savings association meets the Qualified Thrift Lender (“QTL") test, the activities of the Holding Company
and any of its subsidiaries (other than the Bank or other subsidiary savings associations) would thereafter be subject to further restrictions. The HOLA provides
that, among other things, a multiple savings and loan holding company may not, either directly or acting through a subsidiary that is not a savings association,
conduct, any business activity other than (i) furnishing or performing management services for asubsidiary savings association, (ii) conducting an insurance agency
or escrow business, (iii) holding, managing, or liquidating assets owned by or acquired from a subsidiary savings association, (iv) holding or managing properties
used or occupied by a subsidiary savings association, (v) acting as trustee under deeds of trust, (vi) those activities in which multiple savings and loan holding
companies were authorized (by regulation) to directly engage on March 5, 1987, or (vii) those activities authorized by the Federal Reserve Board as permissible for
bank holding companies, unless the Federal Reserve by regulation prohibits or limits such activities for savings and loan holding companies. Those activities
described in (vii) above must also be approved by the Federal Reserve before amultiple savings and loan holding company may engage in such activities.

Acquisitions resulting in the formation of amultiple savings and loan holding company which controls savings associations in more than one state may also be
approved, if the multiple savings and loan holding company involved controls a savings association which operated a home or branch office in the state of the
association to be acquired as of March 5, 1987, or if the laws of the state in which the association to be acquired islocated specifically permit associations to be
acquired by state-chartered associations or savings and loan holding companies located in the state where the acquiring entity islocated (or by a holding company
that controls such state-chartered savings associations). Acquisitions resulting in a multiple savings and loan holding company controlling savings associationsin
more than one state in the case of certain emergency thrift acquisitions may also be approved.

Notwithstanding the above rules as to permissible business activities of savings and loan holding companies, if the savings association subsidiary of such aholding
company failsto meet the QTL test, then such holding company would be deemed to be a bank holding company subject to all of the provisions of the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956 and other statutes applicable to bank holding companies, to the same extent asif the Holding Company were a bank holding company and the
Bank were abank. See Item 1 - Business - Regulation - Qualified Thrift Lender. In addition, under the Dodd-Frank Act, a savings association that failsthe QTL test
will be prohibited from paying dividends, except for dividends that are permissible for national banks, are necessary to meet obligations of the company that controls
the savings association, and are specifically approved by the OCC and the Federal Reserve. Such failure to satisfy the QTL test may also result in enforcement
actions. At December 31, 2011, the Bank’s asset composition was in excess of that required to qualify asa Qualified Thrift Lender.

Indianalaw permits federal and state savings association holding companies with their home offices located outside of Indianato acquire savings associations
whose home offices are located in Indiana and savings association holding companies with their principal place of businessin Indiana (“Indiana Savings Association
Holding Companies”) upon receipt of approval by the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions. Moreover, Indiana Savings Association Holding Companies may
acquire savings associations with their home offices located outside of Indiana and savings
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association holding companies with their principal place of business |ocated outside of Indiana upon receipt of approval by the Indiana Department of Financial
Institutions.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK SYSTEM

The Bank isamember of the FHLB system, which consists of 12 regional banks. The Federal Housing Finance Board (“ FHFB"), an independent agency, controlsthe
FHLB system, including the FHLB of Indianapolis. The FHLB system providesacentral credit facility primarily for member financial institutions. At December 31,
2011, the Bank’ sinvestment in stock of the FHLB of Indianapolis was $4.2 million. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the FHLB of Indianapolis paid
approximately $111,000 in cash dividends to the Bank. Annualized, thisincome would have arate of 2.56%. The rate paid during the period ended December 31, 2011
was higher than the 1.90% paid for the period ended December 31, 2010, primarily due to improvement over the financial difficulties seen in the financial industry, and
inthe FHLB of Indianapolis specificaly, in the last few years.

All 12 FHLBs arerequired to provide funds to establish affordable housing programs through direct loans or interest subsidies on advances to members to be used
for lending at subsidized interest rates for low-and moderate-income, owner-occupied housing projects, affordable rental housing, and certain other community
projects. These contributions and obligations could adversely affect the value of FHLB stock in the future. A reduction in the value of such stock may resultin a
corresponding reduction in the Bank’s capital.

The FHLB of Indianapolis serves asareserve or central bank for its member institutions. It isfunded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of consolidated
obligations of the FHLB system. It makes advances to members in accordance with policies and procedures established by the FHLB and the Board of Directors of
the FHLB of Indianapalis.

All FHLB advances must be fully secured by sufficient collateral as determined by the FHLB. Eligible collateral includes first mortgage |oans not more than 90 days
delinquent or securities evidencing interests therein, securities (including mortgage-backed securities) issued, insured or guaranteed by the federal government or
any agency thereof, cash or FHLB deposits, certain small business and agricultural loans of smaller institutions and real estate with readily ascertainable valuein
which aperfected security interest may be obtained. Other forms of collateral may be accepted as additional security or, under certain circumstances, to renew
outstanding advances. All long-term advances are required to provide funds for residential home financing, and the FHL B has established standards of community
service that members must meet to maintain access to long-term advances.

At December 31, 2011 the Bank had $58.0 million in such borrowings, with an additional $44.0 million available, previously approved by the Board of Directors.

Interest rates charged for advances vary depending upon maturity, the cost of funds to the FHLB of Indianapolis and the purpose of the borrowing.

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

The Federal Reserve requires all depository institutions to maintain noninterest bearing reserves at specified levels against their transaction accounts, which are
primarily checking and NOW accounts, and non-personal time deposits. The effect of these reserve requirementsisto increase the Bank’s cost of funds. At
December 31, 2011, the Bank was in compliance with its reserve requirements.

INSURANCE OF DEPOSITS

Depositsin the Bank are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC up to a maximum amount, which is generally $250,000 per depositor, subject to
aggregation rules. The Bank is subject to deposit insurance assessments by the FDIC pursuant to its regulations establishing arisk-related deposit insurance
assessment system, based upon the institution’s capital levels and risk profile. Under the FDIC' s risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to
one of four risk-weighted categories based on supervisory eval uations, regulatory capital levels, and certain other factors, with lessrisky institutions paying lower
assessments. An institution’sinitial assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned. There are also adjustments to a bank’sinitial assessment
rates based on levels of long-term unsecured debt, secured liabilities in excess of 25% of domestic deposits and, for certain institutions, brokered deposit levels. For
2010, initial assessments ranged from 12 to 45 basis points of assessable deposits, and the Bank paid assessments at the rate of 3.05 basis points for each $100 of
insured deposits. For the first two quarters of 2011, the Bank paid assessments at the rate of 3.82 basis points for each $100 of insured deposits, and for the last two
quarters, paid at the rate of 2.25 basis points for each $100 of average consolidated assets |ess average tangible equity.

The Bank is also subject to assessment for the Financing Corporation (FICO) to service the interest on its bond obligations. The amount assessed on individual
institutions, including the Bank, by FICO isin addition to the amount
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paid for deposit insurance according to the risk-rel ated assessment rate schedule. These assessments will continue until the FICO bonds are repaid between 2017 and
2019. During 2011, the FICO assessment rate ranged between .68 and 1.02 basis points for each $100 of the same assessment bases applicable to the FDIC
assessment. For the first quarter of 2012, the FICO assessment rate is .66 basis points. The Bank expensed deposit insurance assessments (including the FICO
assessments) of $397,000 during the year ended December 31, 2011. Future increasesin deposit insurance premiums or changesin risk classification would increase
the Bank’s deposit related costs.

On December 30, 2009, banks were required to pay the fourth quarter FDIC assessment and to prepay estimated insurance assessments for the years 2010 through
2012 on that date. The prepayment did not affect the Bank’s earnings on that date. The Bank paid an aggregate of $1.9 million in premiums on December 30, 2009, $1.6
million of which constituted prepaid premiums. As of December 31, 2011 $843,000 in prepaid premiums were unused and carried in the financial statements of the
Company.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the FDIC is authorized to set the reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurance Fund at no less than 1.35%, and must achieve the 1.35%
designated reserveratio by September 30, 2020. The FDIC must offset the effect of the increase in the minimum designated reserve ratio from 1.15% to 1.35% on
insured depository institutions of less than $10 billion, and may declare dividends to depository institutions when the reserve ratio at the end of acalendar quarter is
at least 1.5%, although the FDIC has the authority to suspend or limit such permitted dividend declarations. In December, 2010, the FDIC adopted afinal rule setting
the designated reserve ratio for the deposit insurance fund at 2% of estimated insured deposits.

On October 19, 2010, the FDIC proposed a comprehensive long-range plan for deposit insurance fund management with the goals of maintaining a positive fund
balance, even during periods of large fund losses, and maintaining steady, predictable assessment rates throughout economic and credit cycles. The FDIC
determined not to increase assessmentsin 2011 by 3 basis points, as previously proposed, but to keep the current rate schedule in effect. In addition, the FDIC
proposed adopting alower assessment rate schedule when the designated reserve ratio reaches 1.15% so that the average rate over time should be about 8.5 basis
points. In lieu of dividends, the FDIC proposed adopting |ower rate schedul es when the reserve ratio reaches 2% and 2.5%, so that the average rates will decline
about 25 percent and 50 percent, respectively.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the assessment base for deposit insurance premiums was changed from adjusted domestic deposits to average consolidated total assets
minus average tangible equity, affecting assessments for the last two quarters of 2011, as well as future assessments. Tangible equity for this purpose means Tier 1
capital. The new FDIC rule to implement the revised assessment requirements includes rate schedules scaled to the increase in the assessment base, including
schedules that will go into effect when the reserve ratio reaches 1.15%, 2% and 2.5%. The FDIC staff has projected that the new rate schedules will be approximately
revenue neutral.

The schedule would reduce the initial base assessment rate in each of the four risk-based pricing categories.

e For small Risk Category | banks, the rates would range from 5-9 basis points.

e Theproposed ratesfor small institutionsin Risk Categories||, 111 and IV would be 14, 23 and 35 basis points, respectively.

e Forlargeinstitutions and large, highly complex institutions, the proposed rate schedul e ranges from 5 to 35 basis points.
There are al so adjustments made to the initial assessment rates based on long-term unsecured debt, depository institution debt, and brokered deposits. The Bank’s
assessment rate reflected initsinvoices for the September and December 2011 quarters was 2.25 basis points for each $100 of average consolidated assets less
average tangible equity.
The FDIC also revised the assessment system for large depository institutions with over $10 billion in assets.
Due to the recent difficult economic conditions, the FDIC adopted an optional Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program by which, for afee, noninterest bearing
transaction accounts would receive unlimited insurance coverage until June 30, 2010 (which was later extended to December 31, 2010) and, for afee, certain senior
unsecured debt issued by institutions and their hol ding companies between October 13, 2008 and October 31, 2009 would be guaranteed by the FDIC through
December 31, 2012. The Bank made the business decision to participate in the unlimited noninterest bearing transaction account coverage and the Bank and the

Company elected to participate in the unsecured debt guarantee program, but do not expect to receive an FDIC guarantee for any debt under the program.

The Dodd-Frank Act extended unlimited insurance on noninterest bearing accounts for no additional charges through December 31, 2012. Under this program,
traditional noninterest demand deposit (or checking) accounts that allow for
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an unlimited number of transfers and withdrawals at any time, whether held for a business, individual, or other type of depositor, are covered. Later, Congress added
Lawyers Trust Accounts (IOLTA) to this unlimited insurance protection through December 31, 2012.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant increase in insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on the operating
expenses and results of operations of the Bank. Management cannot predict what insurance assessment rateswill be in the future.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution if the FDIC determines, after a hearing, that the institution has engaged or is
engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, isin an unsafe and unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order or any
condition imposed in writing by, or written agreement with, the FDIC. The FDIC may also suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing process for a
permanent termination of insurance if the institution has no tangible capital.

SAVINGS ASSOCIATION REGULATORY CAPITAL

Currently, savings associations are subject to three separate minimum capital-to-assets requirements: (i) aleverage limit, (ii) atangible capital requirement, and (iii) a
risk-based capital requirement. The leverage limit requires that savings associations maintain “core capital” of at least 3% of total assets. Core capital isgenerally
defined as common shareholders' equity (including retained earnings), non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, certain minority equity interests
in subsidiaries, qualifying supervisory goodwill, purchased mortgage servicing rights and purchased credit card relationships (subject to certain limits) less non-
qualifying intangibles. The OCC requires a core capital level of 3% of total adjusted assets for savings associations that receive the highest supervisory rating for
safety and soundness, and no less than 4% for all other savings associations.

Under the tangible capital requirement, a savings association must maintain tangible capital (core capital lessall intangible assets except purchased mortgage
servicing rights which may be included after making the above-noted adjustment in an amount up to 100% of tangible capital) of at least 1.5% of total assets.

Under the risk-based capital requirements, a minimum amount of capital must be maintained by a savings association to account for the relative risksinherent in the
type and amount of assets held by the savings association. The risk-based capital requirement requires a savings association to maintain capital (defined generally
for these purposes as core capital plus general valuation allowances and permanent or maturing capital instruments such as preferred stock and subordinated debt
less assets required to be deducted) equal to 8.0% of risk-weighted assets. Assets are ranked asto risk in one of four categories (0-100%). A credit risk-free asset,
such as cash, requires no risk-based capital, while an asset with a significant credit risk, such as anonaccrual loan, requires arisk factor of 100%. Moreover, a
savings association must deduct from capital, for purposes of meeting the core capital, tangible capital and risk-based capital requirements, its entireinvestment in
and loansto asubsidiary engaged in activities not permissible for anational bank (other than exclusively agency activities for its customers or mortgage banking
subsidiaries).

At December 31, 2011, the Bank was in compliance with al capital requirementsimposed by law. If an association is not in compliance with the capital requirements,
the OCC isrequired to prohibit asset growth and to impose a capital directive that may restrict, among other things, the payment of dividends and officers’
compensation. In addition, the OCC and the FDIC generally are authorized to take enforcement actions against a savings association that failsto meet its capital
reguirements. These actions may include restricting the operations activities of the association, imposing a capital directive, cease and desist order, or civil money
penalties, or imposing harsher measures such as appointing areceiver or conservator or forcing the association to merge into another institution.

HOLDING COMPANY REGULATORY CAPITAL

Effective as of the transfer of regulatory responsibilities from the OTS to the OCC and the Federal Reserve, the Federal Reserve was authorized to establish capital
reguirements for savings and loan holding companies. These capital requirements must be counter-cyclical so that the required amount of capital increasesin times of
economic expansion and decreasesin times of economic contraction, consistent with safety and soundness. Savings and loan holding companies will also be
required to serve as a source of financial strength for their depository institution subsidiaries.

Within five years after the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal Reserveisto apply consolidated capital requirements to depository institution holding
companies that are no less stringent than those currently applied to depository institutions that were not supervised by the Federal Reserve as of May 19, 2010.
Under this provision, the components of Tier 1 capital of depository institution holding companies would be restricted to capital instrumentsthat are currently
considered Tier 1 capital for insured depository institutions. Thus, for the first time savings and loan holding companies will be subject to consolidated capital
requirements. Under these standards, trust preferred securitieswill be excluded from Tier 1 capital unless such securities were issued prior to May 19, 2010, by a
savings
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and loan holding company with less than $15 billion in assets. The Holding Company has issued trust preferred securities, but they were issued prior to May 19,
2010, and therefore are not subject to this new capital restriction.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Holding Company is expected to act as a source of financial strength to the Bank and to commit resources to support the Bank in
circumstances in which the Holding Company might not otherwise do so. This source of financial strength doctrine haslong applied to bank holding companies. For
this purpose, “source of financial strength” means the Holding Company’s ability to provide financial assistance to the Bank, in the form of capital, liquidity, or other
support, in the event of the Bank’s financial distress.

PROMPT CORRECTIVE REGULATORY ACTION

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA™) requires, among other things, that federal bank regulatory authorities take “ prompt
corrective action” with respect to institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements. For these purposes, FDICIA establishes five capital tiers: well
capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized. At December 31, 2011, the Bank was categorized as
“well capitalized,” meaning that itstotal risk-based capital ratio exceeded 10%, its Tier | risk-based capital ratio exceeded 6%, its leverage ratio exceeded 5%, and it
was not subject to aregulatory order, agreement or directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure.

The FDIC may order savings associations which have insufficient capital to take corrective actions. For example, a savings association which is categorized as
“undercapitalized” would be subject to growth limitations and would be required to submit a capital restoration plan, and a holding company that controls such a
savings association would be required to guarantee that the savings association complies with the restoration plan. “ Significantly undercapitalized” savings
associations would be subject to additional restrictions. Savings associations deemed by the FDIC to be “critically undercapitalized” would be subject to the
appointment of areceiver or conservator.

DIVIDEND LIMITATIONS

The OCC, asthe successor regulator to the OTS, also restricts the amount of “capital distributions’ that may be made by savings associations. The applicable
regulation defines a capital distribution as a distribution of cash or other property to a savings association’'s owners, made on account of their ownership. This
definition includes a savings association’s payment of cash dividends to shareholders, or any payment by a savings association to repurchase, redeem, retire, or
otherwise acquire any of its shares or debt instruments that areincluded in total capital, and any extension of credit to finance an affiliate’s acquisition of those
shares or interests. The regulation does not apply to dividends consisting only of a savings association’s shares or rights to purchase such shares.

The regulation requires a savings association to file an application for approval of a proposed capital distribution with the OCC if the association is not eligible for
expedited treatment under the OCC's application processing rules, or the total amount of all capital distributions, including the proposed capital distribution, for the
applicable calendar year would exceed an amount equal to the savings association’s net income for that year to date plus the savings association’s retained net
income for the preceding two years (the “ retained net income standard”). A savings association must also file an application for approval of a proposed capital
distribution if, following the proposed distribution, the association would not be at least adequately capitalized under the OCC prompt corrective action regulations,
or if the proposed distribution would violate a prohibition contained in any applicable statute, regulation, or agreement between the association and the OCC or the
FDIC.

The regulation requires a savings association to file a notice of a proposed capital distribution in lieu of an application if the association or the proposed capital
distribution is not required to file an application, and: (1) the savings association will not be at least as well capitalized (as defined under the OCC prompt corrective
action regulations) following the capital distribution; (2) the capital distribution would reduce the amount of, or retire any part of the savings association’s common
or preferred stock, or retire any part of debt instruments such as notes or debentures included in the association’s capital under the OCC capital regulation; or (3) the
savings association isasubsidiary of asavings and loan holding company. Because the Bank is a subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, this latter
provision requires, at a minimum, that the Bank file a notice with the Federal Reserve (with a copy to the OCC) 30 days before making any capital distributionsto the
Holding Company. During 2011, the Bank paid $2.0 million in dividends to the Holding Company. No dividends to the Holding Company were paid during 2010.

In addition to these regulatory restrictions, the Bank’s Plan of Conversion imposes additional limitations on the amount of capital distributionsit may maketo the
Holding Company. The Plan of Conversion requires the Bank to establish and maintain aliquidation account for the benefit of Eligible Account Holders and
Supplemental Eligible Account Holders and prohibits the Bank from making capital distributions to the Holding Company if its net worth would be reduced below the
amount required for the liquidation account.
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The Holding Company’s declaration of dividendsis subject to Indianalaw, which generally prohibits the payment of dividends to amounts that will not affect the
ability of the Holding Company, after the dividend has been distributed, to pay its debtsin the ordinary course of business. Moreover, such dividends may not
exceed the difference between the Holding Company’ stotal assets and total liabilities plus preferential amounts payable to shareholders with rights superior to those
of the holders of common stock. In addition, the Federal Reserve may prohibit the Holding Company’s payment of dividendsif it concludes such payment would
raise safety and soundness concerns at either the Bank or the Holding Company.

LIMITATIONS ON RATES PAID FOR DEPOSITS

Regulations promul gated by the FDIC pursuant to FDICIA place limitations on the ability of insured depository institutions to accept, renew or roll over deposits by
offering rates of interest which are significantly higher than the prevailing rates of interest on deposits offered by other insured depository institutions having the
same type of charter in theinstitution’s normal market area. Under these regul ations, “well-capitalized” depository institutions may accept, renew, or roll such
deposits over without restriction, “adequately capitalized” depository institutions may accept, renew or roll such deposits over with awaiver from the FDIC (subject
to certain restrictions on payments of rates) and “ undercapitalized” depository institutions may not accept, renew or roll such deposits over. The regulations
contemplate that the definitions of “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized” and “undercapitalized” will be the same as the definition adopted by the agenciesto
implement the corrective action provisions of FDICIA. Management does not believe that these regulations will have amaterially adverse effect on the Bank’s current
operations.

LIQUIDITY

The Financial Regulatory Relief and Economic Efficiency Act of 2000 repeal ed the former statutory requirement that all savings associations maintain an average daily
balance of liquid assets in aminimum amount of not less than 4% or more than 10% of their withdrawabl e accounts plus short-term borrowings. Nevertheless,
savings associations remain subject to the Interagency Policy Statement on Funding and Liquidity Risk Management emphasizing supervisory expectations for
sound liquidity risk management.

SAFETY AND SOUNDNESS STANDARDS

The federal banking agencies have adopted final safety and soundness standards for all insured depository institutions. The standards, which were issued in the
form of guidelines rather than regulations, relate to internal controls, information systems, internal audit systems, loan underwriting and documentation,
compensation, interest rate exposure, asset quality and earnings standards. In general, the standards are designed to assist the federal banking agenciesin
identifying and addressing problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomesimpaired. If an institution fails to meet these standards, the appropriate
federal banking agency may require the institution to submit a compliance plan. Failure to submit a compliance plan may result in enforcement proceedings.

LOANS TO ONE BORROWER

Under OCC regul ations, the Bank may not make aloan or extend credit to asingle or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired capital and surplus.
Additional amounts may be lent, not in excess of 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if such loans or extensions of credit are fully secured by readily marketable
collateral, including certain debt and equity securities but not including real estate. In some cases, a savings association may lend up to 30 percent of unimpaired
capital and surplusto one borrower for purposes of developing domestic residential housing, provided that the association meetsits regulatory capital requirements
and the OCC authorizes the association to use this expanded lending authority. At December 31, 2011, all of the Bank’s loans were within the current legal lending
limit of $6.1 million. While the current economic conditions can quickly change lending relationships, at this time management does not believe that the |oans-to-one-
borrower limitswill have asignificant impact on the Bank’s business operations or earnings.

QUALIFIED THRIFT LENDER

Savings associations must meet a QTL test that requires the association to maintain an appropriate level of qualified thrift investments (“QTIS") (primarily residential
mortgages and related investments, including certain mortgage-related securities) and otherwise to qualify asa QTL. The required percentage of QTIsis 65% of
portfolio assets (defined as all assets minusintangible assets, property used by the association in conducting its business and liquid assets equal to 10% of total
assets). Certain assets are subject to a percentage limitation of 20% of portfolio assets. In addition, savings associations may include shares of stock of the FHLBs,
FNMA, and FHLMC as QTls. Compliance with the QTL test is determined on amonthly basisin nine out of every twelve months. As of December 31, 2011, the Bank
was in compliance with its QTL requirement, with approximately 78.0% of its portfolio assetsinvested in QTls.
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A savings association which fails to meet the QTL test must either convert to abank or be subject to the following penalties: (i) it may not enter into any new activity
except for those permissible for anational bank and for a savings association and (ii) its branching activities shall be limited to those of anational bank. In addition,
under the Dodd-Frank Act, a savings association that fails the QTL test will be prohibited from paying dividends, except for dividends that are permissible for
national banks, are necessary to meet obligations of the company that controls the savings association, and are specifically approved by the OCC and the Federal
Reserve. The failure to satisfy the QTL test may also result in regulatory enforcement action. Three years after failing the QTL test the association must dispose of
any investment or activity not permissible for a national bank and a savings association. If such a savings association is controlled by a savings and loan holding
company, then such holding company must, within a prescribed time period, become registered as a bank holding company and become subject to all rules and
regulations applicable to bank holding companies (including restrictions as to the scope of permissible business activities).

ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSI TIONS AND BRANCHING

The Bank Holding Company Act specifically authorizes abank holding company, upon receipt of appropriate regulatory approvals, to acquire control of any savings
association or holding company thereof wherever located. Similarly, a savings and loan holding company may acquire control of abank. Moreover, federal savings
associations may acquire or be acquired by any insured depository institution. Savings associations acquired by bank holding companies may be converted to
banks, but as such they become subject to branching and activity restrictions applicable to banks.

Subject to certain exceptions, commonly-controlled banks and savings associations must reimburse the FDIC for any losses suffered in connection with afailed bank
or savings association affiliate. Institutions are commonly controlled if oneis owned by another or if both are owned by the same holding company. Such claims by
the FDIC under this provision are subordinate to claims of depositors, secured creditors, and holders of subordinated debt, other than affiliates.

The OCC administers regulations which permit nationwide branching to the extent permitted by federal statute. Federal statutes permit federal savings associationsto
branch outside of their home state if the association meets the domestic building and loan test in §7701(a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code") or the asset composition test of §7701(c) of the Code. Branching that would result in the formation of a multiple savings and loan holding company
controlling savings associations in more than one state is permitted if the law of the state in which the savings association to be acquired is located specifically
authorizes acquisitions of its state-chartered associations by state-chartered associations or their holding companiesin the state where the acquiring association or
holding company islocated. Moreover, Indiana banks and savings associ ations are permitted to acquire other Indiana banks and savings associations and to
establish branches throughout Indiana.

Finally, The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the “Riegle-Neal Act”) permits bank holding companies to acquire banksin other
states and, with state consent and subject to certain limitations, allows banks to acquire out-of-state branches either through merger or de novo expansion. The State
of Indianaenacted | egislation establishing interstate branching provisions for | ndiana state-chartered banks consistent with those established by the Riegle-Neal Act
(the “Indiana Branching Law”). The Indiana Branching Law, which became effective in 1996, authorizes Indiana banks to branch interstate by merger or de novo
expansion, provided that such transactions are not permitted to out-of-state banks unless the laws of their home states permit Indiana banks to merge or establish de
novo banks on areciprocal basis. The Dodd-Frank Act authorizes state or national banks to open de novo branches in states as long as a state bank chartered in that
state could open the branch. Thus, the state’s permission for such de novo branchesis no longer required.

CONSUMER FINANCIAL PROTECTION BUREAU

The Dodd-Frank Act creates anew, independent federal agency called the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”), which is granted broad rulemaking,
supervisory and enforcement powers under various federal consumer financial protection laws, including the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, Truth in Lending Act,
Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Fair Credit Reporting Act, Fair Debt Collection Act, the Consumer Financial Privacy provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
and certain other statutes. The CFPB will have examination and primary enforcement authority with respect to depository institutions with $10 billion or morein
assets. Smaller institutions will be subject to rules promulgated by the CFPB but will continue to be examined and supervised by federal banking regulators for
consumer compliance purposes. The CFPB will have authority to prevent unfair, deceptive or abusive practices in connection with the offering of consumer financial
products. The Dodd-Frank Act authorizes the CFPB to establish certain minimum standards for the origination of residential mortgages including a determination of
the borrower’s ability to repay. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act will allow borrowers to raise certain defensesto foreclosure if they receive any loan other than a
“qualified mortgage” as defined by the CFPB. The Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt consumer protection laws and standards that are more stringent than
those adopted at the federal level and, in
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certain circumstances, permits state attorneys general to enforce compliance with both the state and federal 1aws and regul ations. Federal preemption of state
consumer protection law requirements, traditionally an attribute of the federal savings association or national bank charter, has also been modified by the Dodd-Frank
Act and now requires a case-by-case determination of preemption by the OCC and eliminates preemption for subsidiaries of such abank.

MORTGAGE REFORM AND ANTI-PREDATORY LENDING

Title X1V of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Mortgage Reform and Anti-Predatory Lending Act, includes a series of amendmentsto the Truth In Lending Act with respect to
mortgage loan origination standards affecting, among other things, originator compensation, minimum repayment standards and prepayments. With respect to
mortgage | oan originator compensation, except in limited circumstances, an originator is prohibited from receiving compensation that varies based on the terms of the
loan (other than the principal amount). The amendmentsto the Truth In Lending Act also prohibit a creditor from making aresidential mortgage loan unlessit
determines, based on verified and documented information of the consumer’s financial resources, that the consumer has areasonable ability to repay theloan. The
amendments al so prohibit certain prepayment penalties and require creditors offering a consumer a mortgage loan with a prepayment penalty to offer the consumer
the option of a mortgage loan without such a penalty. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act expands the definition of a*high-cost mortgage” under the Truth In Lending
Act, and imposes new reguirements on high-cost mortgages and new disclosure, reporting and notice requirements for residential mortgage loans, as well as new
reguirements with respect to escrows and appraisal practices.

INTERCHANGE FEESFOR DEBIT CARDS

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, interchange fees for debit card transactions must be reasonable and proportional to the issuer’sincremental cost incurred with respect to
the transaction plus certain fraud related costs. Although institutions with total assets of less than $10 billion are exempt from this requirement, competitive pressures
arelikely to require smaller depository institutions to reduce fees with respect to these debit card transactions.

TRANSACTIONSWITH AFFILIATES

The Bank is subject to Sections 22(h), 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, which limits credit transactions between a bank or savings association and its
executive officers and its affiliates. These provisions also prescribe terms and conditions deemed to be consistent with safe and sound banking practices for
transactions between afinancial institution and its affiliates, and restrict the types of collateral security permitted in connection with afinancial institution’s extension
of credit to an affiliate.

FEDERAL SECURITIESLAW

The shares of Common Stock of the Holding Company have been registered with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act (the “ 1934 Act”). The Holding Company
is subject to theinformation, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules of the SEC thereunder. If the Holding
Company has fewer than 300 shareholders, it may deregister its shares under the 1934 Act and cease to be subject to the foregoing requirements.

Shares of Common Stock held by persons who are affiliates of the Holding Company may not be resold without registration unless sold in accordance with the resale
restrictions of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. If the Holding Company meets the current public information requirements under Rule 144, each affiliate of
the Holding Company who complies with the other conditions of Rule 144 (including those that require the affiliate’s sale to be aggregated with those of certain other
persons) would be able to sell in the public market, without registration, a number of shares not to exceed, in any three-month period, the greater of (i) 1% of the
outstanding shares of the Holding Company or (ii) the average weekly volume of trading in such shares during the preceding four calendar weeks.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, beginning in 2013, the Holding Company will be required to provide its sharehol ders an opportunity to vote on the executive
compensation payable to its named executive officers and on golden parachute payments made in connection with mergers or acquisitions. These votes will be non-
binding and advisory. Beginning in 2013, the Holding Company must also permit shareholders to determine on an advisory basis whether such votes should be held
every one, two, or three years.

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The Holding Company is subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the“ Sarbanes-Oxley Act”). The Sarbanes-Oxley Act’s stated goal s include enhancing corporate
responsibility, increasing penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded companies and protecting investors by improving the accuracy and
reliability of corporate disclosures pursuant to the securities laws. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally appliesto all companiesthat file or are required to file periodic
reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1934 Act.
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Among other things, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act creates the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board as an independent body subject to SEC supervision with
responsibility for setting auditing, quality control and ethical standards for auditors of public companies. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act also requires public companiesto
make faster and more-extensive financial disclosures, requires the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of public companiesto provide signed
certifications as to the accuracy and completeness of financial information filed with the SEC, and provides enhanced criminal and civil penalties for violations of the
federal securitieslaws.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act also addresses functions and responsibilities of audit committees of public companies. The statute makes the audit committee directly
responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of the company’s outside auditor, and requires the auditor to report directly to the audit
committee. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act authorizes each audit committee to engage independent counsel and other advisors, and requires a public company to provide
the appropriate funding, as determined by its audit committee, to pay the company’s auditors and any advisors that its audit committee retains. The Sarbanes-Oxley
Act also requires public companiesto include an internal control report and assessment by management in their annual reports to stockholders.

Asasmall reporting company, under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Holding Company is not subject to any obligation to have an auditor attestation to the effectiveness of
its controlsincluded in its annual report.

Although the Holding Company will continue to incur additional expense in complying with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the resulting regul ations,
management does not expect that such compliance will have amaterial impact on the Holding Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT MATTERS

Federal law requires that ratings of depository institutions under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA™) be disclosed. The disclosure includes both a
four-unit descriptive rating (specifically, outstanding, satisfactory, needs to improve, and substantial noncompliance) and awritten evaluation of an institution’s
performance. Each FHLB isrequired to establish standards of community investment or service that its members must maintain for continued access to long-term
advances from the FHLBs. The standards take into account a member’s performance under the CRA and its record of lending to first-time home buyers. The OCC has
designated the Bank’s record of meeting community credit needs as satisfactory.

PREDATORY LENDING

The Federal Reserve Board issued a regulation that became effective on October 1, 2002 that is aimed at curbing “ predatory lending.” The term “ predatory lending”
encompasses a variety of practices, but the term generally is used to refer to abusive lending practicesinvolving fraud, deception or unfairness. Predatory lending
typically involves one or more of the following: (i) making unaffordable |oans based on the assets of the borrower rather than on the borrower’s ahility to repay an
obligation (“asset-based lending”); (ii) inducing a borrower to refinance aloan repeatedly in order to charge high points and fees each time the loan is refinanced
(“loan flipping™); or (iii) engaging in fraud or deception to conceal the true nature of the loan obligation from an unsuspecting or unsophisticated borrower. The
Federal Reserve Board amended Regulation Z to broaden the scope of |oans subject to the protections of the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994
(“HOEPA™). Among other things, the regulation brings within the scope of HOEPA first-lien mortgage loans with interest rates that are at | east 8 percentage points
above Treasury securities having a comparable maturity. In addition, the regulation requires that the cost of optional insurance and similar debt protection products
paid by aborrower at closing be included in cal culating the finance charge paid by the borrower. HOEPA coverageistriggered if such finance charges exceed 8
percent of the total loan. Finally, the regulation restricts creditors from engaging in repeated refinancings of their own HOEPA loans over a short time period when
the transactions are not in the borrower’s interest. Lenders that violate the rules face cancellation of loans and penalties equal to the finance charges paid. The Bank
does not anticipate that these provisions, or any similar state predatory lending regulations, will materially affect itsfinancial condition or results of operations.

USA PATRIOT ACT OF 2001

The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 (the“PATRIOT Act”) isintended to strengthen the ability of U.S. Law Enforcement to combat terrorism on avariety of fronts. The
PATRIOT Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and requires financial institutions to implement additional policies and
procedures with respect to, or additional measures designed to address, any or all the following matters, anong others: money laundering, suspicious activities and
currency transaction reporting, and currency crimes. Many of the provisionsin the PATRIOT Act were to have expired December 31, 2005, but the U.S. Congress
authorized renewal s that extended the provisions until March 10, 2006. In early March 2006, the U.S. Congress approved the USA PATRIOT Improvement and
Reauthorization Act of 2005 (the “ Reauthorization Act”) and the USA PATRIOT Act Additional Reauthorizing Amendments Act of 2006 (the “PATRIOT Act
Amendments”), and they were signed into law by
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President Bush on March 9, 2006. The Reauthorization Act makes permanent all but two of the provisions that had been set to expire and provides that the remaining
two provisions, which relate to surveillance and the production of business records under the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act, will expirein four years. The
PATRIOT Act Amendments include provisions allowing recipients of certain subpoenasto obtain judicial review of nondisclosure orders and clarifying the use of
certain subpoenas to obtain information from libraries. Management does not believe that these laws will have a significant impact on the Bank’s business operations
or earnings.

RECENT LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENTS

In response to unprecedented financial market turmoil, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA™) was enacted on October 3, 2008. EESA authorized
the U.S. Treasury Department to provide up to $700 billion in funding for the financial servicesindustry. Pursuant to the EESA, the Treasury was initially authorized
to use $350 hillion for the Troubled Asset Relief Program (“ TARP"). Of this amount, the Treasury allocated $250 billion to the TARP Capital Purchase Program
(“CPP"). The CPP alowsfinancia institutions, like the Holding Company, to issue non-voting preferred stock to the Treasury in an amount ranging between 1% and
3% of itstotal risk-weighted assets. The Holding Company decided not to participatein the TARP CPP.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA"), signed into law on February 17, 2009, amended the EESA asit appliesto institutions that receive
financial assistance under TARP. ARRA, more commonly known as the economic stimulus or economic recovery package, includes awide variety of programs
intended to stimul ate the economy and provide for extensive infrastructure, energy, health, and education needs. In addition, ARRA imposes certain new executive
compensation and corporate expenditure limits on all current and future TARP recipients until the institution has repaid the Treasury.

In addition, on July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act, which significantly changes the regulation of financial institutions and the
financial servicesindustry. The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions affecting large and small financial institutions alike, including several provisions that will
profoundly affect how community banks, thrifts, and small bank and thrift holding companies, such as the Holding Company, will be regulated in the future. Among
other things, these provisions abolish the Office of Thrift Supervision and transfer its functions to the other federal banking agencies, relax rules regarding interstate
branching, allow financial institutions to pay interest on business checking accounts, change the scope of federal deposit insurance coverage, and impose new
capital requirements on bank and thrift holding companies. The Dodd-Frank Act also establishes the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection as an independent
entity within the Federal Reserve, which will be given the authority to promulgate consumer protection regulations applicable to all entities offering consumer
financial services or products, including banks. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act includes a series of provisions covering mortgage |oan origination standards
affecting, among other things, originator compensation, minimum repayment standards, and pre-payments. The Dodd-Frank Act contains numerous other provisions
affecting financial institutions of all types, many of which may have an impact on the operating environment of the Holding Company in substantial and
unpredictable ways. Consequently, the Dodd-Frank Act islikely to affect our cost of doing business, it may limit or expand our permissible activities, and it may
affect the competitive balance within our industry and market areas. The nature and extent of future legislative and regulatory changes affecting financial institutions,
including as aresult of the Dodd-Frank Act, isvery unpredictable at thistime. The Holding Company’s management is actively reviewing the provisions of the Dodd-
Frank Act and assessing its probable impact on the business, financial condition, and results of operations of the Holding Company. However, the ultimate effect of
the Dodd-Frank Act on the financial servicesindustry in general, and the Holding Company in particular, isuncertain at thistime.

Before and after EESA, ARRA, and the Dodd-Frank Act, there have been numerous actions by the Federal Reserve, Congress, the Treasury, the FDIC, the SEC and
othersto further the economic and banking industry stabilization efforts. Those measures include, among others, homeowner relief that encourages |oan
restructuring and modification; the establishment of significant liquidity and credit facilities for financial institutions and investment banks; the lowering of the
federal funds rate, emergency action against short selling practices; and coordinated international effortsto addressilliquidity and other weaknesses in the banking
sector. It remains unclear at thistime what further legislative and regulatory measures will be implemented that could affect the Company.

TAXATION
FEDERAL TAXATION

Historically, savings associations, such as the Bank, have been permitted to compute bad debt deductions using either the bank experience method or the percentage
of taxable income method. However, for years beginning after December 31, 1995, the Bank can no longer use the percentage of taxable income method of computing
its allowable tax bad debt deduction and instead must compute its allowable deduction using the experience method. In addition, the pre-1988 reserve, for which no
deferred taxes have been recorded, will not have to be recaptured into income
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unless (i) the Bank no longer qualifies as a bank under the Code or (ii) excess dividends or distributions are paid out by the Bank or the Bank redeems its own stock.

Depending on the composition of itsitems of income and expense, a savings association may be subject to the alternative minimum tax. A savings association must
pay an aternative minimum tax equal to the amount (if any) by which 20% of alternative minimum taxable income (“AMTI"), as reduced by an exemption varying with
AMTI, exceeds theregular tax due. AMTI equals regular taxable income increased or decreased by certain tax preferences and adjustments, including depreciation
deductionsin excess of that allowable for alternative minimum tax purposes, tax-exempt interest on most private activity bondsissued after August 7, 1986 (reduced
by any related interest expense disallowed for regular tax purposes), the amount of the bad debt reserve deduction claimed in excess of the deduction based on the
experience method and 75% of the excess of adjusted current earnings over AMTI (before this adjustment and before any alternative tax net operating loss). AMTI
may be reduced only up to 90% by net operating loss carryovers, but aternative minimum tax paid can be credited against regular tax due in later years.

For federal income tax purposes, the Company has been reporting itsincome and expenses on the accrual method of accounting. The Company’sfederal income tax
returns have not been audited in recent years.

STATE TAXATION

The Company is subject to Indiana's Financial Bank Tax (“IFBT"), which isimposed at aflat rate of 8.5% on apportioned “adjusted grossincome.” “ Adjusted gross
income,” for purposes of IFBT, begins with taxable income as defined by Section 63 of the Code and, thus, incorporates federal tax law to the extent that it affects the
computation of taxable income. Federal taxable income isthen adjusted by several Indiana modifications. Other applicable state taxes include generally applicable
sales and use taxes plusreal and personal property taxes. The Company’s state income tax returns have not been audited in recent years.

The Company is subject to Kentucky’s Bank Franchise Tax (“KBFT”), which isimposed at aflat rate of 1.1% on apportioned “net capital.” For purposes of the KBFT,
“net capital” isdetermined by (1) adding together the Company’s paid-in capital stock, surplus, undivided profits, capital reserves, net unrealized gains or losses on
certain securities, and cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments and (2) deducting from the total an amount equal to the same percentage of the total asthe
book value of U.S. obligations and Kentucky obligations bears to the book value of the total assets of the Company. “Kentucky obligations” are all obligations of the
state, counties, municipalities, taxing districts, and school districtsthat are exempt from taxation under Kentucky law. Other applicable state taxesinclude generally
applicable sales and use taxes as well as Kentucky bank deposit and local deposit taxes which are generally imposed on the Company with respect to the deposits of
Kentucky resident individuals at rates of .001% and .025%, respectively.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Not applicable.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The following table provides certain information with respect to the Bank’s offices as of December 31, 2011.

Total Deposits

Net Book Value of
Property, Furniture
& Fixtures

Approximate Square

Description and Address Owned or L eased Year Opened (in thousands) (in thousands) Footage
L ocationsin Madison, Indiana:
Downtown Office:
233 East Main Street Owned 1952 54901 $ 319 9,110
Drive-Through Branch:
401 East Main Street Owned 1984 - 221 420
Hilltop Location:
430 Clifty Drive Owned 1983 156,074 2,515 18,696
Wal-Mart Banking Center:
567 Ivy Tech Drive Leased 1995 7,526 11 517
L ocation in Hanover, Indiana:
10 Medical Plaza Drive Owned 1995 13,293 408 1,344
L ocation in Charlestown, Indiana:
1025 Highway 62 Leased/L and 2002 7,468 516 1,500
Location in Sellersburg, Indiana:
Highway 311 Owned 2005 30,520 2,491 13,000
Location in Floyds Knabs, Indiana
3660 Paoli Pike Leased 2008 10,872 441 3,000
Location in Carrollton, Kentucky:
1501 Highland Avenue L eased 2003 3,635 201 1,656
Location in New Albany, Indiana
2675 Charlestown Road Owned 2010 20,937 542 6,000

In addition to the assets owned by the Bank, Madison First Services, a subsidiary of the Bank, owns two pieces of land, one in Madison, Indiana and the second in
Charlestown, Indiana, both held for future expansion of the Company. Total book value of thisland at December 31, 2011 was $426,000.

The Bank owns computer and data processing equipment which is used for transaction processing, loan origination, and accounting. The net book value of
electronic data processing equi pment owned by the Bank was approximately $435,000 at December 31, 2011.

The Bank operates 14 automated teller machines (“ATMSs"), one at each office location (the main office has two), one at Hanover College, in Hanover, Indiana, onein
the Big Lots parking lot in Madison, one at the Clark County Jail in Jeffersonville, Indiana, and one at Butler Mall in Carrolton, Kentucky. The Bank'sATMs

participate in the Passport® network.

The Bank performs its own data processing and reporting services.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Neither the Holding Company nor the Bank is a party to any pending legal proceedings, other than routine litigation incidental to the Holding Company’s or the

Bank’s business.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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ITEM 4.5, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The executive officers of the Holding Company are identified below. The executive officers of the Bank are elected annually by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors.

Name Position with the Holding Company Position with the Bank

Matthew P. Forrester President and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Executive Officer
Lonnie D. Collins Secretary Secretary

Vickie L. Grimes Treasurer Vice President of Finance

Anthony D. Brandon Executive Vice President

Mark A. Goley Vice President of Lending

William H. Hensler Vice President — Wealth Management
John Muessel Vice President — Trust Officer

Robert E. Kleehamer Sr. Vice President — Business Devel opment

Matthew P. Forrester (age 55) has served as the Bank and Holding Company President and Chief Executive Officer since October 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Forrester
served as Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer for Home Loan Bank and its holding company, Home Bancorp, in Fort Wayne, Indiana. Prior to
joining Home Loan Bank, Mr. Forrester was an examiner for the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions. Mr. Forrester also serves as a Director of the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Indianapoalis.

LonnieD. Collins (age 63) has served as Secretary of the Bank since September 1994 and as Secretary of the Holding Company since 1996. Mr. Collins has al'so
practiced law since October 1975 and has served as the Bank’s outside counsel since 1980.

Vickie L. Grimes (age 56) has served as Vice President - Finance since May of 2007. Prior to that she acted as Controller for the Bank from September of 2006 until
May of 2007. She also served asthe Bank’s Internal Auditor from 2003 to September 2006, and as an accountant with the Bank from 2000 to 2003. Prior to that, she
served as the Accounting Manager for afinancial institution in Pueblo, Colorado.

Anthony D. Brandon (age 40) has served as Executive Vice President since July 29, 2005, and as Vice President of Loan Administration of the Bank since September
of 2001. Prior to his appointment as Executive Vice President, he served as Vice President of Loan Administration. Prior to joining the Bank, he served as President of
Republic Bank of Indiana.

Mark A. Goley (age 56) has served as Vice President of Loan Services since 1997. From 1989 to 1997, he served as Senior Loan Officer for Citizens.

William H. Hensler (age 48) has served as Vice President — Wealth Management since June of 2006. Prior to joining the Bank he served as afinancial consultant with
Hilliard Lyons.

John Muessel (age 59) has served as Vice President — Trust Officer since April of 2002. Prior to joining the Bank, he served as Trust Officer of National City Bank of
Indiana.

Robert E. Kleehamer (age 69) has served as Senior Vice President — Business Development since October 2009 and was named an executive officer of the Holding
Company in April 2010. From June 2008 to October 2009, he served as Vice President for the Bank in the same position. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Area
President for First Harrison Bank, and President and organizing director of Hometown National Bank, a de novo bank opened in March of 1997, later sold to First
Harrison Bank.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Market Information and Dividends

There were 1,514,472 common shares of River Valley Bancorp outstanding at February 24, 2011, held of record by approximately 306 shareholders. The number of
sharehol ders does not reflect the number of persons or entities who may hold stock in nominee or “street name.” Since December 1996, the Company’s common
shares have been listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market (formerly called the NASDAQ SmallCap Market) (“NASDAQ"), under the symbol “RIVR.” On December 26,
2003, the shares of River Valley underwent a 2-for-1 stock split in order to create amore liquid market for the stock.

Presented below are the high and low sale prices for the Holding Company’s common shares, as well as cash distributions paid thereon since January 2010. Such
sales prices do not include retail financial markups, markdowns or commissions. Information relating to sales prices has been obtained from NASDAQ.

Cash

Quarter Ended High L ow Distributions
2011

December 31 $ 15.50 $ 15.44 $ 0.21

September 30 16.02 16.02 0.21

June 30 16.25 16.25 0.21

March 31 15.55 14.30 0.21
2010

December 31 $ 16.00 $ 13.49 $ 0.21

September 30 15.80 13.34 0.21

June 30 15.70 13.12 0.21

March 31 14.88 12.42 0.21

The high and low sale prices for the Holding Company’s common shares between December 31, 2011 and February 24, 2012, were $15.75 and $14.60, respectively.

Under OCC regulations applicable to converted savings associations, River Valley Financial is not permitted to pay a cash dividend on its common shares if the
regulatory capital of River Valley Financial would, asaresult of the payment of such dividend, be reduced below the amount required for the liquidation account
(which was established for the purpose of granting alimited priority claim on the assets of River Valley Financial, in the event of a complete liquidation, to those
members of River Valley Financial beforeits conversion from mutual to stock form who continue to maintain a savings account at River Valley Financial) or applicable
regulatory capital requirements prescribed by the OCC.

Regulations of the OCC impose limitations on the payment of dividends and other capital distributions by savings associations. Because the Bank isasubsidiary of a
savings and loan holding company, it is required to file anotice with the Federal Reserve (with acopy to the OCC) 30 days before making any capital distributionsto
the Holding Company. It may also have to file an application for approval of a proposed capital distribution with the OCC if the Bank is not eligible for expedited
treatment under the OCC' s application processing rules, or if the total amount of all capital distributions, including the proposed capital distribution, for the
applicable calendar year would exceed an amount equal to the Bank’s net earnings for that year to date plus the Bank'’s retained net earnings for the preceding two
years. The Bank must also file an application for approval of aproposed capital distribution if, following the proposed distribution, the Bank would not be adequately
capitalized under the OCC prompt corrective action regulations, or if the proposed distribution would violate a prohibition contained in any applicable statute,
regulation, or agreement between the Bank and the OCC or the FDIC. The FDIC also has authority under current law to prohibit abank from paying dividendsif, inits
opinion, the payment of dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice in light of the Bank’s financial condition.

Since the Holding Company has no independent operation or other subsidiaries to generate income, its ability to accumulate earnings for the payment of cash
dividendsto its sharehol ders directly depends upon the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to the Holding Company and upon the earnings on its investment
securities.

Any dividend distributions by the Bank to the Holding Company in excess of current or accumulated earnings and profits will be treated for federal income tax
purposes as a distribution from the Bank’s accumulated bad debt reserves, which could result in increased federal income tax liability for the Bank.
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Generally, thereis no Federal Reserve regulatory restriction on the payment of dividends by the Holding Company unless there is a determination by the Federal
Reserve that there is reasonable cause to believe that the payment of dividends constitutes a seriousrisk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of the Bank.
Indianalaw, however, would prohibit the Holding Company from paying adividend, if, after giving effect to the payment of that dividend, the Holding Company
would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business or the Holding Company’s total assets would be |ess than the sum of its total
liabilities plus preferential rights of holders of preferred stock, if any.

In November 2009, the Company issued 5,000 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A. For so long as any of these preferred shares
remain outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Company’s common stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends on the preferred
shares have been or will befirst paidin full.

Equity Compensation Plans

The “Equity Compensation Plan Information” contained in Part 111, Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K isincorporated herein by reference.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no shares repurchased during the three-month period ending December 31, 2011.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Thefollowing tables set forth certain information concerning the consolidated financial condition, earnings, and other data regarding River Valley at the dates and for
the periodsindicated. The following selected financial datais qualified by reference to and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the Notes thereto, presented in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Dataand in Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected consolidated financial condition data: (In thousands)
Total amount of:

Assets $ 406,643 $ 386,609 $ 396,162 $ 372344 $ 350,061

Loans receivable - net 253,096 265,448 276,591 285,304 258,628

Cash and cash equivalents 18,714 16,788 13,387 10,033 8,137

Investment securities 104,689 75,231 79,561 52,284 58,999

Deposits 305,226 286,337 276,586 247,777 219,682

FHL B advances and other borrowings 65,217 65,217 86,217 97,217 102,217

Stockholders’ equity 32,957 31,468 30,715 24,540 25,677

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Summary of consolidated income data: (In thousands, except share data)
Total interest income $ 17,712 $ 18634 $ 19187 $ 20335 $ 20,558
Total interest expense 5,823 7,301 9,322 10,876 12,334
Net interest income 11,889 11,333 9,865 9,459 8,224
Provision for losses on loans 2,771 2,645 2,883 1,080 562
Net interest income after provision for losses on loans 9,118 8,688 6,982 8,379 7,662
Other income 3,008 3,902 4,168 3212 2,992
General, administrative and other expense 10,251 9,718 9,304 8,383 7,675
Income before income tax expense 1,875 2,872 1,846 3,208 2,979
Income tax expense 103 552 150 713 770

Net income 1,772 2,320 1,696 2,495 2,209
Preferred stock dividends 362 363 26 — —
Net income available to common shareholders $ 1410 $ 1957 $ 1670 $ 24% $ 2,209
Basic earnings per share $ 093 $ 130 $ 110 $ 154 3 1.36
Diluted earnings per share $ 093 $ 129 $ 109 $ 153 $ 1.34

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected financial ratiosand other data:
Interest rate spread during period 3.02% 2.83% 2.43% 2.51% 2.25%
Net yield on interest-earning assets (1) 3.19 3.05 2.68 281 2.56
Return on assets (2) 45 .59 A4 .69 .64
Return on equity (3) 5.41 7.23 6.48 9.71 8.92
Equity to assets (4) 8.10 8.14 7.75 6.59 7.21
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing

ligbilities 11121 111.13 109.48 109.08 108.11
Non-performing assets to total assets (4) 4.74 4.53 2.30 .35 .57
Allowance for loan losses to total |oans outstanding (4) 1.56 141 94 .82 .83
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans (4) (6) 40.59 36.66 36.27 226.22 120.99
Net charge-offs to average total loans outstanding .98 .53 94 .32 21
General, administrative and other expense to average assets (5) 2.59 247 2.39 2.34 2.23
Dividend payout ratio 90.32 65.12 77.06 54.90 60.45
Number of full service offices (4) 9 9 8 8 7

(1) Netinterestincome divided by average interest-earning assets.

(2) Net earnings divided by average total assets.

(3) Net earnings divided by average total equity.

(4) Atend of period.

(5) General, administrative and other expense divided by average total assets.

(6) Performing troubled debt restructured loans have been excluded from non-performing loans.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTSOF OPERATION.
General

Asdiscussed previously, the Holding Company was incorporated for the primary purpose of owning all of the outstanding shares of River Valley Financial. Asa
result, the discussion that follows focuses on River Valley Financia’s financial condition and results of operations for the periods presented. The following
discussion and analysis of the financial condition as of December 31, 2011, and results of operationsfor periods prior to that date, should be read in conjunction with
the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto, included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In addition to the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements appear in anumber of placesin this Form 10-K and include statements regarding the intent, belief, outlook, estimate
or expectations of the Company, itsdirectors or its officers, primarily with respect to future events and the future financial performance of the Company. Readers are
cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future events or performance and involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s
operations and actual results could differ significantly from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Some of the factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences are discussed herein but also include, but are not limited to, changes in the economy and interest rates in the nation and River Valley Financial’s
general market area; loss of deposits and loan demand to other financial institutions; substantial changesin financial markets; changesin real estate values and the
real estate market; regulatory changes; or turmoil and government intervention in the financial servicesindustry. The forward-looking statements contained herein
include those with respect to the effect future changesin interest rates may have on financial condition and results of operations, and management’s opinion asto
the effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations of recent accounting pronouncements not yet in effect.

Effect of Current Events

The global and U.S. economies have been experiencing significantly reduced business activity as aresult of, among other factors, disruptionsin the financial system
for aprolonged period. Dramatic declines in the housing market, with falling home prices and increasing foreclosures and unemployment, have resulted in significant
write-downs of asset values by financial institutions, including government-sponsored entities and major commercial and investment banks. These write-downs,
initially of mortgage-backed securities but spreading to credit default swaps and other derivative securities, have caused many financial institutions to seek
additional capital, to merge with larger and stronger institutions and, in some cases, to fail.

Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced,
and in some cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowers, including other financial institutions. The availability of credit, confidence in the financial sector, and
level of volatility in the financial markets have been significantly adversely affected as aresult. The volatility and disruption in the capital and credit markets has
reached unprecedented levels. In some cases, the markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices and credit capacity for certain issuers without regard to
thoseissuers’ underlying financial strength.

Further adverse effects on the U.S. banking and financial industries as well as on the broader U.S. and global economies could have an adverse effect on the
Company and its business.

Thelevel of turmoil in the financial servicesindustry continues to present unusual risks and challenges for the Company, as described below:

The Current Economic Environment Poses Challenges For Us and Could Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations. We are operating
in achallenging and uncertain economic environment, including generally uncertain national conditions and local conditionsin our markets. The capital and credit
markets have been experiencing volatility and disruption for several years. The risks associated with our business become more acute in periods of a slowing
economy or slow growth. Financial institutions continue to be affected by sharp declinesin the real estate market and constrained financial markets. While we are
taking steps to decrease and limit our exposure to problem loans, we nonetheless retain direct exposure to the residential and commercial real estate markets, and we
are affected by these events.

Our loan portfolio includes commercial real estate |oans, residential mortgage loans, and construction and land development loans. Continued declinesin real estate

values, home sales volumes and financial stress on borrowers as aresult of the uncertain economic environment, including job losses, could have an adverse effect
on our borrowers or their customers, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
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deterioration in local economic conditionsin our markets could drive losses beyond that which is provided for in our allowance for loan losses and result in the
following other consequences: increases in loan delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosures may increase; demand for our products and services may decline;
deposits may decrease, which would adversely impact our liquidity position; and collateral for our loans, especially real estate, may declinein value, in turn reducing
customers' borrowing power, and reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with our existing loans.

Impact of Recent and Future Legislation. Congress and the Treasury Department have adopted | egislation and taken actions to address the disruptionsin the
financial system and declines in the housing market. The actual impact that measures undertaken to alleviate the credit crisiswill have on the financial marketsis
unknown. The failure of such measures to help stabilize the financial markets, and a continuation or worsening of current financial market conditions, could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, accessto credit or the trading price of our common stock. Finally, there can be no
assurance regarding the specific impact that such measures may have on us and no assurance whether or to what extent we will be able to benefit from such
programs.

In addition to the | egislation mentioned above, federal and state governments could pass additional |egislation responsive to current credit conditions. Asan
example, the Bank could experience higher credit losses because of federal or state legislation or regulatory action that reduces the amount the Bank’s borrowers are
otherwise contractually required to pay under existing loan contracts. Also, the Bank could experience higher credit losses because of federal or state legislation or
regulatory action that limits the Bank’s ability to foreclose on property or other collateral or makes foreclosure less economically feasible.

Also, as described in Part I, Item 1 — Regul ation, the Dodd-Frank Act will cause widespread changes, already eliminating the OTS and making the OCC the primary
regulator of the Bank and the Federal Reserve the primary regulator of the Holding Company as of July 21, 2011. At thistime, we cannot determine the specific impact
thislegislation will have on the Holding Company or the Bank.

Additional Increasesin Insurance Premiums. The FDIC insures the Bank’s deposits up to certain limits. Current economic conditions have increased expectations
for bank failures. The FDIC takes control of failed banks and ensures payment of deposits up to insured limits using the resources of the Deposit Insurance Fund.
The FDIC charges us premiums to maintain the Deposit |nsurance Fund. The FDIC has set the Deposit I nsurance Fund long-term target reserveratio at 2% of insured
deposits. Due to recent bank failures, the FDIC insurance fund reserve ratio has fallen below the statutory minimum. The FDIC hasimplemented arestoration plan
beginning January 1, 2009, that is intended to return the reserve ratio to an acceptable level. Further increasesin premium assessments are al so possible and would
increase the Company’s expenses. Effective with the June 2011 reporting period, the FDIC changed the assessment from a deposit-based assessment to an asset-
based assessment, and reeval uated the base rate assessed to financial institutions. Asaresult of these changes, the Company experienced a decrease in premiums.
However, increased assessment rates and special assessments could have amaterial impact on the Company’ s results of operations.

The Soundness of Other Financial I nstitutions Could Adversely Affect Us. Financial servicesinstitutions are interrelated as aresult of trading, clearing,
counterparty, or other relationships. We have exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and we routinely execute transactions with counterpartiesin
the financial servicesindustry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and hedge funds, and other institutional clients. Many of
these transactions expose us to credit risk in the event of default by our counterparty or client. In addition, our credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held
by us cannot be realized or isliquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due us. Thereis no assurance that any
such losses would not materially and adversely affect our results of operations or earnings.

Future Reduction in Liquidity in the Banking System. The Federal Reserve Bank has been providing vast amounts of liquidity into the banking system to
compensate for weaknesses in short-term borrowing markets and other capital markets. A reduction in the Federal Reserve's activities or capacity could reduce
liquidity in the markets, thereby increasing funding costs to the Bank or reducing the availability of fundsto the Bank to finance its existing operations.

Difficult Market Conditions Have Adversely Affected Our I ndustry. We are particularly exposed to downturnsin the U.S. housing market. Dramatic declinesin the
housing market over the past several years, with falling home prices and increasing foreclosures, unemployment and under-employment, have negatively impacted
the credit performance of mortgage loans and securities and resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial institutions, including government-
sponsored entities, major commercial and investment banks, and regional financial institutions. Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets
generally and the strength of counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowers,
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including to other financial institutions. This market turmoil and tightening of credit have led to an increased level of commercial and consumer delinquencies, lack of
consumer confidence, increased market volatility and widespread reduction of business activity generally. The resulting economic pressure on consumers and lack of
confidence in the financial markets could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. We do not expect that the difficult conditionsin
thefinancial markets are likely to improve in the near future. A worsening of these conditionswould likely exacerbate the adverse effects of these difficult market
conditions on the financial institutions industry. In particular, we may face the following risks in connection with these events:

o Weexpect to face increased regulation of our industry. Compliance with such regulation may increase our costs and limit our ability to pursue business
opportunities.

e Our ability to assess the creditworthiness of our customers may be impaired if the models and approach we use to select, manage and underwrite our customers
become less predictive of future behaviors.

e Theprocesswe useto estimate losses inherent in our credit exposure requires difficult, subjective and complex judgments, including forecasts of economic
conditions and how these economic predictions might impair the ability of our borrowersto repay their loans, which may no longer be capable of accurate
estimation which may, in turn, impact the reliability of the process.

e Our ability to borrow from other financial institutions on favorable terms or at all could be adversely affected by further disruptionsin the capital markets or other
events, including actions by rating agencies and deteriorating investor expectations.

e Competitionin our industry could intensify as aresult of the increasing consolidation of financial services companiesin connection with current market
conditions.

e Wemay berequired to pay significantly higher deposit insurance premiums because market devel opments have significantly depleted the insurance fund of the
FDIC and reduced the ratio of reservesto insured deposits.

Concentrations of Real Estate Loans Could Subject the Company to Increased Risksin the Event of a Real Estate Recession or Natural Disaster. A significant
portion of the Company’sloan portfolio is secured by real estate. Thereal estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the event of
default by the borrower and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended. A weakening of thereal estate market in our primary market area could
result in an increase in the number of borrowers who default on their loans and a reduction in the value of the collateral securing their loans, whichin turn could have
an adverse effect on our profitability and asset quality. If we arerequired to liquidate the collateral securing aloan to satisfy the debt during a period of reduced real
estate values, our earnings and capital could be adversely affected. Historically, Indianaand Kentucky have experienced, on occasion, significant natural disasters,
including tornadoes and floods. The availability of insurance for losses for such catastrophesislimited. Our operations could also be interrupted by such natural
disasters. Acts of nature, including tornadoes and floods, which may cause uninsured damage and other loss of value to real estate that secures our |oans or
interruption in our business operations, may also negatively impact our operating results or financial condition.

We are subject to cybersecurity risks and may incur increasing costsin an effort to minimize those risks. Our business employs systems and a website that allow
for the secure storage and transmission of customers' proprietary information. Security breaches could expose us to arisk of 1oss or misuse of thisinformation,
litigation and potential liability. We may not have the resources or technical sophistication to anticipate or prevent rapidly evolving types of cyber attacks. Any
compromise of our security could result in aviolation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial exposure, damage to our reputation, and a
loss of confidence in our security measures, which could harm our business.

Critical Accounting Policies

Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contains a summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies for the year ended December 31, 2011. Certain
of these policies are important to the portrayal of the Company’sfinancial condition, since they require management to make difficult, complex or subjective
judgments, some of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain. Management believes that its critical accounting policiesinclude determining the
allowance for loan losses, analysis of other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale investments, and the valuation of mortgage servicing rights.

Allowance For Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is asignificant estimate that can and does change based on management’ s assumptions about specific borrowers and current

economic and business conditions, among other factors. Management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on at |east aquarterly basis. The
evaluation by management includes
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consideration of past |oss experience, changes in the composition of the loan portfolio, the current economic condition, the amount of loans outstanding, identified
problem loans, and the probability of collecting all amounts due.

The allowance for loan losses represents management’ s estimate of probabl e losses inherent in the Company’sloan portfolios. In determining the appropriate amount
of the allowance for loan losses, management makes numerous assumptions, estimates and assessments.

The Company’s strategy for credit risk management includes conservative, centralized credit policies, and uniform underwriting criteriafor al loansaswell asan
overall credit limit for each customer significantly below legal lending limits. The strategy also emphasizes diversification on a geographic, industry and customer
level, regular credit quality reviews and quarterly management reviews of large credit exposures and |oans experiencing deterioration of credit quality.

The Company’s allowance consists of three components: probable |osses estimated from individual reviews of specific loans, probable losses estimated from
historical loss rates, and probable losses resulting from economic or other deterioration above and beyond what is reflected in the first two components of the
allowance.

Larger commercial loans that exhibit probable or observed credit weaknesses are subject to individual review. Where appropriate, reserves are allocated to individual
loans based on management’s estimate of the borrower’s ability to repay the loan given the availability of collateral, other sources of cash flow and legal options
available to the Company. Included in the review of individual |oans are those that are considered impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not
classified asimpaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of
the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the
amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on aloan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the |oan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if
theloan is collateral dependent. Any allowances for impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's
effective interest rate or fair value of the underlying collateral. The Company evaluates the collectibility of both principal and interest when assessing the need for a
loss accrual. Historical lossrates are applied to other commercial |oans not subject to specific reserve allocations.

Homogenous loans, such as consumer installment and residential mortgage loans, are not individually risk graded. Rather, standard credit scoring systems are used
to assess credit risks. Reserves are established for each pool of loans based on the expected net charge-offs for one year. Loss rates are based on the average net
charge-off history by loan category.

Historical loss rates for loans may be adjusted for significant factors that, in management’s judgment, reflect the impact of any current conditions on |oss recognition.
Factors which management considers in the analysis include the effects of the national and local economies, trends in the nature and volume of loans (delinquencies,
charge-offs and nonaccrual 1oans), changesin mix, asset quality trends, risk management and |oan administration, changesin the internal lending policies and credit
standards, collection practices and examination results from bank regul atory agencies and the Company’sinternal loan review. The portion of the allowancethat is
related to certain qualitative factors not specifically related to any oneloan type is considered the unallocated portion of the reserve.

Allowances on individual loans and historical loss rates are reviewed quarterly and adjusted as necessary based on changing borrower and/or collateral conditions
and actual collection and charge-off experience.

The Company’s primary market areafor lending is comprised of Clark, Floyd and Jefferson Counties in southeastern Indiana and portions of northeastern Kentucky
adjacent to that market. When evaluating the adequacy of the allowance, consideration is given to this regional geographic concentration and the closely associated
effect changing economic conditions have on the Company’s customers.

Other-Than-Temporary | mpairment

The Company evaluates all securities on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic conditions warrant additional evaluations, for determining if an other-

than-temporary impairment (OTTI) exists pursuant to guidelines established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC"), in
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ASC 320. In evaluating the possible impairment of securities, consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
cost, the financial conditions and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the ability and intent of the Company to retain itsinvestment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. In analyzing an issuer’sfinancial condition, the Company may consider whether the securities are issued
by the federal government or its agencies or government-sponsored agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of review
of theissuer’sfinancial condition.

I1f management determines that an investment experienced an OTTI, management must then determine the amount of the OTTI to be recognized in earnings. The
Company’s consolidated statement of income would reflect the full impairment (that is, the difference between the security’s amortized cost basis and fair value) on
debt securities that the Company intends to sell or would more likely than not be required to sell before the expected recovery of the amortized cost basis. For
securities that management has no intent to sell, and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell prior to recovery, only the credit |oss
component of the impairment would be recognized in earnings, while the noncredit loss would be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income. The credit
loss component recognized in earningsisidentified as the amount of principal cash flows not expected to be received over the remaining term of the security as
projected based on cash flow projections. The Company did not record any other-than-temporary impairment during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Valuation of Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company recognizes the rights to service mortgage loans as separate assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Under the servicing assets and liabilities
accounting guidance (A SC 860-50), servicing rights resulting from the sale or securitization of loans originated by the Company are initially measured at fair value at
the date of transfer. Mortgage servicing rights are subsequently carried at the lower of theinitial carrying value, adjusted for amortization, or fair value. Mortgage
servicing rights are evaluated for impairment based on the fair value of those rights. Factors included in the calculation of fair value of the mortgage servicing rights
include estimating the present value of future net cash flows, market |oan prepayment speeds for similar loans, discount rates, servicing costs, and other economic
factors. Servicing rights are amortized over the estimated period of net servicing revenue. It islikely that these economic factors will change over thelife of the
mortgage servicing rights, resulting in different valuations of the mortgage servicing rights. The differing valuations will affect the carrying value of the mortgage
servicing rights on the consolidated balance sheet as well as the income recorded from loan servicing in the consolidated income statement. As of December 31, 2011,
mortgage servicing rights had a carrying value of $641,000, which included a $26,000 valuation allowance for impairment on certain pools of servicing rights as of that
date.

Discussion of Changesin Financial Condition from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011

At December 31, 2011, the Company’s consolidated assets totaled $406.6 million, an increase of $20.0 million, or 5.2%, from the December 31, 2010 total. Theincrease
was primarily due to an increase in investment securities available for sale funded by a $18.9 million increase in deposits, period to period, and a$12.3 million decrease
inloan receivables. Funds made available by these changes in deposit and loan levelswere placed in investment securities available for sale, primarily U.S.
government agency securities and to alesser extent municipal securities and government-sponsored-enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed securities.
Investment securities available for sale of the Company increased $29.5 million, or 39.2%, for the period, from $75.2 million at December 31, 2010 to $104.7 million as of
December 31, 2011. A portion of the increase in investment securities available for sale came from the mark-to-market changes with a net change of $2.1 million asthe
unrealized gain on the Company’s portfolio increased from $695,000 at December 31, 2010 to $2.8 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease in net loans, excluding
loans held for sale, over the period, from $265.4 million at December 31, 2010 to $253.1 million at December 31, 2011, was reflective of the difficult lending environment
which continued to affect loan production and of the equally difficult economy, as $4.8 million of real estate collateral for non-performing loans was foreclosed upon
and transferred to real estate owned and held for sale (REO). Real estate owned as aresult of foreclosure at December 31, 2011 totaled $2.5 million as compared to
$400,000 at the same point in 2010, an increase of $2.1 million, period to period. Foreclosed real estate converted to REO during the period included a professional
office building in New Albany, Indiana, acar wash in Charlestown, Indiana, an apartment complex in Scottsburg, Indiana, a condominium complex in New Albany,
Indiana, afuneral home in Madison, Indiana, several building lots, and afew lesser residential properties. The Company closely monitored the values of these
properties and additional charge downs were taken as necessary based on current fair value information such as appraisal data and pending sales offers. During the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011, the Company reduced income by $613,000 for these charge downs. Write down of real estate owned as aresult of
foreclosureis reported as areduction of Other Income.
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Liquidity for the Company continued to be strong, with the balancesin cash and cash equivalents at $18.7 million as of December 31, 2011, as compared to balances
of $16.8 million as of December 31, 2010. Amounts borrowed by the Company remained constant period to period at $65.2 million, with advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank representing the largest portion of those balances at $58.0 million at both dates. The Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) is the Company’s primary
source of wholesale funding. The average rates paid on those borrowings, however, decreased 29 basis points across the period, from 3.84% as of December 31, 2010
to 3.55% as of December 31, 2011, as the Company restructured $10.0 million in advances, taking advantage of lower borrowing costs to lock in advances over arange
of terms, and repaid and replaced an additional $5.0 million. The drop in average rates, December 2010 to December 2011, resulted in 2$791,000, or 25.1%, decreasein
the cost of borrowing period to period. Borrowing costs of $2.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 compared to $3.2 million for the same period in
2010.

Other significant changes during the period included $270,000 received from the FHLB for arepurchase of FHLB stock and a decrease in the prepaid FDIC
assessment of $360,000 over the period.

The difficult lending environment continued to challenge loan production for the Company. Total |oans, net of the allowance for loan losses, decreased $12.3 million,
or 4.6%, from $265.4 million at December 31, 2010 to $253.1 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily attributable to $4.8 million in non-performing
loans removed from the portfolio into real estate held for sale, $2.6 million in loans charged off, net of recoveries, and sales of conventional mortgagesinto the
secondary market. Salesto the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 were $24.0 million, including
$1.1 million originated for sale at December 31, 2010 and sold in January 2011. These sales compare very closely to the $26.1 million in salesfor the twelve months
ended December 31, 2010. Salesinto the secondary market are an important source of non-interest income for the Company.

The Company’s consolidated allowance for loan losses totaled $4.0 million at December 31, 2011, as compared to $3.8 million at December 31, 2010. Provision expense
of $2.8 million for the period was offset by net charge-offs of $2.6 million. This compared to provision expense for the same period in 2010 of $2.6 million and net
charge-offs of $1.5 million. Net charge-offs for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011 were primarily comprised of properties that have labored through
the foreclosure process, most for as long as two to three years. For example, $604,000 was charged off for avariety of residential properties, including a $200,000 loan
charged off due to bankruptcy. $1,056,000 was charged off for nonresidential and commercial real estate properties, including loans previously provisioned by
specific reserve alocations and loans rel ating to arelationship with alocal funeral home business. Finally, $819,000 was charged off for land loans, primarily the
culmination of foreclosure proceedings with two devel opment relationships in the south-central Indiana area. Funding for the allowance represented 1.56% of total
loans as of December 31, 2011 as compared to 1.41% as of December 31, 2010.

Delinquency 30 or more days past due as of December 31, 2011 was $10.8 million, or 4.3% of total |oans, as compared to $12.3 million, or 4.6%, at December 31, 2010.
The 2011 decrease was due primarily to loan foreclosures that resulted in the real estate held for sale discussed above. On a positive note, delinquenciesin general
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 were constant over the period, as compared to the dramatic increases seen in the prior two years.

Non-performing loans (defined as loans delinquent greater than 90 days and loans on nonaccrual status) as of December 31, 2011 were $9.9 million, compared to $10.4
million at December 31, 2010. Non-performing loans as a percent of net loans were 3.90% and 3.91%, respectively, for those periods. The total of non-performing loans
and loans performing under atroubled debt restructuring agreement as of December 31, 2011 totaled $16.8 million, or 6.64% of net loans. This comparesto $17.1
million and 6.45% of net loans at the same date in 2010. Non-performing levels are primarily comprised of loansin the lengthy process of foreclosure or debt that has
been restructured.

Asasignificant part of its management of delinquent loans, the Bank continued to focus on the analysis of problem loans and adjustments of those loansto fair

value through the establishment of specific reservesfor potential losses. As of December 31, 2011, the Bank had $1.4 million in specific reserve allocations for
potential losses. This comparesto $1.2 million at the same point in 2010. The general reserve for loan losses was $2.6 million at both December 31, 2011 and 2010. Asa
percent of |oans outstanding on these dates, the general reserve was 1.00% of total loans as of December 31, 2011 and 0.96% as of the same date in 2010.

While there was limited growth within certain loan types during 2011, in aggregate the |oan portfolio shrunk and there was limited additional risk to the overall
allowance due to growth. Any risk due to growth in these economically challenging times was mitigated by selective underwriting of the borrower and in increasing
reguirements for amount and type of collateral securing the debt. The Bank is conservative in itslending practices and does not originate the type of loans publicized
as “sub-prime” and therefore does not anticipate delinquencies other than those normally associated with the economic trends of the Bank’s market areas. As of
December 31, 2011,
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those trends had improved locally, regionally, and nationally, with unemployment rates lower on average from the 2009 and 2010 rates. The expense for the provision
for loan losses increased slightly from the 2010 amount of $2.6 million, to $2.8 million in 2011, an increase of 4.8%, primarily the result of management anticipating and
recording higher charge-offsin 2011.

Although management believes that its allowance for 0an losses at December 31, 2011 was adequate based upon the available facts and circumstances, there can be
no assurance that additions to such allowance will not be necessary in future periods, which could negatively affect the Company’s results of operations.
Management is diligent in monitoring delinquent loans and in the analysis of the factors affecting the allowance.

Deposits totaled $305.2 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of $18.9 million, or 6.6%, from total deposits of $286.3 million at December 31, 2010. During the
twelve-month period, noninterest-bearing transactional deposit accountsincreased slightly by 4.3%, while interest-bearing accounts increased 6.8%, or $17.9 million.
Theincreases were primarily seen in the Company’s NOW accounts, which increased by $30.7 million from $53.9 million at December 31, 2010 to $84.6 million at
December 31, 2011. A significant portion of the changein NOW account balances came from movement out of Money Market Demand (MMDA) accounts, savings
accounts and certificate of deposit accounts, with MM DA accounts decreasing $9.6 million, or 23.7%, over the twelve-month period and savings accounts
decreasing $7.2 million, or 13.8%. Despite movement of funds from the certificate of deposit accounts during the period, as of December 31, 2011 certificate accounts
intotal had increased adlight $4.0 million, or 3.4% from $116.1 million at December 31, 2010 to $120.1 million at the same point in 2011. In the current rate environment
borrowers appeared to be trading minimal differencesin interest rates for accessibility to their fundsin selecting the transactional accounts over the non-
transactional.

Asloan balances, and loan demand decreased and deposit |evels continued to increase, the challenge to the Company was to place excess funds in earning assets,
while maintaining the flexibility to meet interest rate risk challenges and provide sufficient, accessible liquidity for the Company. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2011, the Company met this challenge by purchasing investments specific to those purposes.

Investments reported in the financial statements of the Company are held both at the Bank level and at the Bank’s Nevada subsidiaries, and all are available for sale.
The investment portfolio in total increased by 39.2% from $75.2 million as of December 31, 2010 to $104.7 million as of December 31, 2011, adollar increase of $29.5
million, as the Company increased investments at the Bank level by $16.5 million, primarily in liquid agency investments, and by $13.0 million in investments held at
the Nevada subsidiary level, primarily in income-earning mortgage-backed and municipal investments. For the period, agency investmentsincreased atotal of $15.4
million, from $22.5 million at December 31, 2010 to $37.9 million at the same point in 2011. Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed agency securities increased over the period by $5.8 million, or 20.0%. Municipal investments increased by the same dollar amount, representing a
percentage increase period to period of 25.6%, from $22.9 million at December 31 2010 to $28.7 million at December 31, 2011. $2.5 million in corporate investments were
purchased at the Nevada subsidiary level during the twelve-month period, rounding out the overall increase in investment levels, period to period. Yieldson
investments declined from 3.44% in 2010 to 3.08% in 2011, reflective of the economy in general. The unrealized gain on investments increased significantly from
$695,000 at December 31, 2010 to $2.8 million at the same point in 2011, again reflective of the economy in general.

The Company evaluates all investments for other than temporary impairment quarterly. 2011 brought continued scrutiny of the Company’sinvestments, and in
particular of asset quality and changesin the fair values of theindividual investments. The Company’s securities are valued at fair value by a pricing service whose
prices can be corroborated by recent security trading activities. The Company’s portfolio is comprised of the following types of investments.

Agency investments, which includes AAA-rated Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (FHLMC), Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) and Federal Home
Loan Bank (FHLB) investments, at an average tax equivalent yield of 1.87%, were at anet unrealized gain position at December 31, 2011. No agency investments were
at an unrealized loss position for 12 consecutive months or more. Thetotal carrying value of $37.9 million represents 36.2% of the total investment portfolio. Agency
investments are primarily held at the Bank level, for liquidity purposes.

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations, which includes governmentally guaranteed FNMA, FHLMC, and Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)

REMICs, at an average tax equivalent yield of 3.72%, were at a net unrealized gain position at December 31, 2011. No collateralized mortgage obligation investments
were at an unrealized loss position for 12 consecutive months or more. The total carrying value of $16.2 million represents 15.5% of the total investment portfolio.

41




Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed securities, which includes governmentally guaranteed FNMA, GNMA, and FHLMC Gold pools,
at an average tax equivalent yield of 3.36%, were at anet unrealized gain position at December 31, 2011. No mortgage-backed investments were at an unrealized |oss
position for 12 consecutive months or more. The total carrying value of $18.5 million represents 17.6% of the total investment portfolio.

Municipal securities from avariety of sources, with an average tax equivalent yield of 5.98%, were at a net unrealized gain position at December 31, 2011. The
portfolio is comprised of both general obligation (GO) bonds and revenue bonds. The total carrying value of $28.7 million represents 27.4% of the total investment
portfolio. At December 31, 2011, two investments, totaling $773,000, had been at an unrealized loss for 12 consecutive months or more. However, because the
Company expects full repayment of these investments, does not intend to sell the investments prior to maturity, and because it is not “morelikely than not” that the
Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

Corporate investments, comprised of five “A2" or higher rated corporate stocks (Moody’s rated) and two inactively traded trust preferred issues, with atotal average
tax equivalent yield of 1.93%, were at anet unrealized loss position at December 31, 2011. Both trust preferred investments were at an unrealized loss for 12
consecutive months or more. The corporate stocks were purchased in the third quarter of 2011 and were at a continuous loss position for the remainder of 2011.
Because the Company expects full repayment of these investments, does not intend to sell the investments prior to maturity, and becauseit is not “more likely than
not” that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider
those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011. These investments, with total carrying value of $3.3 million, represent 3.2% of the total
investment portfolio. Both issues of trust preferred securities represent some potential risk to the Company simply by virtue of their attributes. They are discussed
individually below.

The ALESCO 9A class A2A (ALESCO 9A) investment and the Preferred Term Security XXVII, LTD class A-1 (PRETSL XXVII) investment are both thinly traded.
Both issues are backed by financial institutions and insurance companies, and the current pricing reflectsinactivity in the markets for trust preferred issues. Asthe
national economic woes have continued some of the underlying financial institutions have defaulted on or deferred interest payments. Some curing of these defaults
have ocurred as conditions improve. While these defaults/deferrals may negatively affect the lower tranches of the issues, the Bank holds the top tranche of PRETSL
XXVII and the second highest tranche of ALESCO 9A. The collateralization levels on these issues are still more than adequate for the Bank to be protected. Both
cash flow and other analysis, performed by independent third party analysts, and reviewed by management, indicate that it is more than likely that these investments
will continue to maturity, and are thus only temporarily impaired. Cash flow analysis indicates that full payment of the tranches held by the Bank is expected by
maturity, if not before.

In November 2007, the Company purchased $1.0 million face value of ALESCO 9A trust preferred stock at a price of $88.81 ($888,100). At December 31, 2011, this
investment was priced by athird party pricing service and was carried on the Company’s books at a market value of $488,000 and at an amortized cost on that date of
$900,000. The net unrealized loss on thisinvestment at December 31, 2011 was $412,000. These figures as of December 31, 2010 were: market value of $366,000,
amortized cost of $896,000, and net unrealized loss of $530,000, indicating improvement period to period. 2010 levels were all improvements over 2009, indicating a
trend of improvement in the investment. The Company has reviewed the pricing analytics reports for thisinvestment and has determined that the declinein the
market price of thisinvestment istemporary and indicates thin trading activity, rather than atrue decline in the value of the investment. Factors considered in
reaching this determination included the class or “tranche” held by the Company, A2A, the projected cash flows as of December 31, 2011, which indicate that the
Company will receive al contractual payments on or before maturity, and the current collateral position of the tranche, 125.61%, which while below the trigger
collateralization of 146.20%, still reflects sufficient coverage for the tranche. The interest coverageratio is 277.5%, on atrigger amount of 125.00%, indicating strong
coverage for interest paymentsto the“A” tranche. Because the Company does not intend to sell thisinvestment and because it is not “more likely than not” that the
Company will be required to sell thisinvestment before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider this investment
to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

In February 2008, the Company purchased $1.0 million face value of PRETSL XX VI trust preferred stock at aprice of $90.00 ($900,000). At December 31, 2011, this
investment was priced by athird party pricing service and was carried on the Company’s books at a market value of $603,000 and at an amortized cost on that date of
$862,000. The net unrealized loss on thisinvestment at December 31, 2011 was $259,000. These figures as of December 31, 2010 were: market vaue of $570,000,
amortized cost of $872,000, and net unrealized loss of $302,000, indicating improvement period to period. The investment has received quarterly paydowns of principal
for the entire period the
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Company has held the investment. The Company has reviewed the pricing analytics reportsfor this investment and has determined that the decline in the market
price of thisinvestment istemporary and indicates thin trading activity, rather than atrue decline in the value of theinvestment. Factors considered in reaching this
determination included the class or “tranche” held by the Company, A-1, the current collateral position of the tranche, 145.54%, and the projected cash flows as of
December 31, 2011, which indicate that the Company will receive all contractual payments on or before maturity. Because the Company does not intend to sell this
investment and because it is not “more likely than not” that the Company will be required to sell thisinvestment before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which
may be maturity, the Company does not consider this investment to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

Other liabilities totaled $2.8 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of $260,000 from the December 31, 2010 balance of $3.1 million, primarily dueto changesin
escrowed balances and deferred tax ligbilities.

Stockholders’ equity totaled $33.0 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of $1.5 million, or 4.8%, from the $31.5 million at December 31, 2010. The increase was
primarily due to the change in unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities, at again position of $1.8 million at December 31, 2011, as compared to $443,000 at
December 31, 2010, and year-to-date earnings of $1.8 million. During the twelve months ending December 31, 2011, $55,000 was used to purchase 3,500 shares of
Company stock, in satisfaction of two awards under one of the corporate employee benefit plans, and the Company paid dividends totaling $1.6 million to preferred
and common sharehol ders. Dividends to common shareholders for the twelve-month period were $.84 per share.

The Bank isrequired to maintain minimum regulatory capital pursuant to federal regulations. At December 31, 2011, the Bank’s regulatory capital exceeded all
applicable regulatory capital requirements.

Comparison of Results of Operationsfor the Y ears Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
General

River Valey's net incomefor the year ended December 31, 2011, totaled $1.8 million, a decrease of $548,000, or 23.6%, from net income of $2.3 million reported for the
same period in 2010. The change in income period to period was comprised of avariety of changes that occurred over the period. Total interest income decreased
$922,000, or 4.95%, from $18.6 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 to $17.7 million for the same period in 2011, asyields and average balances on
interest-earning assets dropped. Offsetting the decrease in interest income was a more dramatic decrease in interest expense, with interest expense for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011 decreasing $1.5 million, or 20.2%, from $7.3 million for the twelve-month period in 2010 to $5.8 million for the same period in 2011, as
deposit and borrowing average costs of funds dropped from 2.18% for the twel ve-month period ended December 31, 2010 to 1.74% for the same period in 2011. These
changes continued to benefit the Company during the year, with net interest income of $11.9 million as compared to $11.3 million at the same point in 2010, an
increase of $556,000, or 4.9%. This slight increase, however, was insufficient to offset the increase in the combination of the provision expense, year to year, of $2.8
million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $2.6 million for the same period a year before, and the more signficant reduction in noninterest
income that came from write down of real estate owned as aresult of foreclosure, of $613,000 for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011, as compared to
$75,000 for the same period in 2010. Other significant factors affecting net income for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011 were increasesin salaries and
benefits, as professional personnel were added, and in professional fees associated with acquisition activities of the Company.

With the decrease in pre-tax income, income tax expense decreased, with the effective tax rate for 2010 of 19.2% decreasing to 5.5% for 2011. Income from municipal
investments held at the Company’s Nevada subsidiaries and increases in the cash surrender value of Bank-owned life insurance continue to contribute to the
effective tax rate as the percentage of non-taxable income to total income remains elevated.

Net I nterest Income

Total interest income for the year ended December 31, 2011, was $17.7 million, a decrease of $992,000, or 4.95%, from the 2010 total of $18.6 million. The average
balance of interest-earning assets outstanding year-to-year increased only slightly, by $1.0 million, or 0.2%, as |oan receivables decreased, interest-earning deposits
remained strong, and avail able-for-sal e investment bal ances increased.

The average balance of loans receivable for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011 decreased 3.9%, or $10.6 million, over the same period in 2010. With a

modest change in yields, 5.79% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 5.63% for the same period in 2010, interest income from loans
receivable decreased 6.6%, to $14.8 million for the year ending December 31, 2011, from $15.9 million for the year ending December 31, 2010.
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The average balance of investmentsincreased $12.1 million, from $77.1 million in 2010 to $89.2 million in 2011. Interest income on investment securities was almost
identical for thetwo years, at $2.7 million, as the increase in average balances was not able to overcome the dramatic declinein yields, with the average yield for 2011
of 3.08% as compared to 3.44% in 2010. Asin 2010, the Company took advantage of gain positions on some investments with gain on sale for 2011 of $312,000
comparable to $347,000 for the same period ayear earlier. Investments held at the Bank level are held primarily for liquidity purposes, whereas longer termed asset-
backed and municipal securities, used for investment purposes, are held at a Nevada subsidiary.

Interest-earning deposits held by the Company remained constant, period to period, with the average bal ance of those deposits being $15.7 million for 2011, as
compared to $15.9 million for 2010, a negligible decrease. Income from interest-earning deposits increased from $32,000 for the period ended December 31, 2010 to
$34,000 for the period ended December 31, 2011 as the Company continued to take advantage of slightly better rates through the Federal Reserve Bank (Fed), leaving
daily balances at the Fed rather than moving them to overnight accounts elsewhere.

For the period ending December 31, 2011, total interest expense was $5.8 million, asignificant drop of $1.5 million, or 20.2%, from the $7.3 million for the period ended
December 31, 2010. Interest expense for the Company is comprised of interest on funds deposited with the Company and expense on borrowings by the Company.

The average of total depositsincreased from $286.6 million at December 31, 2010 to $295.0 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of $8.4 million, or 2.9%. The
average balance of interest-bearing depositsincreased from $262.7 million at December 31, 2010 to $270.0 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of $7.3 million, or
2.8%. The average cost of interest-bearing deposits dropped from 1.58% to 1.28%, 2010 to 2011, with total interest expense on deposits for the period ending
December 31, 2011 at $3.5 million, down $687,000, or 16.6%, from the $4.1 million for the period ending December 31, 2010. Over the same period, the cost of
borrowings dropped from 4.40% to 3.64%, adollar drop of $791,000, or 25.0%, as borrowings were repaid with excess funds from deposits and remaining borrowings
were at alower average cost. Total interest expense for borrowings for the period ended December 31, 2011 was $2.4 million, as compared to $3.2 million for the same
period ended 2010.

In summary, during the period ending December 31, 2011, the cost of interest-bearing deposits and borrowings dropped to a greater extent than the yields on interest-
earning assets, a benefit to net interest incomein total. Net interest income for the period ending December 31, 2011 was $11.9 million, up $556,000, or 4.9%, from the
$11.3 million for the same period ending December 31, 2010.

Provision for Losseson Loans

A provision for losses on loans is charged to income to bring the total allowance for loan losses to alevel considered appropriate by management based upon
historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the status of past due principal and interest payment, general economic conditions,
particularly as such conditions relate to the Company’s market area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’sloan portfolio. Asaresult of such
analysis, management recorded a $2.8 million provision for losses on loans for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $2.6 million for the same
period in 2010. The 2011 expense of $2.8 million was primarily impacted by the culmination of foreclosure activity on two large relationships, for which some reserves
had been established, and reserves established for current foreclosure rel ationships. The Company is diligent in assessing the status of problem loans, including
those in the lengthy process of foreclosure. The 2011 expense corresponds to the annual expenses for 2009, of $2.9 million, and 2010, of $2.6 million, and reflects the
loss experience of the Company projected for the continuing stagnation in the economy. Delinquenciesin total have remained constant as forecl osures pending
during thelast 12 to 18 months have been resolved, and new delinguencies remain controlled.

Non-performing loans (defined as loans delinquent greater than 90 days and |oans on nonaccrual status) plus troubled debt restructured as of December 31, 2011
were $16.8 million, compared to $17.1 million at December 31, 2010. Non-performing loans and troubled debt restructured as a percent of net loans were 6.64% and
6.45%, respectively, for those periods. Non-performing levels are primarily comprised of loansin the lengthy process of foreclosure or debt that has been
restructured.

Of total non-performing loans, approximately $1.9 million have been past due for twelve months or more, have been reduced by partial charge-off of confirmed losses
or protected by specific reserve allocations, and are in the lengthy process of work out or foreclosure. Non-performing loans of the Company average 388 days past
due, emphasizing the fact that these are |oans that have been moving slowly through the foreclosure process for a period of time. From time to time, the Company
may be required to charge down loans that are performing loans because of collateral shortfallsidentified through appraisal review or other methods. Total |oans that
have been reduced for confirmed loss amounts through partial charge-off or specific reserve allocations as of December 31, 2011 totaled $5.8 million, net of those
reserves, with $4.3 million of that relating to loans that are performing according to the terms of their
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agreements. While management believes that the allowance for losses on loans is adequate at December 31, 2011, based upon the available facts and circumstances,
there can be no assurance that the |oan loss allowance will be adeguate to cover |osses on non-performing assets in the future.

Other Income

Other income decreased by $894,000, or 22.9%, during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 to $3.0 million, as compared to the $3.9 million reported for the
same period in 2010. The decrease was due primarily to net losses on premises, equipment and other real estate owned (REO) as the Company recorded fair value
adjustments (write-downs of the value) to REO of $613,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. Net losses on premises, equipment and other real
estate owned, which includes those fair value adjustments, were $750,000 for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $74,000 for the same
period in 2010, a change of $676,000. Typically, the Company relies on sources of other income to supplement interest income, and offset expense increases. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, those other sources of income were unable to recoup the losses caused by the write down of other real estate owned.
Overall, income from other sources was flat, period to period, with the following negligible activity: a slight decrease in service charges, primarily relating to
overdrawn accounts, $1.9 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $2.0 million for the same period in 2010; aslight decrease in gains
on the sale of available-for-sale securities, $312,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $347,000 for the same period in 2010; and only a
negligible increase in gains on the sale of loansinto the secondary market, primarily to Freddie Mac, $730,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as
compared to $721,000 for the same twelve monthsin 2010. The trend for the sale of loansinto the secondary market is expected to continue into 2012 because
origination of loans for saleis expected to be minimal as underwriting continues to be tight and refinance activity weak. Income from service charges, such asthat for
overdraft of deposit accounts, is dependent upon consumer practices, and somewhat upon regulatory pressures to reduce such fees. Finally, income from the gain on
sale of available for saleinvestmentsis dependent upon the market for such gains and management’s assessment of the wisdom of such action. Unlike interest
income, “ Other Income” is not always readily predictable and is subject to variations depending on outside influences, including regulatory changes.

Other Expenses

Total other expenses experienced agreater change period to period, with a net increase of $533,000, or 5.5%, from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011. In general,
increases were experienced in several financial statement lines. The most significant financial statement changes, both increases and decreases, were:

Sdaries and employee benefits, a5.9% increase period to period, from $5.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 to $5.3 million for the same period
in 2011. Thisreflects the addition of professional and branch personnel and increases in benefits, including health insurance increases.

Net occupancy and equipment expenses, a 7.5% increase period to period, reflective of the addition of branches added during 2010 and information technol ogy .

Professional fees, which include legal, accounting, and other third party contracted expenses, increased $201,000, or 57.4%, from $350,000 for the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2010 to $551,000 for the same period in 2011. Thisincreaseis primarily dueto legal fees associated with acquisition activity of the Bank, and
regulatory mandates requiring additional third party review for financial institutions.

FDIC assessments for the twel ve-month periods decreased $66,000, or 14.3%, 2010 to 2011, as the FDIC moved from a deposit-based assessment to an asset-based
assessment and decreased the base rate for the Company.

Data processing fees decreased 12.5%, period to period, from $480,000 for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2010 to $420,000 for the same period ended
December 31, 2011, dueto cost containment measures.

Other administrative costs, including advertising and office supply costs, decreased for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the same period
in 2010, reflecting corporate cost containment measures.

Income Taxes

Tax expense of $103,000 was recorded for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $552,000 for the comparable period in 2010. For the 2011
period, the Company had pre-tax income of $1.9 million, as compared to $2.9 million for the 2010 period. The decrease in taxable income as a percent of total income,
aided by increases in non-taxable income as a percent of total income, was responsible for the decrease in the effective tax rate. The effective tax rate was 5.5% for the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 19.2% for the same period in 2010. The tax cal culations for both periods include the benefit of tax-
exempt income from municipal investments and cash surrender life insurance, partially offset by the effect of nondeductible expenses.
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Average Balance, Yield, Rate and VVolume Data

The following table presents certain information relating to River Valley's average balance sheet and reflects the average yield on interest-earning assets and the
average cost of interest-bearing liabilities for the periodsindicated. Such yields and costs are derived by dividing annual income or expense by the average daily
balance of interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities, respectively, for the years presented. Average balances are derived from daily balances, which include
nonaccruing loansin the loan portfolio.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Average Average Average
outstanding Interest outstanding Interest outstanding Interest
balance earned/paid  Yield/rate balance earned/ paid  Yield/rate balance earned/ paid  Yield/rate
Assets (Dollarsin thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning
deposits $ 15722 $ 34 0.22% $ 15,948 $ 32 0.20% $ 14,600 $ 17 0.12%
Other securities (1) 57,787 1,644 2.84 48,137 1,481 3.08 46,820 1,748 3.73
Mortgage-backed
securities (1) 31,394 1,105 352 29,009 1171 4.04 21,430 978 4.56
Loansreceivable (2) 263,209 14,818 5.63 273,772 15,859 5.79 281,048 16,305 5.80
FHLB stock 4,339 111 2.56 4,791 91 1.90 4,850 139 2.87
Total interest-earning
assets 372,451 17,712 4.76 371,657 18,634 5.01 368,748 19,187 5.20
Noninterest earning
assets, net of
allowance for loan
losses 23,723 21,707 20,795
Total assets $  3%174 $ 39334 $ 389543
Liabilities/shareholder
equity
Interest-bearing
liabilities:
Savings deposits $ 77565 $ 507 0.65% $ 97,793 $ 1,194 122% $ 85,785 $ 1,341 1.56%
Interest-bearing
demand 72.383 452 0.62 50,466 234 0.46 50,842 313 0.62
Certificates of
deposit 120,084 2,499 2.08 114,473 2,717 2.37 109,469 3,459 3.16
FHLB advances and
other borrowings 64,884 2,365 3.64 71,717 3,156 4.40 90,720 4,209 4.64
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 334,916 5,823 174 334,449 7,301 2.18 336,816 9,322 2.77
Other liabilities 28,479 26,840 26,581
Tota liabilities (3) 363,395 361,289 363,397
Total equity 32,779 32,075 26,146
Total liabilitiesand
equity $ 396,174 $ 393,364 $ 389,543
Net interest-earning
assets $ 37,535 $ 37,208 $ 31,932
Net interest income $ 11,889 $ 11,333 $ 9,865
Interest rate spread (4) 3.02% 2.83% 2.43%

Net yield on weighted

average interest-

earning assets (5) 3.19% 3.05% 2.68%
Average interest-

earning assets to

average interest-

bearing liabilities 111.21% 111.13% 109.48%

(1) Includes securities available for sale at amortized cost prior to fair value adjustments.

(2) Total loanslessloansin process plusloans held for sale.

(3) Includes Noninterest Demand Deposit Accounts of $24,945, $23,858 and $24,332, previously reported as part of total interest-bearing liabilities.

(4) Interest rate spread is calculated by subtracting weighted average interest rate cost from weighted average interest rate yield for the period indicated.

(5) Thenet yield on weighted average interest-earning assetsis calculated by dividing net interest income by weighted average interest-earning assets for the
period indicated.
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Rate/Volume Table

The following table describes the extent to which changesin interest rates and changes in volume of interest-related assets and liabilities have affected River Valley's
interest income and expense during the yearsindicated. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on
changes attributable to (i) changesin volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate), (ii) changesin rate (change in rate multiplied by prior year volume), and
(iii) total changesin rate and volume. The combined effects of changes in both volume and rate, which cannot be separately identified, have been allocated
proportionately to the change due to volume and the change due to rate:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Increase Increase
(decrease) due (decrease) due
Volume to Rate Total Volume to Rate Total

(In thousands)
I nter est-ear ning assets:

I nterest-earning deposits and other $ 9 $ 31 $ 2 $ - 3% 33 $ (33)
Investment securities 372 (275) 97 364 (438) (74)
Loansreceivable, net (602) (439) (1,041) (422) (24) (446)
Total (239) (683) (922) (58) (495) (553)
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits 38 (725) (687) 379 (1,347) (968)
FHL B advances and other borrowings (282) (509) (791) (845) (208) (1,053)
Total (244) (1,234) (1,478) (466) (1,555) (2,021)
Changein net interest income $ 5 §$ 551 $ 556 $ 408 $ 1060 $ 1,468

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s principal sources of funds are deposits, loan and mortgage-backed securities repayments, maturities of securities, borrowings and other funds
provided by operations. While scheduled |oan repayments and maturing investments are relatively predictable, deposit flows and |oan and mortgage-backed
securities prepayments are more influenced by interest rates, general economic conditions and competition. The Company maintainsinvestmentsin liquid assets
based upon management’s assessment of (1) the need for funds, (2) expected deposit flows, (3) the yield available on short-term liquid assets and (4) the objectives
of the asset/liability management program.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank had commitments to originate |oans totaling $11.7 million and in addition, had undisbursed loansin process, unused lines of credit
and standby letters of credit totaling $30.5 million.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank had $1.8 million in commitmentsto sell loans.

OCC regulations require the Bank to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure its safe and sound operation. The Company considers the Bank’s liquidity and capital
resources sufficient to meet outstanding short- and long-term needs.
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The Company’sliquidity, primarily represented by cash and cash equivalents, is aresult of the funds provided by or used in the Company’s operating, investing and
financing activities. These activities are summarized below for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities $ 5,862 $ 5,202 $ 2,581

Cash flowsfrom investing activities:

Purchase of securities (47,826) (23,277) (51,513)
Proceeds from maturities of securities 10,533 17,224 20,638

Proceeds from sales of securities 10,201 10,655 4,736

Net loan originations 4,658 7,582 5,143

Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 2,024 590 539

Other (773) (578) (282)
Cash flowsfrom financing activities:

Net increase (decrease) in deposits 18,889 8,594 28,809

Net increase (decrease) in borrowings — (21,000) (11,000)
Purchase of stock (55) — —

Issuance of preferred stock — — 5,000

Other (1,587) (1,591) (1,297)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 1,926 $ 3,401 $ 3,354

The Bank is required by applicable law and regulation to meet certain minimum capital standards. Such capital standardsinclude atangible capital requirement, a core
capital requirement, or leverage ratio, and arisk-based capital requirement.

The tangible capital requirement requires savings associations to maintain “tangible capital” of not less than 1.5% of the association’s adjusted total assets. Tangible
capital isdefined in OCC regulations as core capital minus intangible assets. “ Core capital” is comprised of common shareholders’ equity (including retained
earnings), noncumulative preferred stock and related surplus, minority interestsin consolidated subsidiaries, certain nonwithdrawabl e accounts and pledged
deposits of mutual associations. OCC regulations require savings associations to maintain core capital generally equal to 4% of the association’s total assets except
those associations with the highest examination rating and acceptable levels of risk.

OCC regulations require that savings associations maintain “risk-based capital” in an amount not less than 8% of “risk-weighted assets.” Risk-based capital is
defined as core capital plus certain additional items of capital, which in the case of the Bank includes ageneral loan loss allowance of $2.6 million at December 31,
2011.

The Bank exceeded al of itsregulatory capital requirements at December 31, 2011. The following table summarizes the Bank’s regulatory capital requirements and
regulatory capital at December 31, 2011:

OCC Requirement Actual Amount
Per cent of Per cent of Amount
Assets Amount Assets (1) Amount of Excess
(Dollarsin thousands)
Tangible capital 1.50% $ 6,074 9.25% $ 37449 % 31,375
Core capital 4,00 16,197 9.25% 37,449 21,252
Risk-based capital 8.00 21,804 14.68% 40,015 18,211

(1) Tangible and core capital levels are shown as a percentage of total assets; risk-based capital levels are shown as a percentage of risk-weighted assets.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included herein have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which
require the Company to measure financial position and results of operationsin terms of historical dollars, with the exception of investment and mortgage-backed
securities available-for-sale, which are carried at fair value. Changesin the relative value of money due to inflation or recession are generally not considered.

In management’s opinion, changesin interest rates affect the financial condition of afinancial institution to afar greater degree than changesin the rate of inflation.
Whileinterest rates are greatly influenced by changesin the rate of inflation, they do not change at the same rate or in the same magnitude as the rate of inflation.
Rather, interest rate volatility is based on changes in the expected rate of inflation, aswell as changesin monetary and fiscal policies.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company does not have any off-bal ance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on the Company’sfinancial condition, changein financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors. The term “ off-bal ance sheet arrangement” generally means any transaction, agreement, or other
contractual arrangement to which any entity unconsolidated with the Company is a party and under which the Company has (i) any obligation arising under a
guarantee contract, derivative instrument or variable interest; or (ii) aretained or contingent interest in assets transferred to such entity or similar arrangement that
serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support for such assets.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable for Smaller Reporting Companies.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committee, Board of Directors and Stockholders
River Valley Bancorp
Madison, Indiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of River Valley Bancorp as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements
of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for of the years then ended. The Company's management is responsible for these financial
statements. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits al so included examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management and eval uating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of River Valley Bancorp as of

December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

BKEDLwp

BKD, LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
March 16, 2012
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River Valley Bancorp

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities available for sale
Loans held for sale
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,003 and $3,806
Premises and equipment, net
Real estate, held for sale
Federal Home L oan Bank stock
Interest receivable
Cash value of lifeinsurance
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposits
Borrowings
Interest payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity
Preferred stock - liquidation preference $1,000 per share - no par value
Authorized — 2,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 5,000 shares
Common stock, no par value
Authorized - 5,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 1,514,472 shares
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
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2011 2010

(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)
1,881 $ 2,021
14,928 12,864
1,905 1,903
18,714 16,788
104,689 75,231
87 1,089
253,096 265,448
8,091 7,975
2,487 400
4,226 4,496
1,996 1,953
9,855 9,532
79 79
3,323 3,618
406,643 $ 386,609
24,468 $ 23,480
280,758 262,857
305,226 286,337
65,217 65,217
401 485
2,842 3,102
373,686 355,141
5,000 5,000
7,523 7,546
18,617 18,479
1,817 443
32,957 31,468
406,643 $ 386,609




River Valley Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Interest Income

Loansreceivable $ 14,818 $ 15,859
Investment securities 2,749 2,652
Interest-earning deposits and other 145 123
Total interest income 17,712 18,634
Interest Expense
Deposits 3,458 4,145
Borrowings 2,365 3,156
Total interest expense 5,823 7,301
Net Interest Income 11,889 11,333
Provision for loan losses 2,771 2,645
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan L osses 9,118 8,688
Other Income
Service fees and charges 1,935 2,026
Net realized gains on sale of available-for-sale securities 312 347
Net gains on loan sales 730 721
Interchange fee income 409 376
Increasein cash value of lifeinsurance 323 331
L oss on premises, equipment and real estate held for sale (750) (74)
Other income 49 175
Total other income 3,008 3,902
Other Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 5,309 5,012
Net occupancy and equipment expenses 1,428 1,329
Data processing fees 420 480
Advertising 403 413
Mortgage servicing rights 185 151
Office supplies 124 158
Professional fees 551 350
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation assessment 397 463
Other expenses 1,434 1,362
Total other expenses 10,251 9,718
Income Before I ncome Tax 1,875 2,872
Income tax expense 103 552
Net Income 1,772 2,320
Preferred stock dividends 362 363
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $ 1,410 $ 1,957
Basic Earningsper Common Share $ 0.93 $ 1.30
Diluted Earnings per Common Share $ 0.93 $ 1.29

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Compr ehensive Income

Net Income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized gains on securities available for sale

River Valley Bancorp

Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Unrealized holding gains arising during the period, net of tax expense of $864 and $140

Less: Reclassification adjustment for gainsincluded in net income, net of tax expense of $108

and $129

Comprehensive Income

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

54

2011 2010
(In Thousands)
1,772 $ 2,320
1,578 208
204 218
1,374 (10)
3,146 $ 2,310




Balances, January 1, 2010
Net income
Unrealized gains on securities,
net of reclassification
adjustment

Cash dividends ($.84 per common

share)
Exercise of stock options
Stock option expense
Amortization of expense related
to stock compensation plans
Cash dividends (preferred
shares)
Common stock outstanding
Preferred stock outstanding

Balances, December 31, 2010

Net income

Unrealized gains on securities,
net of reclassification
adjustment

Cash dividends ($.84 per common
share)

Stock option expense

Contribution to stock benefit
plans

Amortization of expense related
to stock compensation plans

Cash dividends (preferred
shares)
Common stock outstanding
Preferred stock outstanding

Balances, December 31, 2011

River Valley Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive
Shares Preferred Stock Common Stock Earnings Income Total
(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)
$ 5000 $ 7471 $ 17,791 $ 453 $ 30,715
2,320 2,320
(10) (10)
(1,269) (1,269)
10,000 36 36
10 10
29 29
(363) (363)
1,514,472
5,000
5,000 7,546 18,479 443 31,468
1,772 1,772
1,374 1,374
(1,272 (1,272
6 6
(55) (55)
26 26
(362) (362)
1,514,472
5,000
$ 5000 $ 7523 $ 18,617 1817 $ 32,957

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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River Valley Bancorp

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Operating Activities

Net income $ 1,772 $ 2,320
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses 2,771 2,645
Depreciation and amortization 599 501
Deferred income tax (226) (127)
Investment securities gains (312) (347)
Loans originated for sale in the secondary market (22,969) (26,099)
Proceeds from sale of loansin the secondary market 24,463 25,672
Gain on sale of loans (730) (721)
Amortization of net loan origination cost 142 105
L oss on premises, equipment and real estate held for sale 613 -
Employee Stock Ownership Plan Compensation 26 29
Net changein
Interest receivable (43) 258
Interest payable (84) (184)
Prepaid Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation assessment 360 428
Other adjustments (520) 722
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,862 5,202
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of FHLB stock 270 354
Purchases of securities available for sale (47,826) (23,277)
Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale 10,533 17,224
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 10,201 10,655
Net changein loans 4,658 7,582
Purchases of premises and equipment (715) (379
Purchase of cash value life insurance - (1,000)
Net cash received in branch acquisition - 582
Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 2,024 590
Other investing activities (328) (135)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (21,183) 12,196
Financing Activities
Net changein
Noninterest-bearing, interest-bearing demand and savings deposits 14,880 1,888
Certificates of deposit 4,009 6,706
Proceeds from borrowings 15,000 22,000
Repayment of borrowings (15,000) (43,000)
Cash dividends (1,634) (1,631)
Acquisition of stock for stock benefit plans (55) -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 36
Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 47 4
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 17,247 (13,997)
Net Changein Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,926 3,401
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 16,788 13,387
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 18,714 $ 16,788
Additional Cash Flows and Supplementary Information
Interest paid $ 5,907 $ 7,485
Income tax paid, net of refunds 388 666
Transfersto real estate held for sale 4,781 811

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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River Valley Bancorp

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Table Dollar Amountsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Note 1: Natureof Operationsand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of River Valey Bancorp (Holding Company) and its wholly owned subsidiary, River Valley Financial Bank (Bank) and
the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Madison 1st Service Corporation (First Service), RVFB Investments, Inc. (RVFB Investments), RVFB Holdings, Inc.
(RVFB Holdings), and RVFB Portfalio, LLC (RVFB Portfolio) (collectively referred to as“ Company”), conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America and reporting practices followed by the thrift industry. The more significant of the policies are described bel ow.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company is a thrift holding company whose principal activity is the ownership and management of the Bank. The Bank operates under a federal thrift
charter and provides full banking services, in a single significant business segment. As afederally chartered thrift, the Bank has been subject to regulation
by the Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Since the termination of the OTSin July 2011, itsregulatory
authority over the Bank has been transferred to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) and its regulatory authority over the Holding Company
has been transferred to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve (Federal Reserve).

The Bank generates commercial, mortgage and consumer loans and receives deposits from customers located primarily in southeastern Indiana and adjacent
areas in Kentucky. The Bank’s |oans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, consumer assets and business assets.

Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, the Bank. The Bank currently owns
four subsidiaries. First Service, which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana on July 3, 1973, currently holds land and cash but does not
otherwise engage in significant business activities. RVFB Investments, RVFB Holdings, and RVFB Portfolio were established in Nevada the latter part of
2005. They hold and manage a significant portion of the Bank’s investment portfolio. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been
eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers al liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31,
2011 and 2010, cash equivalents consisted of cash accounts with other financial institutions and federal funds sold.

Effective July 21, 2010, the FDIC's insurance limits were permanently increased to $250,000. At December 31, 2011, the Company’s cash accounts exceeded
federally insured limits by approximately $16.6 million. Included in this amount is approximately $13.2 million with the Federal Reserve Bank and $1.2 million
with the Federal Home L oan Bank of Indianapolis.

Pursuant to legislation enacted in 2010, the FDIC will fully insure al noninterest-bearing transaction accounts beginning December 31, 2010 through
December 31, 2012, at al FDIC-insured institutions.

Investment Securities are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported

in other comprehensive income. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the
securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method.
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For debt securities with fair value below amortized cost when the Company does not intend to sell a debt security, and it is more likely than not that the
Company will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis, it recognizes the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of a
debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income. For held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of an other-than-
temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of a previous other-than-temporary impairment is amortized
prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the security.

The Company’'s consolidated statement of operations as of December 31, 2011, would reflect the full impairment (that is, the difference between the
security’s amortized cost basis and fair value) on debt securities that the Company intends to sell or would more likely than not be required to sell before the
expected recovery of the amortized cost basis. For available-for-sale and held-to-maturity debt securities that management has no intent to sell, and it is not
more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell prior to recovery, only the credit loss component of the impairment would be recognized in
earnings, while the noncredit loss would be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income. The credit loss component recognized in earnings is
identified as the amount of principal cash flows not expected to be received over the remaining term of the security as projected based on cash flow
projections. The Company did not record any other-than-temporary impairment during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Loans held for saleare carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market. Market is determined using the aggregate method. Net unrealized losses, if any, are
recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income based on the difference between estimated sales proceeds and aggregate cost.

L oans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity or payoffs, are reported at their outstanding principal
balances, adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts
on purchased loans. Interest income is reported on the interest method and includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and costs over the loan term.
Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status at 90 days past due and interest is considered a loss, unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of
collection.

Discounts and premiumson purchased residential real estate loans are amortized to income using the interest method over the remaining period to
contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated prepayments. Discounts and premiums on purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of
the loans using methods that approximate the interest method.

Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status at 90 days past due and interest is considered aloss, unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of
collection. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. For all loan classes, the entire balance of theloan is considered past dueif the minimum
payment contractually required to be paid is not received by the contractual due date. For all loan classes, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at
an earlier dateif collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

Consistent with regulatory guidance, charge-offs on all loan segments are taken when specific loans, or portions thereof, are considered uncollectible. The
Company’s policy isto promptly charge these loans off in the period the uncollectible lossis reasonably determined.

For all loan portfolio segments except one-to-four family residential properties and consumer, the Company promptly charges off loans, or portions thereof,
when available information confirms that specific loans are uncollectible based on information that includes, but is not limited to, (1) the deteriorating
financial condition of the borrower, (2) declining collateral values, and/or (3) legal action, including bankruptcy, that impairs the borrower’s ability to
adequately meet its obligations. For impaired loans that are considered to be solely collateral dependent, a partial charge-off is recorded when a loss has
been confirmed by an updated appraisal or other appropriate valuation of the collateral.

The Company charges off one-to-four family residential and consumer loans, or portions thereof, when the Company reasonably determines the amount of
the loss. The Company adheres to timeframes established by applicable regulatory guidance which provides for the charge-down of one-to-four family first
and junior lien mortgages to the net realizable value less costs to sell when the loan is 180 days past due, charge-off of unsecured open-end loans when the
loan is 180 days past due, and charge-down to the net realizable value when other secured loans are 120 days past due. Loans at these respective
delinquency thresholds for which

58




River Valley Bancorp

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Table Dollar Amountsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

the Company can clearly document that the loan is both well-secured and in the process of collection, such that collection will occur regardless of
delinquency status, need not be charged off.

For all loan classes, when loans are placed on nonaccrual, or charged off, interest accrued but not collected is reversed against interest income. Subsequent
payments on nonaccrual loans are recorded as a reduction of principal, and interest income is recorded only after principal recovery is reasonably assured.
In general, loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured. Nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the financial position of the borrower indicates
thereis no longer any reasonable doubt as to the timely collection of interest or principal. However, for impaired loans and troubled debt restructured, which
isincluded in impaired loans, the Company requires a period of satisfactory performance of not less than six months before returning a nonaccrual loan to
accrual status.

When cash payments are received on impaired loans in each loan class, the Company records the payment as interest income unless collection of the
remaining recorded principal amount is doubtful, at which time payments are used to reduce the principal balance of the loan. Troubled debt restructured
loans recognize interest income on an accrual basis at the renegotiated rate if the loan isin compliance with the modified terms.

The allowance for loan losses is established as |osses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to income. Loan losses
are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of aloan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited
to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the
loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay,
estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to loans that are classified asimpaired. For those |oans that
are classified asimpaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is
lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical charge-off experience by segment.
The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual 1oss history experienced by the Company over the prior three
years. Management believes the three-year historical loss experience methodology is appropriate in the current economic environment. Other adjustments
(qualitative/environmental considerations) for each segment may be added to the allowance for each loan segment after an assessment of internal or external
influences on credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled
payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified asimpaired. Management determines the significance of payment
delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including
the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest
owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. For
impaired loans where the Company utilizes the discounted cash flows to determine the level of impairment, the Company includes the entire change in the
present value of cash flows as provision expense.

Segments of loanswith similar risk characteristics, including individually evaluated loans not determined to be impaired, are collectively evaluated for

impairment based on the group’s historical oss experience adjusted for changesin trends, conditions and other relevant factors that affect repayment of the
loans.
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Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential 1oans for impairment measurements.

Premises and equipment are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based principally on
the estimated useful lives of the assets that range from three to forty years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or
the life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred while major additions and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on
dispositions areincluded in current operations.

Real estate held for saleiscarried at fair value less estimated selling costs. When foreclosed assets are acquired, any required adjustment is charged to the
allowance for loan losses. All subsequent activity isincluded in current operations.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock isarequired investment for institutions that are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank system. The required investment
in the common stock is based on a predetermined formula.

M ortgage servicing rightson originated loans that have been sold are initialy recorded at fair value. Capitalized servicing rights are amortized in proportion
to and over the period of estimated servicing revenues. Impairment of mortgage-servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights. Fair
values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For purposes of measuring impairment, the rights are stratified
based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans. The predominant characteristic currently used for stratification is type of loan. The
amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage-servicing rights for a stratum exceed their fair value.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its carrying amount, a goodwill impairment is indicated and
goodwill iswritten down to itsimplied fair value. Subsequent increasesin goodwill value are not recognized in the financial statements.

Stock options- The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully in Note 15.

Income Taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance (ASC 740, Income Taxes). The income tax
accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or
refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. The
Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of
the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they
occur.

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more likely
than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The phrase “more likely than not” means a
likelihood of more than 50%; the terms “examined” and “upon examination” also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax
position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement with ataxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of
whether or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence
available, it ismore likely than not that some portion or all of adeferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of income tax expense.
The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiaries.

The Company’stax years till subject to examination by taxing authorities are years subsequent to 2007.
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Earnings Per Share - Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional potential common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive
potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that
may beissued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options and are determined using the treasury stock method.

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes. Other comprehensive income includes
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale securities.

Reclassifications of certain amountsin the 2010 consolidated financial statements have been made to conform to the 2011 presentation.

Current Economic Conditions - The current protracted economic decline continues to present financial institutions with circumstances and challenges,
which in some cases have resulted in large and unanticipated declines in the fair values of investments and other assets, constraints on liquidity and capital
and significant credit quality problems, including severe volatility in the valuation of real estate and other collateral supporting loans.

At December 31, 2011, the Company held $102,400,000 in commercial real estate and land with approximately $89,200,000 of that total in loans collateralized
by commercial and development real estate, primarily in the Floyd and Clark County, Indiana geographic area. Due to national, state and local economic
conditions, values for commercial and development real estate have declined significantly, and the market for these properties is depressed. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to the Company.

Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in
material future adjustmentsin asset values, the allowance for loan losses and capital that could negatively impact the Company’s ability to meet regulatory
capital requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity.

Note2: Restriction on Cash and Duefrom Banks

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. The reserve required at December 31, 2011 was
$2,835,000.
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Note 3: Investment Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of securities as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 are asfollows:

December 31, 2011

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Cost Gains L osses Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities

Federal agencies $ 37107 % 844 3 B34 s 37,917
State and municipal 27,076 1,663 (24) 28,715
Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed

and other asset-backed agency securities 33,565 1,138 (6) 34,697
Corporate 4,115 - (755) 3,360

Total investment securities $ 101,863 $ 3645 $ (819) $ 104,689

December 31, 2010

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Cost Gains L osses Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities

Federal agencies $ 2139 % 452 $ ®3 $ 22,528
State and municipal 22,516 463 (124) 22,855
Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed

and other asset-backed agency securities 28,113 908 (1209) 28,912
Corporate 1,768 - (832) 936

Total investment securities $ 74536 $ 1823 $ (1,128) $ 75,231

The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2011, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will
differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Available-for-Sale

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Within one year $ 2,691 $ 2,725
Onetofiveyears 26,358 26,955
Fiveto tenyears 22,147 22,866
After ten years 17,102 17,446
68,298 69,992

Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE) residential mortgage-backed and other asset-backed
agency securities 33,565 34,697
Totals $ 101,863 $ 104,689
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No securities were pledged at December 31, 2011 or at December 31, 2010 to secure FHLB advances. Securities with a carrying value of $14,562,000 and
$18,580,000 were pledged at December 31, 2011 and 2010 to secure public deposits and for other purposes as permitted or required by law.

Gross gains of $312,000 and $350,000 resulting from sales and calls of available-for-sale securities were realized during the respective periods. Gross |osses
of $3,000 were recognized during 2010. No losses were realized from sales and calls of available-for-sale securities during 2011. Gains and losses on the sale
of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method.

Certain investments in debt securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these
investments at December 31, 2011 and 2010, were $10,869,000 and $13,352,000, which is approximately 10.4% and 17.7% of the Company’s investment
portfolio. Management has the ability and intent to hold securities with unrealized losses to recovery, which may be maturity. Based on evaluation of
available evidence, including recent changesin market interest rates, management believes that any declinesin fair values for these securities are temporary.

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary, the cost basis of the investment will be reduced and the resulting credit
portion of the loss recognized in net income and the noncredit portion of the loss would be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income in the
period the other-than-temporary impairment is identified.

The following tables show the Company’s investments' gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

December 31, 2011

L essthan 12 Months 12 Monthsor More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Description of Securities Fair Value L osses Fair Value L osses Fair Value L osses
Federal agencies $ 4991 $ (34 $ — 3 — 3 4991 $ (34)
State and municipal 733 (20) 773 (4) 1,506 (24)
Government-sponsored

enterprise (GSE) residential

mortgage-backed and other

asset-backed agency

securities 1,012 (6) — — 1,012 (6)
Corporate 2,270 (84) 1,090 (671) 3,360 (755)
Total temporarily impaired

securities $ 9006 $ (144) 3 1863 $ (675) $ 10869 $ (819)

December 31, 2010
Lessthan 12 Months 12 Monthsor More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Description of Securities Fair Value L osses Fair Value L osses Fair Value L osses
Federal agencies $ 3952 $ (63) $ — O — 3 3952 $ (63)
State and municipal 2,752 (70) 724 (54) 3476 (124)
Government-sponsored

enterprise (GSE) residential

mortgage-backed and other

asset-backed agency

securities 4,988 (109) — — 4,988 (109)
Corporate — — 936 (832) 936 (832)
Total temporarily impaired

securities $ 11692 $ (242) $ 1660 $ (886) $ 13352 $ (1,128)
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Federal Agencies

The unrealized losses on the Company’sinvestmentsin direct obligations of U.S. government agencies were primarily caused by interest rate changes. The
contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost bases of the investments.
Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments
before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2011.

State and Municipal

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in securities of state and political subdivisions were primarily caused by interest rate changes. The
contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost bases of the investments.
Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments
before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2011.

Government-Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) Residential M ortgage-Backed and Other Asset-Backed Agency Securities

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in residential mortgage-backed agency securities were primarily caused by interest rate changes. The
Company expects to recover the amortized cost bases over the term of the securities. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in
interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company
will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

Corporate Securities

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in corporate securities were due primarily to losses on two pooled trust preferred issues held by the
Company. The two, ALESCO 9A and PRETSL XXVII, had unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 of $412,000 and $259,000, respectively. At December 31,
2010, the unrealized | osses on these two investments were $530,000 and $302,000, respectively. These two securities are both “A” tranche investments (A2A
and A-1 respectively) and have performed as agreed since purchase. The two are rated B2 and Baa3, respectively, by Moody’s indicating these securities
are considered low medium-grade to below investment grade quality and credit risk. Both provide good collateral coverage at those tranche levels, providing
protection for the Company. The Company has reviewed the pricing reports for these investments and has determined that the decline in the market priceis
not other than temporary and indicates thin trading activity rather than a true decline in the value of the investment. Factors considered in reaching this
determination included the class or “tranche” held by the Company, the collateral coverage position of the tranches, limited number of deferrals and defaults
on the issues, projected and actual cash flows and the credit ratings. These two investments represent 1.73% of the book value of the Company’s
investment portfolio and approximately 1.04% of market value. The Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that
the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, and the Company expects to
receive all contractual cash flows related to these investments. Based upon these factors, the Company has determined these securities are not other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

In August 2011, the Company purchased five corporate floating rate bonds, $2,342,000 in total, rated A+, AA+, A and A- by Standard & Poor’s. All are
uncapped and tied to 3 month LIBOR. These investments had unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 of $84,000, due primarily to interest rate changes.
Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to sell the
investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which
may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.
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Note 4: Loansand Allowance

The Company’sloan and allowance polices are discussed in Note 1 above.

Thefollowing table presents the breakdown of loans as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Residential real estate
Construction $ 8,308 $ 6,975
One-to-four family residential 111,198 117,616
Multi-family residential 18,582 14,997
Nonresidential real estate and agricultural land 83,284 89,607
Land (not used for agricultural purposes) 19,081 21,016
Commercia 17,349 16,413
Consumer and other 3,840 4,533
261,642 271,157
Unamortized deferred loan costs 481 485
Undisbursed loansin process (5,024) (2,388)
Allowance for loan |osses (4,003) (3,806)
Total loans $ 253,096 $ 265,448

Therisk characteristics of each |oan portfolio class are asfollows:

Construction

Construction loans are underwritten utilizing feasibility studies, independent appraisal reviews, sensitivity analysis of absorption and lease rates and
financial analysis of the developers and property owners. Construction loans are generally based on estimates of costs and value associated with the
complete project. These estimates may be inaccurate. Construction loans often involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment substantially
dependent on the success of the ultimate project. Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans from approved
long-term lenders, sales of developed property or an interim loan commitment from the Company until permanent financing is obtained. These loans are
closely monitored by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate |oans due to their ultimate repayment being sensitive
to interest-rate changes, governmental regulation of real property, general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing.

One-to-Four Family Residential and Consumer

With respect to residential loans that are secured by one-to-four family residences and are usually owner occupied, the Company generally establishes a
maximum loan-to-value ratio and requires private mortgage insurance if that ratio is exceeded. This segment also includes residential loans secured by non-
owner-occupied one-to-four family residences. Management tracks the level of owner-occupied residential loans versus non-owner-occupied loans as a
portion of our recent loss history relates to these loans. Home equity loans are typically secured by a subordinate interest in one-to-four family residences,
and consumer loans are secured by consumer assets such as automobiles or recreational vehicles. Some consumer loans are unsecured, such as small
installment loans and certain lines of credit. Repayment of these loans is primarily dependent on the personal income of the borrowers, which can be
impacted by economic conditions in their market areas, such as unemployment levels. Repayment can also be impacted by changes in property values on
residential properties. Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and spread over alarge number of borrowers.
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Nonresidential (including agricultural land), Land, and Multi-family Residential Real Estate

These loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate. Nonresidential and multi-family residential real estate
lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts, and the repayment of these loans is generally dependent on the successful operation of the
property securing the loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan. Nonresidential and multi-family residential real estate loans may be
more adversely affected by conditionsin the real estate markets or in the general economy. The properties securing the Company’s nonresidential and multi-
family real estate portfolio are diverse in terms of type and geographic location. Management monitors and evaluates these loans based on collateral,
geography and risk grade criteria. As a general rule, the Company avoids financing single-purpose projects unless other underwriting factors are present to
help mitigate risk. In addition, management tracks the level of owner-occupied real estate |oans versus non-owner-occupied loans.

Commercial

Commercial loans are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower.
The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most commercial loans are
secured by the assets being financed or other business assets, such as accounts receivable or inventory, and may incorporate a personal guarantee;
however, some short-term loans may be made on an unsecured basis. In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the
repayment of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its customers.
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The following tables present the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and information
regarding the breakdown of the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans, both presented by portfolio class and
impairment method, as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Residential Multi-
Construction  1-4 Family Family Nonresidential Land Commercial Consumer Total
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Balances at beginning of period: $ 3B % 746 $ 138 $ 1632 $ 976 $ 157 $ 122 $ 3,806
Provision for losses 7) 1,844 (37) 243 836 (87) (21) 2,771
L oans charged off (5 (604) (36) (1,056) (819) — (102) (2,622)
Recoveries on loans — — — 3 — — 45 48
Balances at end of period $ 23 3 1986 $ 65 $ 822 % 993 $ 70 $ 4 $ 4,003
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Balances at beginning of period: $ 5 $ 700 $ 63 $ 1636 $ 83 3 6 $ 31 % 2,611
Provision for losses (13 278 83 1,162 893 72 170 2,645
L oans charged off (4 (250) ®) (1,428) — (405) (130) (2,225)
Recoveries on loans — 18 — 262 — 444 51 775
Balances at end of period $ 3B 3 746 $ 138 $ 1632 $ 976 $ 157  $ 122 $ 3,806
Residential Multi-
Congruction  1-4 Family Family Nonresidential Land Commer cial Consumer Total
Asof December 31, 2011
Allowance for losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment: $ — $ 913 $ — 3 — % 519 $ — 8 — 3 1,432
Collectively evaluated for
impairment: 23 1,073 65 822 474 70 44 2,571
Balances at end of period $ 23 % 1986 $ 65 $ 822 $ 993 $ 70 $ 4 3 4,003
Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment: $ — $ 6331 $ 1966 $ 3705 $ 4972 $ 2711 % 17 8 17,262
Collectively evaluated for
impairment: 8,308 104,867 16,616 79,579 14,109 17,078 3,823 244,380
Balances at end of period $ 8308 $ 111,198 $ 18582 $ 83284 $ 19,081 $ 17,349 3 3840 $ 261,642
Asof December 31, 2010
Allowance for losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment: $ 14 3 200 $ 4 3% 3Bl $ 578 $ 37 $ — 3 1,214
Collectively evaluated for
impairment: 21 546 104 1,281 398 120 122 2,592
Balances at end of period $ 3B % 746 $ 138 $ 1632 $ 976 $ 157 $ 122 $ 3,806
Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment: $ 218 % 7,769 $ 910 $ 6493 $ 6341 $ 01 $ — 3 22,692
Collectively evaluated for
impairment: 6,697 109,847 14,087 83,114 14,675 15,512 4,533 248,465
Balances at end of period $ 6975 $ 117616 $ 14997 $ 89,607 $ 21,016 $ 16413 $ 4533 $ 271,157
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The following tables present the credit risk profile of the Company’sloan portfolio based on rating category as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

December 31, 2011 Total Portfolio Pass Special Mention Substandard Doubtful
Construction $ 8308 $ 8308 $ — 3 — 3 —
1-4 family residential 111,198 100,827 2,891 7,429 51
Multi-family residential 18,582 16,616 — 1,966 —
Nonresidential 83,284 75,966 3,441 3,877 —
Land 19,081 13,457 505 5,119 —
Commercial 17,349 16,685 329 335 —
Consumer 3,840 3,796 22 22 —

Total loans $ 261642 $ 235655 $ 7188 $ 18,748 $ 51

December 31, 2010 Total Portfolio Pass Special Mention Substandard Doubtful
Construction $ 6975 $ 6681 $ 16 $ 2718 $ —
1-4 family residential 117,616 107,010 5,256 5,224 126
Multi-family residential 14,997 14,087 — 334 576
Nonresidential 89,607 81,624 1471 6,512 —
Land 21,016 14,199 2,845 3,972 —
Commercial 16,413 15,290 230 893 —
Consumer 4,533 4,188 25 320 —

Total loans $ 271,157 $ 243079 $ 9843 $ 17533 $ 702

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of the borrowers to service their debt, such as current
financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. The
Company analyzes loans individually on an ongoing basis by classifying the loans as to credit risk, assigning grade classifications. Loan grade
classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful, or loss are reported to the Company’s board of directors monthly. The Company uses the
following definitions for credit risk grade classifications:

Pass: Loans not meeting the criteria below are considered to be pass rated loans.

Special Mention: These assets are currently protected, but potentially weak. They have credit deficiencies deserving a higher degree of attention by
management. These assets do not presently exhibit a sufficient degree of risk to warrant adverse classification. Concerns may lie with cash flow, liquidity,
leverage, collateral, or industry conditions. These are graded special mention so that the appropriate level of attention is administered to prevent amoveto a
“substandard” rating.

Substandard: By regulatory definition, “substandard” loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or by
the collateral pledged. These types of loans have well defined weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. A distinct possibility exists that the
institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. These loans are considered workout credits. They exhibit at |east one of the following
characteristics.

e Anexpected loan payment isin excess of 90 days past due (non-performing), or non-earning.
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Thefinancial condition of the borrower has deteriorated to such a point that close monitoring is necessary. Payments do not necessarily have to be
past due.

Repayment from the primary source of repayment is gone or impaired.

The borrower has filed for bankruptcy protection.

Theloans are inadequately protected by the net worth and cash flow of the borrower.

The guarantors have been called upon to make payments.

The borrower has exhibited a continued inability to reduce principal (although interest payment may be current).

The Company is considering alegal action against the borrower.

The collateral position has deteriorated to a point where there is a possibility the Company may sustain some loss. This may be due to the financial
condition, improper documentation, or to areduction in the value of the collateral.

Although loss may not seem likely, the Company has gone to extraordinary lengths (restructuring with extraordinary lengths) to protect its position
in order to maintain a high probability of repayment.

Flaws in documentation |eave the Company in a subordinated or unsecured position.

Doubtful: These loans exhibit the same characteristics as those rated “ substandard,” plus weaknesses that make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis
of currently known facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. This would include inadequately secured loans that are being
liquidated, and inadequately protected loans for which the likelihood of liquidation is high. This classification is temporary. Pending events are expected to
materially reduce the amount of the loss. This means that the “doubtful” classification will result in either a partial or complete [oss on the loan (write-down
or specific reserve), with reclassification of the asset as “substandard,” or removal of the asset from the classified list, asin foreclosure or full loss.

The following tables present the Company’s loan portfolio aging analysis as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

Total Loans
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater than Total Past Total Loans 90 Days and
December 31, 2011 Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Receivables Accruing

Construction 3% % —  $ — 3 3% % 7973 $ 8308 $ —
1-4 family residential 1,172 26 2,946 4,144 107,054 111,198 —
Multi-family residential — — — — 18,582 18,582 —
Nonresidential 949 105 1,831 2,885 80,399 83,284 —
Land 8 — 3,080 3,088 15,993 19,081 —
Commercial 41 — 297 338 17,011 17,349 —
Consumer 44 — 3 47 3,793 3,840 —
2549 $ 131 $ 8157 $ 10837 $ 250,805 $ 261642 $ =

Total Loans

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater than Total Past Total Loans 90 Daysand

December 31, 2010 Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Receivables Accruing

Construction — 3 — 165 $ 165 $ 6810 $ 6975 $ —
1-4 family residential 132 839 2,304 3,275 114,341 117,616 —
Multi-family residential — — 910 910 14,087 14,997 —
Nonresidential — — 4,673 4,673 84,934 89,607 —
Land — 372 1,749 2,121 18,895 21,016 —
Commercial 542 — 265 807 15,606 16,413 —
Consumer 37 — 315 352 4,181 4,533 —
711 $ 1211 $ 10,381 $ 12,303 $ 258854 $ 271,157  $ —
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The following table presents the Company’s nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2011, which includes both nonperforming troubled debt restructured and
loans delinquent 90 days or more. At December 31, 2010, the Company had nonaccruing loans totaling $10,381,000 which equaled loans delinquent 90 days
or more.

_December 31, 2011
Residential real estate

Construction $ —
One-to-four family residential 4,304
Multi-family residential —
Nonresidential real estate and agricultural land 2,161
Land (not used for agricultural purposes) 3,080
Commercid 297
Consumer and other 21
Total nonaccrual loans $ 9,863

A loanis considered impaired, in accordance with the impai rment accounting guidance (ASC 310-10-35-16), when based on current information and events, it
is probable the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans
include non-performing commercial loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings where concessions have been granted to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include areduction in the interest rate on the loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal,
forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection.
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The following tables present information pertaining to the principal balances and specific reserve alocations for impaired loans, as well as the average
balances of and interest recognized on impaired loans, as December 31, 2011:

Unpaid Interest
Recor ded Principal Specific Average Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
Impaired loans without a specific allowance:
Construction $ —  $ — —  $ 159 $ 1
1-4 family residential 3,064 3,249 — 2,722 153
Multi-family residential 1,966 1,966 — 2,052 77
Nonresidential 3,705 4,469 — 4,324 143
Land 2,329 2,329 — 3,635 44
Commercial 2711 300 — 476 15
Consumer 17 17 — 9 -
$ 11,352 $ 12,330 - 3 13377 3 433
Unpaid Interest
Recorded Principal Specific Average Income
I nvestment Balance Allowance I nvestment Recognized
Impaired loans with a specific allowance:
Construction $ — 3 — — —  $ —
1-4 family residential 3,267 3,267 913 3,232 58
Multi-family residential — — — — —
Nonresidential — — — — —
Land 2,643 2,643 519 2,436 42
Commercia — — — — —
Consumer — — — — —
$ 5910 $ 5,910 1432  $ 5668 $ 100
Unpaid
Recorded Principal Specific Average Interest Income
I nvestment Balance Allowance I nvestment Recognized
Total Impaired L oans:
Construction $ — 3 — — 159 $ 1
1-4 family residential 6,331 6,516 913 5,954 211
Multi-family residential 1,966 1,966 — 2,052 77
Nonresidential 3,705 4,469 — 4,324 143
Land 4,972 4,972 519 6,071 86
Commercial 2711 300 — 476 15
Consumer 17 17 — 9 —
$ 17,262 $ 18,240 1432 $ 19045 $ 533
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The following tables present information pertaining to the principal balances and specific reserve alocations for impaired loans, as well as the average
balances of and interest recognized on impaired loans, as of December 31, 2010:

Unpaid Interest
Recor ded Principal Specific Average Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
Impaired loanswithout a specific allowance:
Construction $ 113 $ 113 $ —  $ 260 $ 9
1-4 family residential 5,834 6,011 — 2,602 67
Multi-family residential 334 334 — 875 16
Nonresidential 5,106 6,405 — 6,125 141
Land 2,856 3,366 — 1,609 51
Commercial 381 410 — 713 32
Consumer — — — — —
$ 14624 $ 16639 $ — 12184 3 316
Unpaid Interest
Recor ded Principal Specific Average Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
Impaired loanswith a specific allowance:
Construction $ 165 $ 165 $ 14 165 $ 1
1-4 family residential 1,935 1,935 200 1,866 43
Multi-family residential 576 576 34 230 —
Nonresidential 1,387 1,387 351 792 —
Land 3,485 3,485 578 1,779 8
Commercial 520 520 37 520 34
Consumer — — — — —
$ 8068 $ 8068 $ 1214 $ 5352 $ 86
Unpaid Interest
Recorded Principal Specific Average Income
I nvestment Balance Allowance I nvestment Recognized
Total Impaired L oans:
Construction $ 218 % 2718 % 14 % 425 % 10
1-4 family residential 7,769 7,946 200 4,468 110
Multi-family residential 910 910 34 1,105 16
Nonresidential 6,493 7,792 351 6,917 141
Land 6,341 6,851 578 3,388 59
Commercid 901 930 37 1,233 66
Consumer — — — — —
$ 22692 $ 24707  $ 1214 $ 17536 $ 402
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Troubled Debt Restructurings

In the course of working with borrowers, the Company may choose to restructure the contractual terms of certain loans. In restructuring the loan, the
Company attempts to work out an alternative payment schedule with the borrower in order to optimize collectibility of the loan. Any loans that are modified,
whether through a new agreement replacing the old or via changes to an existing loan agreement, are reviewed by the Company to identify if atroubled debt
restructuring (“TDR") has occurred. A troubled debt restructuring occurs when, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial difficulties,
the Company grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider. Terms may be modified to fit the ability of the borrower to repay in
line with its current financial status, and the restructuring of the loan may include the transfer of assets from the borrower to satisfy the debt, a modification
of loan terms, or a combination of the two. If such efforts by the Company do not result in a satisfactory arrangement, the loan isreferred to legal counsel, at
which time foreclosure proceedings are initiated. At any time prior to a sale of the property at foreclosure, the Company may terminate foreclosure
proceedings if the borrower is able to work out a satisfactory payment plan.

As aresult of adopting the amendments in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-02, the Company reassessed all restructurings that occurred on or after
January 1, 2011 for identification as troubled debt restructurings. As a result of this reassessment, the Company did not identify as troubled debt
restructurings any additional receivables for which the allowance for credit losses had previously been measured under ageneral allowance for credit losses
methodol ogy.

Nonaccrual loans, including TDRs that have not met the six month minimum performance criterion, are reported in this report as non-performing loans. For all
loan classes, it is the Company’s policy to have any restructured loans which are on nonaccrual status prior to being restructured remain on nonaccrual
status until six months of satisfactory borrower performance, at which time management would consider its return to accrual status. A loan is generally
classified as nonaccrual when the Company believes that receipt of principal and interest is questionable under the terms of the loan agreement. Most
generally, thisis at 90 or more days past due.

The balance of nonaccrual restructured loans, which isincluded in total nonaccrual loans, was $3,029,000 at December 31, 2011. If the restructured loan ison
accrual status prior to being restructured, it is reviewed to determine if the restructured loan should remain on accrua status. The balance of accruing
restructured loans was $6,939,000 at December 31, 2011. Loansthat are considered TDR are classified as performing, unless they are on nonaccrual status or
greater than 90 days past due, as of the end of the most recent quarter. All TDRs are considered impaired by the Company, unless it is determined that the
borrower has met the six month satisfactory performance period under the modified terms. On at least a quarterly basis, the Company reviews all TDR loans
to determine if theloan meetsthis criterion.

With regard to determination of the amount of the allowance for credit losses, all accruing restructured loans are considered to be impaired. As aresult, the
determination of the amount of impaired |oans for each portfolio segment within troubled debt restructuringsis the same as detailed previously above.
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The following table presents information regarding troubled debt restructurings by class as of December 31, 2011 and new troubled debt restructuring for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

At December 31, 2011 For the Year Ended 12/31/2011
Pre- Post-
Total M odification Modification
Troubled Debt Current Recorded Recor ded
# of Loans Restructured # of Loans Balance Balance Balance
Residential Real Estate
Construction — 3 — — 3 — 3 — —
One-to-four family residential 10 3,551 4 1,358 1,364 1,363
Multi-family residential 1 1,966 1 1,966 1,735 1,987
Nonresidential real estate and agricultural
land 5 2,405 2 1,285 1,408 1,285
Land not agricultural 1 1,971 — — —
Commercial 2 58 1 23 46 46
Consumer 1 17 1 17 18 19
20 $ 9,968 9 $ 4649 $ 4571  $ 4,699

Of the loans restructured during the year ended December 31, 2011, four loans, totaling $1,042,000, were refinanced after bankruptcy or foreclosure based on
reaffirmation of the note or a deficiency note. All four were made at market rate or above and are listed as troubled debt due to the borrower’sinability to
cash flow. Two loans were refinanced at slightly below market rates, with taxes and insurance escrowed, one of which consolidated 28 individual |oans and
provided superior collateral coverage to the Company. These two loans totaled $2.9 million. One loan, totaling $329,000, was restructured for alonger term, at
or above market rate, to enable the borrower to recover and islisted as troubled debt due to the borrower’ s inability to cash flow. Thisloan was escrowed for
taxes and insurance. Finally, two loans, one for an individual as aresult of a signed forbearance agreement and the second for an investment property, were
refinanced at a below market rate for twelve months to provide an opportunity for the borrowers to sell the properties or recover. The total of these loans
was $357,000.

Financial impact of these restructurings was immaterial to the financials of the Company at December 31, 2011.

Three loans totaling $1.3 million, identified and reported as TDR during the year ended December 31, 2011, were considered in default during the period. The
Company defines default in thisinstance as being either past due 90 days or more at the end of the quarter or in the legal process of foreclosure.

Note5: Premisesand Equipment

2011 2010
Land $ 1,919 $ 1,649
Buildings 6,752 6,724
Leasehold improvements 715 715
Equipment 4,777 4,358
Construction in progress 12 14
Total cost 14,175 13,460
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,084) (5,485)
Net $ 8,091 $ 7,975
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Note6: Deposits

2011 2010
Demand deposits $ 140,126 118,044
Savings deposits 45,003 52,205
Certificates and other time deposits of $100,000 or more 48,816 50,123
Other certificates and time deposits 71,281 65,965
Total deposits $ 305,226 286,337
Certificates and other time deposits maturing in
2012 $ 69,609
2013 19,954
2014 11,683
2015 5,697
2016 13,063
Thereafter 91
Total $ 120,097
Note 7: Borrowings
2011 2010
Federal Home L oan Bank advances $ 58,000 58,000
Subordinated debentures 7,217 7,217
Total borrowings $ 65,217 65,217

Maturities by year for advances at December 31, 2011 are $3,000,000 in 2012, $6,750,000 in 2013, $12,750,000 in 2014, $12,750,000 in 2015, $19,750,000 in 2016

and $3,000,000 in 2017 and thereafter. The weighted-average interest rate at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was 3.55% and 3.84%, respectively.

The Federa Home Loan Bank advances are secured by loans totaling $167,028,000 at December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, no securities were

pledged for advances. Advances are subject to restrictions or penaltiesin the event of prepayment.

On March 13, 2003, the Company formed RIVR Statutory Trust | (Trust), a statutory trust formed under the laws of the State of Connecticut. On March 26,
2003, the Trust issued 7,000 Fixed/Floating Rate Capital Securities with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per Capital Security in a private placement to an
offshore entity for an aggregate offering price of $7,000,000, and 217 Common Securities with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per Common Security to the
Company for $217,000. The aggregate proceeds of $7,217,000 were used by the Trust to purchase $7,217,000 in Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures from the Company. The Debentures and the Common and Capital Securities have a term of 30 years, bear interest at the
annual rate of 6.4% for five years and thereafter bear interest at the rate of the 3-Month LIBOR plus 3.15%. The Company has guaranteed payment of

amounts owed by the Trust to holders of the Capital Securities.
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Note8: Loan Servicing

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The risks inherent in mortgage servicing assets relate primarily
to changes in prepayments that result from shifts in mortgage interest rates. The unpaid principal balances of mortgage and other |oans serviced for others
were $96.3 million and $94.4 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Mortgage servicing rights are included in other assets in the balance sheet.
The following summarizes the activity pertaining to mortgage servicing rights measured using the amortization method, along with the aggregate activity in
related valuation allowances:

2011 2010
Mortgage servicing rights
Balances, January 1 $ 638 $ 543
Servicing rights capitalized 238 234
Amortization of servicing rights (209) (139)
Balance at end of year 667 638
Valuation allowances
Balance at beginning of year 50 38
Additions — 12
Reductions (24) —
Balances at end of year 26 50
Mortgage servicing assets, net $ 641 $ 588
Fair value disclosures
Fair value as of the beginning of the period $ 834 $ 825
Fair value as of the end of the period 848 834

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, a valuation allowance was hecessary to adjust the cost basis of certain pools of the mortgage servicing rights asset to fair
value.

76




River Valley Bancorp
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Table Dollar Amountsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Note9: Income Tax

2011 2010
Income tax expense (benefit)
Currently payable
Federal $ 357 $ 639
State (28) 40
Deferred
Federal (212 (119)
State (14) (8)
Total income tax expense $ 103 $ 552
Reconciliation of federal statutory to actual tax expense (benefit)
Federal statutory income tax at 34% $ 638 $ 976
Effect of state income taxes (28) 21
Tax exempt interest (345) (282)
Cash value of lifeinsurance (110) (112)
Other (52) (51)
Actual tax expense $ 103 $ 552
Effective tax rate 5.5% 19.2%

The cumulative net deferred tax asset (liability) is included in the balance sheets in other assets and other liabilities, respectively. The components of the
asset (liability) are asfollows:

2011 2010
Assets

Allowance for loan losses $ 1,523 $ 1,448
Deferred compensation 412 387
Purchase accounting adjustments 29 30
Pension and employee benefits - 19
Non-accrua interest 60 43
Real estate held for sale 120 5
AMT 112 -
Other 20 9

Total assets 2,276 1,941

Liabilities

Depreciation and amortization (849) (794)
Loan fees (183) (185)
Mortgage servicing rights (244) (224)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends (87) (92)
Prepaid expenses (157) (180)
Available-for-sale securities (1,008) (253)
Pension and employee benefits (55) (253)
Other (50) (40)

Total liabilities (2,633) (1,768)

$ 357 % 173
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As of December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately $112,000 of alternative minimum tax credits available to offset future federal income taxes. The
credits have no expiration date.

Retained earnings include approximately $2,100,000 for which no deferred income tax liability has been recognized. This amount represents an allocation of
income to bad debt deductions as of December 31, 1987 for tax purposes only. Reduction of amounts so allocated for purposes other than tax bad debt
losses or adjustments arising from carryback of net operating losses would create income for tax purposes only, which income would be subject to the then-
current corporate income tax rate. The unrecorded deferred income tax liability on the above amount was approximately $714,000.

Commitmentsand Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business there are outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit and standby |etters of
credit, which are not included in the accompanying financial statements. The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other
party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount of
those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making such commitments as it does for instruments that are included in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk as of December 31 were as follows:

2011 2010

Commitments to extend credit $ 42,173 $ 36,852
Standby letters of credit 637 250

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates
each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is
based on management'’s credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income-
producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitmentsissued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to athird party.

The Company and subsidiaries |ease operating facilities under lease arrangements expiring 2015 through 2029. Rental expense included in the consolidated
statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $223,000 and $229,000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under the leases are:

2012 $ 216
2013 224
2014 234
2015 198
2016 195
Thereafter 1,424

Total minimum |lease payments $ 2,491
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The Company and Bank are also subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of management that
the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the
Company.

Dividend and Capital Restrictions

Without an application or prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board, but only upon giving prior notice to the Federal Reserve Board (with a copy to the
OCC), current regulations allow the Bank to pay dividends to the Company not exceeding net profits (as defined) for the current year plus those for the
previous two years. The Bank normally restricts dividends to a lesser amount because of the need to maintain an adequate capital structure. Also, the
Bank’s Plan of Conversion from its 1996 conversion from mutual to stock form imposes additional limitations on the amount of distributions to the Company,
limiting distributions to prevent the Company’s net worth from being reduced below the amount required for a liquidation account. At December 31, 2011,
the stockhol der’s equity of the Bank was $39,367,000, of which approximately $36,716,000 was restricted from dividend distribution to the Company.

Preferred Stock

During 2009, the Company raised $5,000,000 through a private placement of cumulative preferred stock. From the proceeds, $2,500,000 was contributed to the
Bank. The preferred stock carries a liquidation value of $1,000 per share and pays dividends quarterly to shareholders at a rate of 7.25% per annum for the
first five years. After the fifth year, the rate increases to 9% per annum and the Company has the option to redeem the preferred stock in whole or part at a
price equal to the sum of the liquidation amount per share and any accrued and unpaid dividends, regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared.

Regulatory Capital

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct materia effect on the
Bank's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings and other factors. Furthermore, the Bank' s regulators could require adjustments to regulatory capital not reflected in these financial statements.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table
below) of total and Tier | capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier | capital to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2011, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirementsto which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent notification from the OCC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and Tier | leverage ratios as set
forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category from well
capitalized.

79




River Valley Bancorp
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Table Dollar Amountsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

The Bank’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios are as follows:

Actual Required for Adeguate Capital To BeWell Capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

2011
Total risk-based capital (to risk-

weighted assets) $ 40,015 14.68% $ 21,804 8.00% $ 27,256 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 37,449 13.74 10,902 4.00 16,353 6.00
Core capital (to adjusted total assets) 37,449 9.25 16,197 4.00 20,246 5.00
Core capital (to adjusted tangible

assets) 37,449 9.25 8,098 2.00 - N/A
Tangible capital (to adjusted total

assets) 37,449 9.25 6,074 150 - N/A
2010
Total risk-based capital (to risk-

weighted assets) $ 40,007 14.92% $ 21,454 8.00% $ 26,818 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 37,415 13.95 10,727 4.00 16,091 6.00
Core capital (to adjusted total assets) 37,415 9.70 15,434 4.00 19,292 5.00
Core capital (to adjusted tangible

assets) 37,415 9.70 7,717 2.00 N/A N/A
Tangible capital (to adjusted total

assets) 37,415 9.70 5,788 1.50 N/A N/A

Note 14: Employee Benefits

The Bank provides pension benefits for substantially all of the Bank’s employees who were employed by the Bank prior to September 1, 2005, through its
participation in a pension fund known as the Pentegra Group. The trustees of the Financial Institutions Retirement Fund administer the Pentegra Plan,
employer identification number 13-5645888 and plan number 333. This plan operates as a multi-employer plan for accounting purposes and as a multiple-
employer plan under the Employee Retirement |ncome Security Act of 1974 and the Internal Revenue Code. There are no collective bargaining agreementsin
place that require contributions to the Pentegra Plan. The Pentegra Plan is asingle plan under Internal Revenue Code 413(c) and, as aresult, all of the assets
stand behind all of the liabilities. Accordingly, under the Pentegra Plan, contributions made by a participating employer may be used to provide benefits to
participants of other participating employers. There is no separate actuarial valuation made with respect to each participating employer. Pension expense
related to this plan was $279,000 and $193,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Funding status of the plan as of the beginning of the plan
years for 2011 and 2010 (July 1st) was 86.47% and 89.29% respectively. The Company’s contributions for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010
were $476,000 and $84,000, respectively. Total contributions to the Pentegra Plan were $203,582,000 and $133,930,000 for the plan years ended June 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively. The Company’s contributions to the Pentegra Plan were not more than 5% of the total contributionsto the plan.

The Bank has a retirement savings 401(k) plan in which substantially all employees may participate. Prior to 2009, the Bank provided a match for employee
contributions for all contributing employees with a match of 50% for the first 6% of W-2 earnings for employees hired prior to September 1, 2005 and a match
of 100% for the first 6% of W-2 earnings contributed for employees hired on or after September 1, 2005. Due to economic conditions, in October of 2009 the
employer match for pre-2005 employees was discontinued and the match rate for post-2005 employees was reduced to 50% of the first 6% of W-2 earnings.
In 2011, this plan was again amended, with the employer match increased to 75% of the first 6% of W-2 earnings, only on post-2005 employees. The Bank's
expense for the plan was $45,000 and $21,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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The Bank has a supplemental retirement plan which provides retirement benefitsto all directors. The Bank’s obligations under the plan have been funded by
the purchase of key man life insurance palicies, of which the Bank is the beneficiary. Expense recognized under the supplemental retirement plan totaled
approximately $80,000 and $84,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The Company has an ESOP covering substantially all employees of the Company and Bank. All contributions to the ESOP are determined annually by the
Board of Directors of the Company and Bank. Compensation expense was recorded based on the annual contributions to the ESOP. ESOP expense for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $150,000 and $100,000, respectively. At December 31, 2011 the ESOP had 148,248 allocated shares, no suspense
shares and no committed-to-be released shares. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of the 148,248 and 135,261 allocated shares held by the ESOP
was $2,300,000 and $2,200,000, respectively.

The Company also has a Recognition and Retention Plan (RRP) which provides for the award and issuance of up to 95,220 shares of the Company’s stock to
members of the Board of Directors and management. Over the life of the plan, the RRP has purchased 84,490 shares of the Company’s common stock in the
open market and had 400 shares forfeited back into the fund. A total of 84,890 shares has all been awarded. Common stock awarded under the RRP vests
ratably over afive-year period, commencing with the date of the award. Expense recognized under the RRP plan totaled approximately $29,000 and $27,000
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Unvested RRP shares at December 31, 2011:

Number Grant Date

of Shares Fair Value
Beginning of year 3,400 $ 17.82
Granted 2,500 16.1
Vested (1,400) 18.43
End of year 4,500 $ 16.68

Unearned compensation at December 31, 2011 related to RRP sharesis $75,000 and will be recognized over aweighted average period of 2.4 years.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan (the Plan), which is sharehol der approved, permits the grant of stock optionsto its directors, officers and other
key employees. The Plan authorized the grant of options for up to 238,050 shares of the Company’s common stock, which generally vest at a rate of 20
percent a year and have a 10-year contractual term. The Company believes that such awards better align the interests of its directors and employees with
those of its shareholders. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant.
Certain option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as defined in the Plans). The Company generally issues shares from its
authorized shares to satisfy option exercises.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a binomial option valuation model that uses the assumptions related to expected
volatility, expected term of the options awarded and the risk-free rate. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock and other
factors. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model. The expected term of options
granted is derived from the output of the option valuation model and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The
risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. No grants were made
in 2011 or 2010.

81




River Valley Bancorp
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Table Dollar Amountsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

A summary of option activity under the Plan as of December 31, 2011, and changes during the year then ended, is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
Outstanding, beginning of year 32400 $ 15.41 5.47
Granted —
Exercised — s -
Forfeited or expired —
Outstanding, end of year 32400 $ 15.41 447  $ 37
Exercisable, end of year 26400 $ 15.60 3% $ 31

There were no options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2011. Thetotal intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31,
2010 was $103,000.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there was $12,000 and $19,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over aweighted-average period of 1.75 years.

During 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized $6,000 and $10,000 of share-based compensation expense with a tax benefit of $3,000 and $4,000 related to
the share-based compensation expense.

Note 16: Related Party Transactions
The Bank has entered into transactions with certain directors, executive officers, significant stockholders and their affiliates or associates (related parties).
Such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as
those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than normal

credit risk or present other unfavorable features.

The aggregate amount of |oans, as defined, to such related parties were as follows:

Balances, January 1, 2011 $ 2,411
Change in composition (178)
New loans, including renewals 505
Payments, etc., including renewals (550
Balances, December 31, 2011 $ 2,188

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at December 31, 2011 and 2010 totaled $1,673,000 and $1,383,000, respectively.
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Note 17: EarningsPer Share

Earnings per share have been computed based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding.

2011 2010
Weighted- Per Share Weighted- Per Share
Income Average Shares Amount Income Average Shares Amount

Basic earnings per share
Income available to common

stockholders $ 1,410 1514472  $ 093 $ 1,957 1,510,308 $ 1.30
Effect of dilutive RRP awards

and stock options 1,974 4,131
Diluted earnings per share
Income available to common

stockholders and assumed

conversions $ 1,410 1516446 $ 093 $ 1,957 1514439 $ 1.29

Net income for the year ending December 31, 2011 of $1,772,000 was reduced by $362,000 for dividends on preferred stock in the same period, to arrive at
income available to common stockholders of $1,410,000. Net income for the year ending December 31, 2010 of $2,320,000 was reduced by $363,000 for
dividends on preferred stock in the same period, to arrive at income available to common stockholders of $1,957,000.

Certain groups of options were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the option price was greater than the average market
price of the common shares. For the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, options to purchase 5,000 shares at an exercise price of $22.25 per share were
outstanding and were not included in the computation of diluted earnings for those periods.

Note 18: Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes fair values in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820. ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
ASC Topic 820 aso establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservabl e inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active;
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the
accompanying balance sheets, aswell asthe general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Available-for-sale Securities

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. The Company does not
currently hold any Level 1 securities. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models which utilize certain
market information or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics (Level 2). For securities where quoted prices, market prices of similar securities

or pricing models which utilize observable inputs are not available, fair values are calculated using discounted cash flows or other market indicators (Level
3). Discounted cash flows are cal cul ated using spread to swap and LIBOR curves that are updated to incorporate |oss severities,
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volatility, credit spread and optionality. Rating agency industry research reports as well as defaults and deferrals on individual securities are reviewed and
incorporated into calculations. Level 2 securities include residential mortgage-backed agency securities, federal agency securities, municipal securities and
corporate bonds. Securities classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy include pooled trust preferred securities which areless liquid securities.

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the accompanying bal ance sheets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and the level within the ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value M easurements Using

Quoted Pricesin

Active Marketsfor Significant Other Significant
I dentical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
December 31, 2011 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available-for-sale securities
Federal agencies $ 37917 $ —  $ 37917 $ =
State and municipal 28,715 — 28,715 —
Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE)
residential mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed agency securities 34,697 — 34,697 —
Corporate 3,360 — 2,270 1,090
Total $ 104,689 $ — 103599 $ 1,090
Fair Value M easurements Using
Quoted Pricesin
Active Marketsfor Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable I nputs Unobservable Inputs
December 31, 2010 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available-for-sale securities
Federal agencies $ 22528 % — 3 22528 % —
State and municipal 22,855 — 22,855 —
Government-sponsored enterprise (GSE)
residential mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed agency securities 28,912 — 28,912 —
Corporate 936 — — 936
Total $ 7231 $ — 3 74295 $ 936
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Thefollowing is areconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value measurements recognized in the accompanying balance sheets
using significant unobservable (Level 3) inputsfor the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
Available-for-Sale Available-for-Sale
Securities Securities

Beginning balance $ 936 $ 848
Total realized and unrealized gains and | osses

Amortization included in net income 8 8

Unrealized gainsincluded in other comprehensive income 161 97
Settlements including pay downs (15) (17)
Transfersin and/or out of Level 3 —
Ending balance $ 1,090 $ 936
Total gainsor losses for the period included in net income attributable to the change in unrealized

gainsor losses related to assets and liabilities still held at the reporting date $ — $ —

There were no realized or unrealized gains or losses of Level 3 securities included in net income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010.

At December 31, 2010, Level 3 securities included two pooled trust preferred securities. The fair value on these securities is calculated using a combination
of observable and unobservable assumptions as a quoted market price is not readily available. Both securities remain in Level 3 at December 31, 2011. For
the past two fiscal years, trading of these types of securities has only been conducted on a distress sale or forced liquidation basis, although some trading
activity has occurred in recent months for instruments similar to the instruments held by the Company. As aresult, the Company continues to measure the
fair values using discounted cash flow projections and has included the securitiesin Level 3.

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the accompanying bal ance sheets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis and the level within the ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value M easurements Using
Quoted Pricesin Active

Marketsfor Identical Significant Other Significant Unobservable
Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Asof December 31, 2011 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans $ 5611 $ — 3 — % 5,611
Real estate held for sale 752 — — 752

Fair Value M easur ements Using
Quoted Pricesin Active

Marketsfor I dentical Significant Other Significant Unobservable

Assets Observable Inputs Inputs

Asof December 31, 2010 Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans $ 8956 $ — 3 —  $ 8,956
Real estate held for sale 400 — — 400
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair values on a nonrecurring basis and recognized in the
accompanying bal ance sheet, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Impaired Loans (Collateral Dependent)

Loans for which it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest due according to contractual terms are measured for impairment.
Allowable methods for determining the amount of impairment include estimating fair value using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans.

If the impaired loan is identified as collateral dependent, then the fair value method of measuring the amount of impairment is utilized. This method requires
obtaining a current independent appraisal of the collateral and applying adiscount factor to the value.

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy when impairment is determined using the fair value
method.

Real Estate Held for Sale

Real estate held for saleis carried at the fair value less cost to sell and is periodically evaluated for impairment. Real estate held for sale recorded during the
current accounting period is recorded at fair value, less cost to sell and is disclosed as a nonrecurring measurement. Real estate held for sale is classified
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Thefair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates carrying value.

LoansHeld for Sale- Fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Loans - Thefair value for loansis estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar termsto
borrowers of similar credit quality.

FHLB Stock - Fair value of FHLB stock is based on the price at which it may be resold to the FHLB.

Interest Receivable/Payable - The fair values of interest receivabl e/payable approximate carrying values.

Deposits - The fair values of noninterest-bearing, interest-bearing demand and savings accounts are equal to the amount payable on demand at the balance
sheet date. The carrying amounts for variable rate, fixed-term certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the balance sheet date. Fair values for
fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificatesto a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on such time deposits.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances - The fair value of these borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation, based on current rates for
similar debt.

Borrowings - The fair value of these borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation, based on current rates for similar debt or as
applicable, based on quoted market prices for the identical liability when traded as an asset.

Advance Payment by Borrowersfor Taxesand Insurance - The fair value approximates carrying value.
Off-balance sheet Commitments - Commitments include commitments to originate mortgage and consumer loans and standby letters of credit and are
generally of a short-term nature. The fair value of such commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into

account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit standing. The carrying amounts of these commitments, which are immaterial,
are reasonabl e estimates of the fair value of these financial instruments.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’sfinancial instruments are as follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities available for sale
Loans, held for sale
Loans, net of allowance for losses
Stock in FHLB
Interest receivable
Mortgage servicing rights
Liabilities
Deposits
FHLB advances
Borrowings
Interest payable
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance
Off-balance sheet Assets (Liabilities)
Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit

Note 19: Condensed Financial I nformation (Parent Company Only)

Presented below is condensed financial information asto financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company:

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Investment in common stock of the Bank
Investment in RVB Trust |
Dividendsreceivable
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Borrowings
Dividends payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders Equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
$ 18714 $ 18,714 16,788 $ 16,788
104,689 104,689 75,231 75,231
87 87 1,089 1,110
253,096 260,907 265,488 273,029
4,226 4,226 4,496 4,496
1,996 1,996 1,953 1,953
641 848 588 834
305,226 309,156 286,337 289,576
58,000 62,715 58,000 61,974
7,217 5,831 7,217 4,725
401 401 485 485
152 152 105 105
Condensed Balance Sheets
2011 2010
62 $ 453
39,367 37,962
217 217
500 —
350 375
40496 $ 39,007
7217 $ 7,217
318 318
4 4
7,539 7,539
32,957 31,468
40496 $ 39,007
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Condensed Statements of Income

Income
Dividends from the Bank
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Interest expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Income (loss) beforeincome tax and equity in undistributed income of subsidiary
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) befor e equity in undistributed income of subsidiary
Equity in undistributed income of the Bank
Net Income

Condensed Statementsof Cash Flows

Operating Activities
Net income
Items not providing cash
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing Activities
Dividends from subsidiary
Net cash provided by investing activities
Financing Activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Cash dividends
Net cash used in financing activities
Net Changein Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat End of Year
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2011 2010
2,000 —
1 1
2,001 1
253 255
262 232
515 487
1,486 (486)
224 215
1,710 (272)
62 2,591
1,772 2,320

2011 2010
1,772 2,320
(2,529) (2,506)
(757) (184)
2,000 =
2,000 —
— 36
(1,634) (1,631)
(1,634) (1,595)
(391) (1,779
453 2,232
62 453
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Note 20: Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Provision Net Realized Basic Diluted
Interest Interest Net Interest For Loan Gainson Earnings Earnings
Quarter Ending Income Expense Income L osses Securities Net Income Per Share Per Share
2011
March $ 4540 $ 1475  $ 3065 $ 474 $ 126 $ 802 $ 47 % A7
June 4,340 1,468 2,872 374 40 622 35 35
September 4,479 1,464 3,015 1,449 105 (207) (:20) (:20)
December 4,353 1,416 2,937 474 41 555 31 31
$ 17712 $ 5823 §$ 11,889 $ 2771 $ 312 % 1772 ¢ 93 g 93
2010
March $ 4683 $ 1986 $ 2697 $ 165 $ A $ 719 3% 42 % 42
June 4,772 1,926 2,846 360 97 716 41 41
September 4,678 1,796 2,882 1,390 175 291 13 13
December 4,501 1,593 2,908 730 41 594 32 32
$ 18634 $ 7301 $ 11,333 $ 2645 $ 347 % 230 ¢ 130 g 1.29

Note21: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“*ASU") No. 2011-02, “A Creditor’'s Determination of Whether a Restructuring isa Troubled
Debt Restructuring (“TDR”),” which provides additional guidance to assist creditors in determining whether arestructuring of areceivable meetsthe criteria
to be considered atroubled debt restructuring. The amendmentsin this ASU are effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15,
2011, and are to be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption. As a result of applying these amendments, an entity may
identify receivables that are newly considered impaired. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’sfinancial position or
results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-4, “ Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP
and International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSs”)," which resultsin common fair value measurement and disclosure requirementsin U.S. GAAP and
IFRSs. Consequently, the amendments change the wording used to describe many of the requirements in U.S. GAAP for measuring fair value and for
disclosing information about fair value measurements. The application of fair value measurements are not changed as a result of this amendment. Some of
the amendments provide clarification of existing fair value measurement requirements while other amendments change a particular principal or requirement
for measuring fair value or disclosing information about fair value measurements. The amendments in this ASU are effective during interim and annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application is not permitted. Management is currently in the process of determining what effect the
provisions of this update will have on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-5, “ Presentation of Comprehensive Income,” which improves comparability, consistency, and transparency of
financial reporting and increases the prominence of items reported in other comprehensive income. The option to present components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity has been eliminated. The amendments require that all nonowner changes
in stockholders' equity be presented either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In the
two-statement approach, the first statement will present total net income and its components followed consecutively by a second statement that will present
total other comprehensive income, the components of other comprehensive income, and the total
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of comprehensive income. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15,
2011. Early adoption is permitted, because compliance with the amendments is already permitted. The FASB decided on October 21, 2011 that the specific
requirement to present items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income alongside their respective components of net income and
other comprehensive income will be deferred. Management is currently in the process of determining what effect the provisions of this update will have on
the Company’sfinancial position or results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-9, “Compensation — Retirement Benefits-Multiemployer Plans: Disclosures about an Employer’s
Participation in a Multiemployer Plan,” which improves employer disclosures for multiple-employer pension plans. Previously, disclosures were limited
primarily to the historical contributions made to the plans. In developing the new guidance, the FASB’s goal was to help users of financial statements
assess the potential future cash flow implications relating to an employer’s participation in multiemployer pension plans. The disclosures also will indicate
the financial health of all of the significant plansin which the employer participates and assist afinancial statement user to access additional information that
is available outside of the financial statements. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2011, with early
adoption permitted. Management has determined the adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’sfinancial position or results
of operations.

Note 22: Business Acquisition
In the second quarter of 2010, the Company acquired acommercial bank branch in New Albany, Indiana. The Company purchased premises and equipment
and customer deposits. Net cash proceeds of $582,000 were received in the transaction. Goodwill recognized in the transaction was $48,000 and is expected
to be fully deductible for tax purposes.

Note 23: Subsequent Event
In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement to merge the Bank with Dupont State Bank (“Dupont”), an
Indiana commercial bank and wholly owned subsidiary of Citizens Union Bancorp of Shelbyville, Inc. (“Citizens’). At the effective time of the merger, the
Company will pay Citizens $6,275,000 (the “Merger Consideration”) for its shares of Dupont. The transaction is anticipated to close by the end of the second
quarter of 2012, provided all conditions are satisfied and all regulatory and shareholder approvals are obtained. Some of the conditions that would entitle the

Company to terminate the agreement are:

1) if Dupont’s closing book value (net of transaction expenses or extraordinary accruals required by the agreement) is less than $7,332,000,
unless there is a corresponding reduction in the Merger Consideration;

2) if Dupont’sreal estate owned exceeds $2.0 million; or

3 if Dupont’s delinquent loans (referring to loans with principal or interest that are 30 days or more past due, nonaccruing loans and
restructured and impaired loans) exceed 4% of total loans.

After the combination, the surviving entity will be called “ River Valley Financial Bank” and will operate as an Indiana-chartered commercial bank.
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ITEM 9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTSON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There are no such changes and disagreements to report during the applicable period.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Sections 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e€) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange
Act”)), as of the end of the most recent fiscal quarter covered by this annual report (the “ Evaluation Date”), have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reportsthat it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms and are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in those reportsis accumulated and communicated to management as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on I nternal Control over Financial Reporting. The management of River Valley Bancorp (the “Company”) isresponsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s system of internal control over financial reporting includes policies and
procedures pertaining to the Company’s ability to record, process, and report reliable information. The system is designed to provide reasonabl e assurance to both
management and the Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this assessment, it used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on this
assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2011, the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Changesin internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting identified in connection with
the Company’s eval uation of controls that occurred during the Company’slast fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

Thereisno information that was required to be disclosed on a Form 8-K during the fourth quarter but was not reported.

PART 11
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by thisitem with respect to directorsisincorporated by reference to the sections of the Holding Company’s Proxy Statement for its Annual
Shareholder Meeting to be held on April 18, 2012 (the “ 2012 Proxy Statement”) with the caption “Proposal 1 - Election of Directors.” Information concerning the
Registrant’s executive officersisincluded in Item 4.5 in Part | of this report. Information with respect to corporate governance isincorporated by reference to the
section of the 2012 Proxy Statement with the caption “ Corporate Governance.” Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is
incorporated by reference to the section of the 2012 Proxy Statement captioned “ Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies, anong other persons, to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer
or controller, or persons performing similar functions. A copy of that Code of Ethicswasfiled as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K SB filed March 30, 2004, for
the year ended December 31, 2003, and alink to that filing and to a copy of the Code of Ethicsis posted at our website at http://www.rvfbank.com under “ About Us—
Stock Price & SEC Filings.” In addition, the Company will provide a copy, without charge, upon areguest directed to Matthew P. Forrester, 430 Clifty Drive, P.O. Box
1590, Madison, Indiana 47250, (812) 273-4944 (fax).
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Theinformation required by thisitem with respect to executive compensation isincorporated by reference to the sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement with the
captions “Proposal 1 - Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,” “ Executive Compensation,” and “ Compensation of Directorsfor 2011.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERSAND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information required by thisitem isincorporated by reference to the sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement with the captions “ Principal Holders of Common Stock” and
“Proposal 1 - Election of Directors.”

Thefollowing table sets forth certain information pertaining to the Bank’s equity compensation plans:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securitiesremaining

availablefor futureissuance
Number of securitiestobeissued  Weighted-aver age exercise price under equity compensation plans

upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options, warrants (excluding securitiesreflected in
options, warrantsand rights and rights column(a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (0)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 32400 $ 1541 26,320
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders —(2) —(2) 10,730(2)
Total 32400 $ 1541 37,050

(1) River Valey Bancorp Stock Option Plan.

(2) The Company maintainsthe River Valley Bancorp Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust (“RRP"). As of December 31, 2011, 4,500 RRP shares had been
granted to management but were not yet vested. In addition, 79,990 RRP shares granted to management were fully vested, and shares were issued to
management in connection therewith. The Company is authorized to make awards of up to atotal of 95,220 shares.

(3) Thetotal in Column (b) includes only the weighted-average price of stock options, as the restricted shares awarded under the RRP plan have no exercise price.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPSAND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by thisitem isincorporated by reference to the sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement with the captions “ Corporate Governance” and
“Transactions with Certain Related Persons.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEESAND SERVICES.

Theinformation required by this item with respect to principal accounting fees and servicesisincorporated by reference to the sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement
with the captions “ Accountants,” and “Accountant’s Fees.”
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITSAND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
The following documents are filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements:

See “Contents” of Consolidated Financial Statementsin Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which isincorporated herein by this reference.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules are omitted as the required information either is not applicable or is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or related Notes
contained in Item 8.

3. Exhibits:
The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index are filed with or incorporated herein by reference.

Copies of any Exhibits are available from the Company upon request by contacting Matthew P. Forrester, 430 Clifty Drive, P.O. Box 1590, M adison,
Indiana 47250, (812) 273-4944 (fax).
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.
RIVER VALLEY BANCORP

Date: March 16, 2012 By: /s/ Matthew P. Forrester
Matthew P. Forrester, President and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Signatures Title Date
(2) Principal Executive Officer:

/sl Matthew P. Forrester
Matthew P. Forrester President and Chief Executive Officer

March 16, 2012

(2) Principa Financial and Accounting Officer:

/s Vickie L. Grimes
Vickie L. Grimes Treasurer

March 16, 2012

(3) The Board of Directors:

/s/ Robert W. Anger
Robert W. Anger Director

March 16, 2012

/sl Matthew P. Forrester
Matthew P. Forrester Director

March 16, 2012

/sl Michael J. Hensley
Michael J. Hensley Director

March 16, 2012

/s Fred W. Koehler March 16, 2012

Fred W. Koehler Director
/sl L. SueLivers March 16, 2012
L. SuelLivers Director

/s/ Charles J. McKay
Charles J. McKay Director

March 16, 2012
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2(1)

3(1)
2

©
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10(2)*
@
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@

®)
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@

Reorganization Agreement among River Valley Bancorp, River Valley Financial Bank, Citizens Union Bancorp of Shelbyville, Inc. and Dupont
State Bank dated December 5, 2011 isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2011

Articles of Incorporation isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 18, 2009

Certificate of Designations for Series A Preferred Stock is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on
November 24, 2009

Amended Code of By-Laws isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2009

Form of Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures Indenture, dated March 26, 2003, is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of Registrant’s Form 10-QSB filed May 15, 2003

Form of Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures Trust Agreement, dated March 26, 2003, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Registrant’s Form 10-QSB filed May 15, 2003

Form of Fixed/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable | nterest Guarantee Agreement, dated March 26, 2003, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of Registrant’s Form 10-QSB filed May 15, 2003

Form of Certificate for Series A Preferred Stock is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on November 24,
2009

Exempt Loan and Share Purchase Agreement between Trust under River Valey Bancorp Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust
Agreement and River Valley Bancorp isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(22) to the Registration Statement

River Valley Bancorp Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(8) to the Form 10-KSB filed March
31, 2005

River Valley Bancorp Stock Option Plan isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(9) to the Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2005

Form of Employee Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the River Valley Bancorp Stock Option Plan isincorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(12) of Registrant’s Form 10-KSB filed March 31, 2005

Form of Director Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(13) of Registrant’'s Form 10-KSB filed on
March 31, 2005

Form of Award Notification under the River Valley Bancorp Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(14) of Registrant’s Form 10-K SB filed on March 31, 2005

River Valley Financia Bank Split Dallar Insurance Plan, effective January 1, 2007, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2007

Supplemental Life Insurance Agreement, dated January 25, 2007, between River Valey Financial Bank and Matthew Forrester, is incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2007
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Exhibit No.

Description

9

(10"
(1)~
(12
(13
(14
(15)

(16)

Salary Continuation Agreement, dated January 25, 2007, between River Valley Financial Bank and Matthew Forrester , is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (Matthew P. Forrester), is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K
filed on November 26, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (Anthony D. Brandon), is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-
K filed on November 26, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (John Muessel), isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed
on November 26, 2007

Amended and Restated Director Deferred Compensation Master Agreement, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s
Form 8-K filed on November 26, 2007

Form of Directors Deferral Plan Deferral and Distribution Election Form isincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’s Form
10-K filed on March 16, 2010

Form of Investment Agreement for Series A Preferred Stock is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on
November 24, 2009

Branch Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated March 3, 2010, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
filed on March 8, 2010

Code of Ethicsisincorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2010

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of BKD, LLP

CEO Certification

CFO Certification

Section 1350 Certification

XBRL Interactive Data Files (including the following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2011: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income; (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, tagged as blocks of text.**

* | ndicates exhibits that describe or evidence management contracts and plans required to be filed as exhibits.

** Users of the XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are advised, in accordance with Regulation S-T Rule 406T, that
this Interactive Data File is deemed not filed or a part of aregistration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwiseis not subject to
liability under these sections. The financial information contained in the XBRL-related documentsis unaudited and unreviewed.
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